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Chairman Speech

I am pleased to share with our stakeholders, the 8" Annual Report and Financial Statements of Ummeed
Housing Finance Private Limited ("Ummeed") for the financial year 2022-23.

Ummeed is a dynamic housing finance company seeing rapid growth, we are regulated and supervised
by RBI and NHB, respectively. Our customers are at the heart of everything we do. We are fuelled by
a commitment to deliver unparalleled service, going above and beyond to enhance our customer
experience. Our extraordinary journey of expanding financial inclusion has positively impacted the
lives of approximately 23 thousand low- and middle-income individuals, empowering them by
disbursing Rs 1900 crore in housing loans and business loans to MSMEs since our inception. The
tangible outcomes of our efforts are visible in the improved access to water and sanitation facilities for
89% of our esteemed customers. We strive to serve the needs of "Rurban” customers through a diverse
range of products, including MSME loans, and address the aspirations of underbanked low- and middle-
income individuals by strategically locating 84% of our branches in Tier 2, Tier 3, and Tier 4 cities.
Gender inclusivity is a core value, and we take immense pride in ensuring that at least one woman is a
borrower or co-borrower in every single customer relationship we nurture.

Our company has achieved remarkable milestones, marked by 49% growth in our loan book in the
current financial year, reaching an impressive INR 1,143 crore as of March 31, 2023. Home Loans
accounted for a significant 58% of the total loan disbursements during the fiscal year, followed by Loan
Against Property at 15%, Business Loans at 12%, and Short-Term Business Loans at 15%.

Ummeed's outstanding performance is evident by strong Net Interest Margin (NIM) of over 8%, which
ranks among the best in the industry, and its exceptionally low GNPA of 0.41%. Our unique hub and
spoke branch model, spread across 70 locations as of March 31, 2023, stands as a testament to our
commitment to in-house sourcing and maintaining a robust distribution network. We had passionately
prioritized technological advancements during the last fiscal, including our seamless transition to a new,
more secured cloud data-center i.e., AWS, and the upgrade of our Service CRM and Sales CRM to a
cutting-edge Loan Origination System. Our unwavering dedication to credit underwriting excellence
ensures a solid foundation for our lending practices. Furthermore, we had implemented robust collection
efforts to keep the NPAs well below 0.5%. Diversification is key to our funding strategy, with
partnerships established with leading public sector banks, private banks, and globally acclaimed
financial institutions.

We at Ummeed are dedicated to fulfilling our social responsibility and are honoured to be acknowledged
in the 1IC Asha Impact Report for our steadfast commitment to catering to the requirements of
individuals from low- and middle-income segments in rural and semi-urban regions. We staunchly
adhere to ESG best practices, and meticulously complying with the applicable labour laws and IFC's
Performance Standards. The well-being of our employees is paramount, and we ensure wages that
surpass the government's prescribed minimum, accompanied by a comprehensive benefits package,
including retiral benefits, group personal accidental insurance policy, health insurance, and round-the-
clock access to medical professionals. We have established a robust grievance redressal mechanism,
promptly addressing concerns raised by both our esteemed customers and dedicated employees. To
continuously improve customer and employee experiences, we regularly conduct independent third-




party satisfaction surveys. Gender equality is not just a slogan at Ummeed,; it is ingrained in our DNA.
We actively promote gender parity by ensuring that all our customers have women as co-homeowners.
Additionally, we actively contribute to society by championing girl child education and providing free
medical care through our CSR initiatives.

At Ummeed, we place unwavering emphasis on maintaining a culture of compliance and risk
management throughout our organization. We meticulously adhere to the regulatory frameworks
applicable to HFCs, while diligently following additional directives on liquidity risk management, IT
framework, fraud monitoring, risk management, and outsourcing code of conduct. Our Audit
Committee ensures quarterly compliance, while the Risk Management Committee provides monthly
risk reviews to the Board. We maintain an independent audit function with a robust Risk-Based Internal
Audit Framework and diligent compliance reporting. Ummeed proudly holds ISO 27001:2013
certification for information security. We conduct regular information system audits, IT risk
assessments, and cyber drills to ensure robust security measures.

I express my heartfelt appreciation to our dedicated employees, supportive shareholders, loyal
customers, and trusted partners for their invaluable contributions which drive Ummeed's success.
Together, we will continue to uphold our mission and core values, ensuring excellence in everything
we do. | am confident in our collective ability to overcome challenges and seize new opportunities,
propelling Ummeed towards a bright and prosperous future.

Thank you.

Ashutosh Sharma
Founder and Managing Director




PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
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Key initiatives:
Stakeholder engagement, customer concern management,
& embedded ESG diligence.

Positive impacts:
Affordable housing, improved water access, support for
first-time homebuyers, and enhanced living standards.

Employee well-being:
Above-minimum wages, benefits, health insurance,
& grievance redressal.

Prioritized ESG compliance, focusing Empowering women:

on environmental, social, and Co-homeownership, hygiene improvements, financial literacy,
governance risks and labor standards. . . .
& support for girl child education.

Aligned with IFC Performance
Standards on Environmental and
Social Sustainability.

Customer service:
High satisfaction levels, Fair Practice Code compliance, & efficient
complaint resolution.
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Board’s Report
Financial Year 2022-23

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the 8" (Eighth) Directors' Report of Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited (“the
Company" or "Ummeed") for the year ended 31st March 2023. This Report includes the Audited Financial
Statements, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report, CSR Annual Report and
other annexures, which form an integral part of this Report. It aims to provide stakeholders with a comprehensive
insight into the company's financial position and operational area, thereby enabling a clear understanding of its

business and operational status.

1. Financials

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 315 March 2023 is summarized below:

PARTICULARS

For the year ended
31%t March 2023

Amount in Rs. Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31% March 2022

(In INR) (In INR)

Total revenue from operations 15,944.82 10,723.23
Other Income 183.54 182.85
Total Income 16,128.36 10,906.08
Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 9,070.30 6,256.39
Less: a. Interest 4,223.36 3,567.70
b. Depreciation & Amortization 332.92 264.27
Profit before Tax 4,514.02 2,424.42
Less: a. Current tax 860.11 487.54
b. Current tax expense relating to prior years 17.92 (23.22)

c. Deferred tax charge 176.20 94.17

Net Profit /(Loss) after Tax 3,459.79 1,865.93
EPS (Basic) 6.85 3.99
EPS (Diluted) 6.62 3.86

The Company concluded the fiscal year 2023 with an AUM, including off-book, of Rs. 1,143.04 Crores.
Furthermore, the Company achieved a revenue of Rs. 159.45 Crores, representing a significant increase compared
to the previous financial year's revenue of Rs. 107.23 Crores. This indicates a year-on-year revenue growth of
48.70%. Consequently, the PAT also witnessed an increase, reaching Rs. 34.60 Crores, in contrast to the previous
year's figure of Rs. 18.66 Crores.

2. IndAS

In compliance with Paragraph 7 of the Reserve Bank's Directions on Housing Finance Companies (HFCs), the
Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards
(IndAS). The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified these standards under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, along with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The financial statements for the year
have been prepared adhering to Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Reserves

As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is obliged to transfer a minimum of
20% of its net profit each year to a reserve before declaring any dividends. Accordingly, the Company has
transferred Rs. 6.92 Crores to a special reserve, as stipulated under the said section, in conjunction with Section
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Additionally, an amount of Rs. 14.65 Crores is proposed to be carried
over to the Balance Sheet after appropriations.

4. Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review.



5. Company Affairs

The Company, incorporated on 27" January 2016, operates as a registered housing finance company under the
provisions of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. It is presently supervised by the National Housing Bank (NHB)
and regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Our team consists of experienced professionals who share a
common goal of providing financial services to underserved lower and middle-income families residing in urban
and semi-urban areas. Our primary objective is to fulfil their financing requirements for constructing or purchasing
their own homes. Ummeed is dedicated to implementing various initiatives aimed at extending financing facilities
to individuals with informal incomes, who face limited access to organized finance. This segment constitutes a
significant portion of the Indian population.

Operational Highlights

Particulars March 31, 2023 ‘ March 31, 2022

Number of Branches 70 44
Number of Borrowers 16615 11161
Amount Sanctioned (Rs. in Crore) 673 403
Amount Gross Disbursed (Rs. in Crore) 642.17 375.58
Amount Outstanding / AUM (Rs. in Crore) 1143.04 765.76

Additionally, within the Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDA Report), you can find a thorough
examination of the company's financial performance and operations. This MDA report not only sheds light on
macro-economic and geo-political factors but also addresses housing finance sector-specific aspects and other
company-specific information that influence our business and the market in which we operate. For your
convenience, the MDA report is included as Annexure “VI” to this document. It offers comprehensive insights
into our financial performance and provides a deeper understanding of our operations.

Covid19

Over the past three years, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a catastrophic impact on lives and livelihoods globally,
including in India. The Indian economy contracted by 5.5% in FY21 but has since shown signs of recovery with
growth rates of 8.7% in FY22 and 6.9% in FY23, projected to continue at a rate of 6-6.8% in FY24. While the
tailwind effect of Covid-19 is expected to continue impacting NBFCs and HFCs in India until FY?24, efforts have
been made to address these challenges by Indian Government in terms of many financial sector reforms such as
Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme, Extended Partial Credit Guarantee Scheme, Special Liquidity Scheme
for Non-bank Lenders, Loan Moratorium, Resolution Frameworks for resolution of Covid19 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses, etc.

Further, the Disclosure required under RBI's Resolution Framework - 2.0, have been provided into the Note No.
62 under Audited Financial Statements.

Borrowings/ Direct Assignments & Securitisation Transactions

In the last fiscal year, we raised a total of Rs 428.60 Crores through various sources, resulting in a 117% increase
in borrowing from lenders compared to the previous year's outstanding debt of Rs. 271.49 Crores. Our strong
relationships with 28 lenders led to an outstanding debt exposure of Rs 589.13 Crores at the end of the financial
year. This exposure comprises 22.52% from NHB, 26.18% from PSU Banks, 33.04% from Private sector Banks,
3.84% from NBFCs, and 14.42% from Foreign Institutions through ECB & NCDs. Additionally, during the year,
we successfully carried out a Direct Assignment / Securitization Transaction of Rs. 104.07 Crores. These financial
activities have played a crucial role in meeting our funding requirements and reflect our ability to access diverse
funding sources, contributing to the growth and stability of our operations.

Compliance of Principal Business Criteria (PBC)
Your Company is adhering to Principal Business Criteria (PBC) for HFCs as specified under Para 4.1.17 of Master

Directions — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and
as updated from time to time. Details of which provided into the Note No. 62 of the Audited Financial Statements.




Regulatory Compliance & Updates

The Company has diligently complied with the guidelines, circulars, and directions issued by RBI/NHB and other
regulatory bodies. We have also adopted all the recommended Policies as advised by regulatory authorities.
Furthermore, this section provides an overview of significant regulatory developments in the housing finance sector
during the review period. We have closely monitored all these regulatory developments in the housing finance
sector, and implemented wherever applicable on the Company.

e Scale Based Regulation (SBR)

The RBI introduced a revised regulatory framework for NBFCs, categorizing them into four layers based on
size, activity, and risk. Circulars have been issued under this framework, effective from October 1, 2022,
covering topics such as ICAAP, Concentration of Credit/Investment, Loans and Advances to Directors/Senior
Officers/Entities, CFSS, and governance matters. Your Company has been complying with all relevant
provisions under these circulars.

e Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

We have implemented ICAAP guidelines, ensuring sufficient capital to support operational, market, and credit
risks. ALCO oversees ICAAP, maintaining the required risk adjusted capital adequacy ratio of 74.09% i.e.,
way more than a minimum of 15% as per RBI Directions. Risk weights are assigned to different assets, and
additional capital is allocated for operational, liquidity, and residual risks.

e Core Financial Services Solution (CFSS) — Application Flow

Our company is already compliant with CFSS requirements, utilizing EnTiger-Ensource, OMNI, and EnTiger-
Encollect. The board has confirmed compliance and necessary reports will be submitted as per guidelines.

e Other Circulars under SBR

During the past financial year, the RBI issued several significant circulars under the SBR framework. These
circulars encompassed additional disclosure requirements for financial statements, regulatory restrictions on
loans and advances, and loans involving Directors, Senior Officers, and relatives of Directors. Moreover, the
RBI introduced guidelines for the Compliance Function in NBFCs, with a particular focus on NBFC-UL and
NBFC-ML. These guidelines stress the importance of implementing a Board-approved Compliance policy and
appointing a Chief Compliance Officer for middle layer NBFCs including on Ummeed by October 1, 2023.

e Reserve Bank of India (Outsourcing of Information Technology Services) Directions, 2023

Effective from October 1, 2023, guidelines emphasize HFCs' responsibility for outsourced activities, including
compliance with standards, avoiding director/control conflicts, and assessing risks. The board, senior
management, and IT function play crucial roles in overseeing outsourced activities.

6. Change in Nature of Business

There were no changes in the nature of the Company's business during the financial year ending on March 31,
2023. However, the Company relocated its registered office from "318, DLF Magnolias, Sector-42, Golf Course
Road, Gurugram-122002, Haryana" to "Unit no: 809-815, 8th Floor, Tower A, Emaar Digital Greens, Golf Course
Extn Road, Sector 61, Gurugram, 122102" effective from January 01, 2023.

7. Material Changes and Commitments, If Any

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
Report.




8.  Change in Share Capital

During the year under review, there were no changes in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company, and the
company did not raise any share capital. Furthermore, there were no changes in the paid-up share capital of the
Company compared to the last report. The details of the share capital are provided into the Note No. 19 & 20 under
Audited Financial Statements.

9. Non-Issuance of Sweat Equity Shares and Shares with Differential Rights

In the year under review, the Company confirms that no sweat equity shares were issued. Therefore, in compliance
with Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014, no information regarding sweat equity shares is provided in this report. Furthermore, the
Company declares that no shares with differential rights were issued during the financial year under review.
Consequently, in accordance with Section 43(a)(ii) read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, no information pertaining to shares with differential rights is furnished in this report.

10. Non-Convertible Debentures

During the financial year under review, the Company successfully raised Rs. 52.60 Crores through the issuance of
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) with a face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each on a private placement basis. As of
March 31, 2023, the details of the NCDs issued during the year and outstanding are as follows:

Dates of Allottees No. of Mode of Issue Coupon rate Maturity date Amount
Issue; and Securities | issuance price raised
Allotment (Rs.) per (Rs.)in
NCD in Crores
Lakhs
June 16, Bandhan 34* Private 10.00 11.90% payable | 34 months and 5 days | 10.00
2020 Bank* (Outstandi | Placement quarterly* from the deemed date
ng as on of allotment (being
March 31, June 16, 2020)*
2023)
July 26, Global 320 Private 10.00 8.80% payable February 01, 2028 32.00
2022; and | Access Fund Placement quarterly
August 01, | LP
2022
December | Global Accesy 206 Private 10.00 8.90% payable December 30, 2027 20.60
21, 2022; Fund LP Placement half-yearly
and
December
30, 2022

*Redeemed on April 21, 2023, on its maturity.

Statutory Disclosure:

(i) The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by
the housing finance company after the date on which the non-convertible debentures became due for
redemption- None;

(if) The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date as aforesaid-
Nil.

11. Debenture Trustee

Details of Debentures Trustees are as follows:

S. No. Name and Details of Debenture Trustees

1. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Address: Ground Floor, Asian Building, 17, R Kamani Rd, Ballard Estate, Fort, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400001
Email 1D: gaurav.mody@idbitrustee.com; Website: www.idbitrustee.com



mailto:gaurav.mody@idbitrustee.com
http://www.idbitrustee.com/

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Address: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune, Maharashtra 411038
Email ID: di. mumbai@ctltrustee.com; Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

12.

Revision in Financial Statements or Board Report, If Any

The Company has not revised its financial Statement or Board Report in respect of any of the previous financial
years either voluntarily or pursuant to the order of the judicial Authority.

13.

Rating Updates

Both Care Ratings Limited and Acuité Ratings & Research Limited have rated the long-term bank facilities and
NCDs of the Company. Care Ratings has assigned a long-term rating of CARE A-; Stable (Single A Minus;
Outlook: Stable), while Acuité Ratings has assigned a long-term rating of ACUITE A- (read as ACUITE A Minus).

The full

reports from both rating agencies can be accessed on the company's website at

https://ummeedhfc.com/en/regulatory-disclosures and the respective rating agencies' websites.

During the year under review, the Company's long-term instruments were assigned/reaffirmed ratings by the rating
agencies. The details of the ratings assigned and any migration during the year are as follows:

Ratin Nature of

Rating Agency Fstg Rating FY22 Rating Letter Dates FY23 Securities/

Borrowing

. CARE A-; CARE BBB+; May 12, 2022,
CAEEmﬁigngs Outlook: Outlook: July 21, 2022, November 28, Long Term Bank
Stable Positive 2022, December 21, 2022 Loan Facilities; and
e ACUITE A-; Non-Convertible
Acuité Ratings & ] ACUITE A-;
Research Limited Og:;g?ek' Outlook: Stable February 09, 2023 Debentures

14.

Investor Education and Protection Fund

There is no dividend declared since inception of the Company, therefore the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013, do not apply.

15.

Corporate Governance

During the review period, the Company has diligently followed all internal guidelines on corporate governance,
aligning with the Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. We have developed comprehensive

internal

guidelines on Corporate Governance, which are accessible on our website at

https://www.ummeedhfc.com/company-policies.

Furthermore, we have prepared a separate report on Corporate Governance (CG Report), which includes details
regarding the composition of the Board, committees of the Board and their composition, general body meetings,
any instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as well as information on
penalties and strictures as specified in the RBI Circular dated April 19, 2022, on "Disclosures in Financial
Statements - Notes to Accounts of NBFCs," in conjunction with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The CG Report is enclosed as Annexure “I” to this Report.

16.

Composition of Board of Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel

The composition of the Board and its Committee is in accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,

read with Chapter IX: Corporate Governance under RBI’ Master Directions on HFCs and Scale Based Regulation
Framework with an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors.
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During the year under review, there were no changes in occurred in Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

A list of Directors and KMPs as of March 31, 2023, is provided below:

Name Designation DIN/PAN A Dqte o
ppointment
Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Managing Director 02582205 27-01-2016
Mr. Sachin Grover Whole Time Director 07387359 27-01-2016
Mr. Inderjit Walia Independent Director 01812849 23-03-2018
Ms. Geeta Mathur Independent & Woman Director 02139552 27-02-2019
Mr. Vinayak Prabhakar Shenvi Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00694217 29-12-2020
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 03559152 27-02-2019
Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 07504945 26-02-2020
Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar Non-Executive Director 01295880 10-07-2019
Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra Chief Financial Officer ASAPM5138R 14/08/2020
Mr. Nitin Kumar Agrahari Company Secretary AXIPA3334J] 11/06/2020

Fit and Proper Criteria

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the RBI Master Direction for HFCs, 2021,
all the Directors have executed Deeds of Covenants with the Company in the format prescribed under master
directions, and the Company has been receiving the ‘Fit and Proper’ declarations every year from each of Directors
along with other annual disclosures, including independency declarations from Independent Directors. Based on
the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the RBI Directions, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company are disqualified from being appointed/
continue to hold directorship in the company.

Board Meetings

The Company had 11 (eleven) Board meetings during the financial year. The Company held a minimum of one
board meeting in every quarter with a gap of not exceeding 120 days between two consecutive board meetings.

The Corporate Governance Report, provided as Annexure “I” to this Board Report, includes details regarding
Directors, the number and dates of Board, Committee and Annual General Meetings, they have attended during the
year.

17. General Meetings

Total Attendance
Numbers of Numb :
Tvoe of Meetin Date of Members I\L;Im (E)rs 0
yp g Meeting entitled to embers S:]/" thT?;?“
areholdin
atter_1d Attended .
Meeting
7 Annual General Meeting 25/07/2022 13 79.11%
1%t Extra-ordinary General Meeting for FY 2022-23 23/12/2022 13 78.93%
2" Extra-ordinary General Meeting for FY 2022-23 29/03/2023 13 7 79.11%

18. Committees of the Board

Our Board of Directors has established several committees, including the Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, and CSR Committee, to enhance focus and attention on the Company's affairs. Regular
reviews are conducted by the Board to ensure that these committees adhere to corporate governance standards,
including their composition, terms of reference, meeting frequency, and compliance with their respective functions.
The minutes of committee meetings, along with updates, are presented to the Board during its subsequent meetings.
Detailed information regarding the composition and terms of reference of each committee, the Company's Policy




on Directors' appointment and remuneration, and the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and
independence of Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, attached as Annexure “I” to this
Report.

19. Declaration of Independent Directors

Both Independent Directors of the Company have provided the necessary declaration confirming their
independence in accordance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. They have also affirmed compliance
with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, certifying their eligibility
as Independent Directors and confirming that they are not disqualified from continuing in their roles.

20. Separate Meetings of Independent Directors

During the year under review on March 16, 2023, the Independent Directors held a separate meeting in accordance
with Clause VII of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013. This meeting allowed for a comprehensive review
and evaluation of the performance of non-independent directors, the Chairman, and the Board as a whole.

21. Board Evaluation

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee conducted an annual evaluation of the Board's performance, as well
as the performance of individual Directors and Committees. The evaluation was carried out as per the terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board Evaluation Policy, in line with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The findings and ratings of the evaluation were shared with
the Board of Directors during a meeting, presented by the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

22. Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, Directors of your Company state and
confirm that:

a) In preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ending 31 March 2023, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with the proper explanation relating to the material departures
and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013;

b) The directors had adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently and have made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company as of 31t March 2023 and of the profit or loss of the company for that period;

c) Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls in the Company that are adequate and are operating
effectively*; and

f)  The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

*This statement is relevant for listed companies, whereas Ummeed, being a private company and having only listed
its non-convertible debt securities during the period under review on BSE in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, issued on private placement basis, not to be considered as listed company w.e.f.
1% April 2021 for the purpose of the proviso to clause (52) of section 2 of the Act, vide insertion of Rule 2A by the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Second Amendment Rules, 2021.

23. Internal Financial Controls / Systems

A comprehensive disclosure regarding the Internal Financial Controls and Systems is provided in the section on
Internal Control Systems and their adequacy, which can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report attached as Annexure “VI” to this Report.




24. Public Deposits

Your Company has received a Certificate of Registration from the National Housing Bank under Section 29A of
The National Housing Bank Act, 1987, allowing it to operate as a housing finance company without accepting
public deposits. Consequently, the Company neither accepts nor has accepted any public deposits during the year
under review. A Board Resolution regarding this matter was also passed by the Board of Directors during their
meeting held on May 18, 2023, in accordance with the Master Direction.

25. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

As per Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, details regarding loans made, guarantee given, or security
provided by a housing finance company in the ordinary course of its business, are exempted from disclosure in the
Annual Report. The details of Investment made by the Company for the same are provided in Note No. 8 & 9 to
the financial statements of the Company for the year ending 31 March 2023.

26. Employees Stock Options Plan (ESOP)

The ESOP 2017 was approved by shareholders on May 25, 2017, authorizing the grant of a total of 20,60,658
Employee Stock Options to eligible employees. Each option allows employees to acquire one fully paid-up Equity
Share, in accordance with ESOP 2017 and relevant regulations. The purpose of this plan is to attract and retain
talent by incentivizing employee performance for the growth of the company.

During the financial year ending on March 31, 2023, amendments to the ESOP 2017 were approved by the
shareholders during their meetings held on December 23, 2022, and March 29, 2023. The purpose of these
amendments was to provide immediate benefits to employees who have been granted options and aimed to clarify
the exercise period of vested options in case of employee separation; and to establish a trust responsible for
administering the plan, respectively. On April 17, 2023, the Ummeed Employee Welfare Trust ("Trust™") was set
up by the Company to fulfill this administrative role for the benefit of the Company's employees. It is important to
note that no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in relation to shares purchased directly by employees under
a scheme were recorded during the year.

For further information, please refer to the attached Annexure “III” to this Report, which provides details
regarding the employee stock options under Ummeed's Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP 2017" or
"Plan™), as per the provisions of Rule 12(9) and 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, as of March 31, 2023.

27. Human Resource, Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

As of March 31, 2023, our company employed 892 individuals, with a commitment to gender-agnostic recruitment,
prioritizing gender diversity in leadership, adhering to social and environmental laws, providing fair compensation,
and ensuring a safe work environment. For further details on human resources and industrial relations, including
additional employment figures, please refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached as
Annexure “VI” to this Report.

28. Directors’ Remuneration

As a private limited company, the Company is not required to disclose particulars under section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014. Details of remuneration, including sitting fees and commissions, paid to Executive Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP), and Non-Executive Directors can be found in the annual return filed in Form MGT-7. The annual
return is available on the Company's website at https://ummeedhfc.com/en/regulatory-disclosures, along with the
financial statements enclosed with this report.

29. Related Party Transactions

The Company has a Related Party Transactions Policy in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory directions.
The policy can be found in Annexure “I'V” and on the Company's website at www.ummeedhfc.com, as required
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by the Reserve Bank's Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021. The transactions with related parties during the year were conducted in an ordinary course
of business and at arm's length prices, as per the provisions of Section 2(76) read with Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Relevant details can be found in the notes forming part of the financial statements enclosed with this
report.

Disclosure as per Regulation 53(f) of SEBI LODR, 2015: Your Company does not have any holding or subsidiary
company. Further, relevant additional disclosures pursuant to regulation 53(f) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 are provided
in note no. 37 forming part of the audited financial statements.

30. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Your Company does not have any joint venture, associate company or subsidiary company as on March 31, 2023.
31. ESG Activities and Reporting

Throughout the fiscal year, we prioritized ESG compliance, particularly in areas such as assessing and managing
environmental and social risks and ensuring labor and working condition standards. We are pleased to present an
overview of our company's Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) activities, aligned with the International
Finance Corporation (IFC) Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability.

Our Key ESG Initiatives, were:

e We actively engaged stakeholders through CSR programs, customer surveys, and community participation,
fostering transparency and collaboration.

e Arobust mechanism was established to address customer concerns, with regular reporting to the Board for
transparency and improvement.

o ESG diligence is embedded in our systems and processes, reinforced by ESG principles in sanction letters
and loan agreements viz. strict prohibition of forced and child labor, greater transparency to and speedy
redressal of grievances of our customers, compliance with environment laws, property insurance against
natural disasters, etc.

Positive ESG Impacts:
e Long-term home loans for housing development, promoting affordable housing.
e Improved water and sanitation access for underserved communities.
e Assistance to first-time home buyers through government subsidies, fostering homeownership.
e Enhanced living standards for our customers with better household facilities.

Employee Well-being and Labor Compliance:
e Giving above-government mandated minimum wages, incentives, and retirement benefits for overall
employee satisfaction.
e Free health insurance and free doctor consultation and compliance with labor laws through external
consultants.
o Comprehensive grievance redressal policies, whistleblower mechanisms, and regular employee training
for a supportive work environment.

Empowering Women:

e Encouraging women as co-homeowners, upgrading facilities for better hygiene conditions for women,
financial literacy program for women entrepreneurs and supporting free girl child education through
community led learning centers.

e Extending whistleblower and POSH policies to external parties, promoting inclusivity.

Customer Service and Grievance Redressal:
o Consistently achieving 80% customer satisfaction through third-party surveys.




e Compliance with the Fair Practice Code and efficient complaint resolution through the Synorig CRM
system.

32. Corporate Social Responsibility

We have implemented a CSR Policy in compliance with section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The policy, approved by the Board, focuses on quality
education, healthcare infrastructure, sports promotion, and environmental protection. Details of the CSR
Committee can be found in the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this report. The complete CSR Policy is
available on our website at https://www.ummeedhfc.com/company-policies. For a comprehensive overview of the
CSR activities undertaken during the year, please refer to the annual report on CSR activities as annexed with this
report at Annexure “11”.

33. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy: Information on Conservation of energy as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable, since your Company is
engaged in the business of providing home loans and do not engage in any kind of manufacturing or producing
activities hence no annexure forms part of this report.

Technology Absorption: The management of our company actively keeps pace with technological advancements
in the housing finance industry. We have adopted state-of-the-art transaction, billing, and accounting systems, as
well as robust risk management solutions. In the past year, we have successfully implemented various technological
enhancements to improve the customer experience and streamline our processes. These include the launch of Power
Partner and Saarthi Apps for digitizing our distribution channel, obtaining ISO 27001:2013 Certification,
integrating with NHB ADF for monthly data reporting, automating business reports, data center migration to AWS,
introducing a customer mobile app, and integrating E-KYC and bank statement retrieval through API in our
sourcing module. Additionally, we have embraced technology in our HR practices, such as the implementation of
an improved HRMS platform (PeopleStrong) and the launch of Amber, an Al-based employee conversational bot.
It is noteworthy that the Company has not imported any technology during the last three years, calculated from the
beginning of the current financial year. Furthermore, no expenditure has been incurred on Research and
Development activities.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: Foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo for the period under review was
as follows:

a) Earnings: Nil

b) Outgo: INR 77.64 Lakh

34. Risk Management

At Ummeed, effective risk management is ingrained in our operations and serves as a fundamental pillar of our
business strategy. Our Risk Management Committee (RMC), consisting of two Executive Directors and CXO-level
staff, played a pivotal role during FY23, while holding regular monthly meetings with senior management to
address emerging risks and ensure robust risk governance.

RMC reports directly to the Board, and during FY23, the management had provided comprehensive disclosures on
our progressive risk management systems periodically to the Board, as mandated by Paragraph 53.1.a of RBI's
Master Directions on HFCs, 2021. In addition to a broad focus on risk management, the RMC placed specific
emphasis on liquidity risk management. They diligently oversaw our resources to ensure the prudent fulfillment of
obligations. Our unwavering commitment to effective risk management safeguards our business and protects the
interests of our stakeholders. We continuously enhance our practices to mitigate risks and drive sustainable growth.
For amore detailed insight into our risk management approach, kindly refer to the attached Management Discussion
and Analysis Report at Annexure “VI”.
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35. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

In accordance with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, along with Section
177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the provisions of RBI's Master Directions on HFCs, 2021, your Company
implemented a Whistleblower Policy ("the Policy"). This Policy serves as a vigilant mechanism for employees to
raise concerns regarding violations of the Code of Conduct, legal or regulatory requirements, and incorrect or
misrepresented financial statements and reports.

The Audit Committee oversees the effective functioning of the vigil mechanism, and all employees have direct
access to the committee. To ensure transparency, the Policy is available on the company website at
https://www.ummeedhfc.com/company-policies.

36. Significant and Material Orders Passed

During the year under review and till the date of this report, there were no significant and/or material orders passed
by the regulators, courts or tribunals, impacting the going concern status and future operations of your Company.

37. Penalty levied by NHB/RBI or other Regulators

There was no penalty levied or strictures imposed on the Company by the RBI, NHB, SEBI, Stock Exchanges, or
any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three financial years.

38. Audit & Auditors

a) Statutory Audit

M/s. Agiwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration no.: 000181N), has been appointed as the
Statutory Auditor of the Company in compliance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and RBI's Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Auditors dated April 27,
2021. The shareholders approved their appointment at the Annual General Meeting for a consecutive term of three
financial years, ending on March 31, 2024. During FY 2023, M/s. Agiwal & Associates conducted the statutory
audit and issued an unmodified opinion in the Auditors' Report for the audited financial results of the quarter and
year ended March 31, 2023. The audit report and financial statements are enclosed with this report.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed their independence as required by the Companies Act, 2013 and have
provided the eligibility certificate in Form B, along with the necessary information, for conducting the statutory
audit for FY 2023.

b) Statutory Auditor’s Report

The Statutory Auditors' Report, along with the accompanying notes to the accounts, is self-explanatory and requires
no further comments or elaborations under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Statutory Auditors have
not issued any adverse comments, qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers in their report on
the financial statements for FY2023.

¢) Fraud Reporting

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of fraud to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, in accordance with Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

d) Cost Records and Cost Audit

The Company being a housing finance company, is not required to maintain cost records or undergo cost audit as
per the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as it is not applicable to its business activities.
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e) Secretarial Audit

M/s Navneet K Arora & Co. LLP, Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor in
compliance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor's report, attached as Annexure
“V”, contains no qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks.

f) Internal Audit

The Company has a well-aligned internal audit system, tailored to its size and business needs, with a defined scope,
functioning, periodicity, and methodology approved by the Audit Committee. The board-appointed Internal
Auditor conducts comprehensive audits of our operations and records. Regular reports, including management's
actions to address identified deficiencies, are submitted to the Audit Committee. Detailed disclosure on the Internal
Audit can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, provided as Annexure “VI” to this Report.

39. Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

40. Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, there was no application filed by or against the Company for corporate insolvency
process under IBC before the NCLT.

41. One-Time Settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution

No instances of one-time settlements with any bank or financial institution were recorded.

42. Annual Return

In compliance with Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for the financial year ended

March 31, 2023, is accessible on the Company's website and can be found at https://Jummeedhfc.com/en/regulatory-
disclosures.

43. Regulatory and Statutory Compliances

The Company operates under the supervision and regulation of various statutory bodies, such as the MCA, RBI,
NHB, S. Ex., SEBI and IRDAI. To ensure compliance, the Board of Directors received regular updates on circulars,
notifications, guidelines, and directions issued by these regulatory authorities. The Company has diligently followed
all applicable circulars, notifications, and guidelines. Furthermore, your Company is fully compliant with the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the corresponding rules, including Secretarial Standards, as
well as other applicable statutory requirements.

44. Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder

Ummeed maintains a zero-tolerance policy towards sexual harassment in the workplace and strictly adheres to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 ("POSH") and its
rules. We have established an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) comprising members as required by law to
oversee compliance with POSH and related regulations. The names and contact details of ICC members are
prominently displayed on notice boards at all our offices/branches. Regarding statutory disclosures under POSH,
we are pleased to share the following details:

o Number of cases reported during the year: Nil

o Number of cases closed during the year: Nil

o Numbers of cases open as on March 31, 2023: Nil
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45. Disclosures under NHB Act, 1987, RBI Master Directions, 2021 and Scale Based Regulatory
Framework

e QOur Company is fully compliant with all the applicable provisions under Directions, Guidelines, and
Circulars issued by RBI/ NHB, as well as of the NHB Act, 1987.

e AsaNon-Deposit taking HFC, we have passed a Board Resolution to not to hold or accept Public Deposits,
and therefore, we are not required to make disclosures as per Para 44.1 and 44.2 of the Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

e We have provided relevant disclosures as required under Paragraph 16 of the HFC (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021, as well as per circulars issued under the Scale based Regulatory Framework of the
Reserve Bank of India, in the attached financial statements.

e The Board of Directors regularly reviews compliance under all the applicable provisions under Directions,
Guidelines, and Circulars issued by RBI/ NHB, including the Fair Practices Code, Corporate Governance,
Progressive Risk Management System, and the functioning of the grievance redressal mechanism at
different management levels.

e Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report to the Shareholders, has
been attached as part of this report as Annexure “VI”.

46. Listing with Stock Exchange

The Company has diligently maintained compliance with all listing obligations and disclosure requirements as
stipulated under SEBI LODR, 2015 or by BSE, on which its debentures are listed. Additionally, the Company has
remained current in the payment of annual listing fees, ensuring its continued adherence to regulatory obligations.
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Annexure -

Corporate Governance Report
Financial Year 2022-23

Corporate Governance is the system through which companies are governed and controlled by
management under the direction and supervision of the Board, with the best interests of all stakeholders
in mind. It encompasses more than mere compliance with laws, rules, and regulations. It involves the
application of best management practices and adherence to the highest ethical principles in all business
dealings, with the aim of achieving the company's objectives, enhancing stakeholder value, and fulfilling
social responsibilities.

At Ummeed, our Board provides strategic input on basic governance issues and carries out supervision
through its committees, to maintain proper controls, strengthen accountability and integrity, with greater
emphasis on transparency. Further, in accordance with Para 53.1.b of RBI's Master Direction on HFCs,
the Board of Directors receives periodic updates regarding compliance with corporate governance
standards. These updates also include detailed information on the composition of various committees,
their roles and functions, the duration of meetings, and the coverage of compliance review functions.
The purpose of providing this information is to ensure that the Board has a comprehensive understanding
of our adherence to corporate governance practices. It allows for regular review and oversight, enabling
the Board to make informed decisions in line with regulatory requirements and best practices.

In compliance with the RBI Circular dated April 19, 2022, on "Disclosures in Financial Statements -
Notes to Accounts of NBFCs," and with the objective of meeting the specified disclosure requirements
outlined in Paragraph C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable to our company, we present the following report on Corporate
Governance:

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Our corporate governance philosophy is rooted in ethics, transparency, and accountability. We prioritize
the best interests of all stakeholders and adhere to the highest standards to create sustainable value. Our
Board of Directors provides strategic guidance and oversight, and we evaluate performance to ensure an
effective governance structure. We emphasize avoiding conflicts of interest, appointing auditors with
integrity, and maintaining a comprehensive Code of Conduct. Transparency, compliance, and continuous
improvement are central to our approach. At Ummeed, we believe strong corporate governance is crucial
for our success, stakeholder trust, and long-term value creation.

1. BOARD
Composition of Board

The Board consists of total 8 (eight) Directors, which comprises of 2 (two) Executive Directors, 4
(four) Non-Executive Directors and 2 (two) Independent Directors including 1 (one) Woman
Independent Director. They all have with them considerable experience in their respective fields.
The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director.

The composition, category, remuneration, etc. of Directors on the Board, are as follows:

Name of | Directo | Capacity/ DIN No. of Remuneration (Rs. in

Director r Since | Category other Lakhs) No. of
(ie., Directo _ _ :
Executive/ -rships Salary Sitting Co_mm| shf’:lres held
Non- and Fee -ssion in, an_d
Executive/ other convertible
Chairman/ Compen Instruments
Promoter -sation held in the
Nominee/ NBFC
Independent)
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Mr. 27-01- | Managing 02582205 - 236.35 - 89,92,172
Ashutosh 2016 /Executive Equity
Sharma Director; & Shares,
Chairman 21,44,285
OCRPS and
3,86,279
CCPS
Mr. Sachin | 27-01- | Whole Time / | 07387359 - 148.01 - 1,42,973
Grover 2016 Executive Equity
Director Shares,
2,90,175
OCRPS
Mr. 23-03- | Independent 01812849 1 - 13.60 -
Inderjit 2018 Director
Walia
Ms. Geeta | 27-02- | Independent 02139552 12 - 12.10 -
Mathur 2019 &  Woman
Director
Mr. 29-12- | Non- 00694217 2 - - -
Vinayak 2020 Executive
Prabhakar Director
Shenvi (Nominee of
CX AIF &
Thyme,
Equity
Investor)
Mr. Kartik | 27-02- | Non- 03559152 12 - - -
Srivatsa 2019 Executive
Director
(Nominee of
LightRock,
Equity
Investor)
Mr. Nirav | 26-02- | Non- 07504945 3 - - -
Vinod 2020 Executive
Mehta Director
(Nominee of
NHPEA,
Equity
Investor)
Mr. Rajiv | 10-07- | Non- 01295880 - - 6.00 -
Yashwant | 2019 Executive
Inamdar Director

There is no change in the composition of the Board during the financial year under review.

Board Meetings:

The Board conducts regular meetings to discuss and make decisions regarding business strategies,
policies, and review the Company's financial performance. Prior to each Board Meeting, a notice is
provided to all Directors. The agenda, along with relevant notes and other necessary information, is
also shared separately in advance with each Director. In exceptional cases, these materials may be
presented at the meeting. This approach ensures that the Board is equipped with timely and informed
information to make effective decisions.

In FY2022-23, the Board held a total of 11 meetings. The Company ensured that a minimum of one

Board Meeting took place in each quarter, with no more than 120 days between consecutive
meetings. Please find the number and dates of the meetings below:




Total No. of Attendance
S. No. of BRI G e Directors on :
Meeting g the Date of No. of Directors | o, ~¢ Attendance
Meeting attended

01/2022-23 27/05/2022 8 8 100.00%
02/2022-23 06/06/2022 8 8 100.00%
03/2022-23 26/07/2022 8 5 62.50%
04/2022-23 09/08/2022 8 6 75.00%
05/2022-23 08/09/2022 8 8 100.00%
06/2022-23 10/11/2022 8 7 87.50%
07/2022-23 25/11/2022 8 8 100.00%
08/2022-23 09/12/2022 8 8 100.00%
09/2022-23 20/12/2022 8 6 75.00%
10/2022-23 09/02/2023 8 5 62.50%
11/2022-23 16/03/2023 8 7 87.50%

The details of attendance of the Directors at Board Meetings and at the last AGM held during FY
2022-23 are given below:

Name of the Directors Board Meetings AGM

No. of Meetings No. of % Of Attendance

which director Meetings Attendance

was entitled to Attended

attend

Mr. Ashutosh Sharma 11 10 90.90% Yes
Mr. Sachin Grover 11 11 100.00% Yes
Mr. Inderjit Walia 11 10 90.90% -
Ms. Geeta Mathur 11 11 100.00% Yes
Mr. Vinayak Prabhakar Shenvi 11 11 100.00% -
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa 11 7 63.63% -
Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta 11 8 72.72% -
Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar 11 8 72.72% -

Below table is providing attendance of Director in each meeting:

. Board Meeting No.
Name of Director 1t | ond | grd | g4t [ gth | gth | 7th | g | 9t [ 10% [ qqth
Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y
Mr. Sachin Grover Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Inderjit Walia Y Y - Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Ms. Geeta Mathur Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Vinayak Prabhakar Shenvi Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Y Y - Y Y - Y Y Y - -
Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta Y Y Y - Y Y Y Y - - Y
Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar Y Y - - Y Y Y Y Y - Y

It is important to note that there is no relationship between the Directors of the Company. They
function independently and make decisions based on their individual expertise and responsibilities.

As of the date of this report, none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any shares or convertible
instruments in the Company. They do not have any direct financial interest other than receiving
sitting fee wherever applicable.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee is constituted with desired composition, powers, functions and duties as laid down
in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Audit Committee meets at least on a quarterly basis.
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The Audit Committee of the Board operates in strict adherence to the relevant provisions of
applicable regulatory frameworks, directions, and the specified terms of reference established by the
Board. The committee holds the responsibility of overseeing all types of audits, including statutory,
secretarial, internal, and information security audits, as well as any other audits required by
regulatory directions or guidelines.

As part of its mandate, the committee regularly conducts comprehensive reviews and examinations
of various reports and processes. This includes thorough assessments of audit and inspection reports,
compliance reports, borrowing covenant compliance reports, and investment concentration. These
reviews are conducted to ensure strict adherence to established standards and regulations in these
areas. Additionally, the committee actively monitors and oversees compliance reporting, internal
audit reports, and engages in discussions with the Statutory Auditors on a quarterly basis regarding
statutory audit observations.

In compliance with SEBI Circular dated November 4, 2019, which mandates credit rating agencies
to meet with the audit committee of the rated entity with listed NCDs, officials from Rating Agencies
regularly meet with members of the Audit Committee. The committee also performs quarterly
reviews of the company's investment positions, ensuring adherence to the company's investment

policy.

Furthermore, the committee evaluates the sufficiency and effectiveness of systems required for
internal control, including financial reporting and financial controls. It ensures that critical and
significant internal systems and processes undergo an Information System Audit conducted by a
Certified Information System Auditor (CISA) at least once every two years. This audit aims to assess
operational risks faced by the company and ensure the robustness of its internal control systems.

The Audit Committee meets regularly, and not less than one meeting is held every quarter. The Audit
Committee met 7 (Seven) times during FY 2022-23 i.e., on 27/05/2022, 09/08/2022, 07/09/2022,
10/11/2022, 08/12/2022, 09/02/2023 and 14/03/2023.

The attendance status of the Members at these meetings is provided in the table given below.
Presently, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of following members:

. . Number of Meetings | Number of Meetings
Name of the Member Designation Held Attended
Ms. Geeta Mathur Chairperson* 7 7
Mr. Inderjit Walia Member 7 7
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Member 7 6

*Chairman/Chairperson of the Audit Committee is being elected every time during the meeting.
All recommendations made by the Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) plays a pivotal role in supporting the Board
of Directors in fulfilling their governance and supervisory responsibilities concerning human
resource management and compensation. The committee's primary function is to review and provide
recommendations, as necessary, to the Board on matters such as human resource policies, incentive
plans for employees, performance evaluations, feedback mechanisms, employee satisfaction, and
development initiatives.

Additionally, the NRC assists in managing the nomination and remuneration processes for Board
members, including Independent Directors. When evaluating the appointment or reappointment of a
director, the committee ensures several important considerations are taken into account.

Firstly, it verifies that there are no conflicts of interest that could compromise the independence of
the Director. This is crucial to safeguard their objectivity and protect against potential threats to their




independence. Secondly, the committee ensures that the proposed appointee meets the "fit and
proper" standards, which involve assessing their qualifications, experience, and integrity. Lastly, the
committee confirms that the proposed appointee is not disqualified, according to the relevant laws or
regulatory directives, from serving as a director of the company.

In summary, the NRC provides invaluable assistance to the Board by reviewing and recommending
human resource policies, compensation plans, and performance evaluation processes including board
evaluation process. The committee also oversees the nomination and remuneration of Board
members, ensuring their independence, compliance, and suitability for the role.

During the year under review, NRC met 3 (three) times on 10/06/2022, 08/12/2022 and 14/03/2023.
All recommendations made by the Committee to the Board during the year were accepted by the
Board of Directors. This Committee presently comprises of following members:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meeting Held No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Inderjit Walia Chairman 3 3
Ms. Geeta Mathur Member 3 2
Mr. Nirav Mehta Member 3 3

Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Member 3 3

Our company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) Policy, which has been
approved by the Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The policy takes into consideration the applicable rules, including the Reserve Bank's Master
Directions of 2021 for HFCs issued on February 17, 2021, and RBI's Circular dated April 29, 2022,
on Guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management in
NBFCs ("RBI Guidelines").

The salient features of the NRC Policy are as follows:

e The policy adheres to the Companies Act, 2013, RBI Directions and Guidelines, and applicable
rules.

e It aims for reasonable and transparent remuneration, performance-based rewards, alignment
with company interests, diverse leadership, and appropriate pay structures.

e The policy covers Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management, and other
identified employees.

e The NRC oversees hiring, compensation, policy formulation, and avoiding conflicts of interest.

¢ The NRC selects candidates based on integrity, qualifications, and fit and proper criteria, and
ensures succession planning.

e Remuneration is tied to performance, with fixed and variable components, including salary,
perquisites, incentives, and bonuses. Malus and Clawback related provisions are also there.

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company is hosted on Company’s website at
https://lummeedhfc.com/en/company-policies.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBLITY COMMITTEE

The company's commitment to making a positive impact on society is reflected in its CSR initiatives.
It has formulated a CSR Policy in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (CSR
Policy) Rules, 2014. This policy serves as a guide for the company to fulfill its responsibility as a
good corporate citizen and outlines the guidelines and mechanisms for implementing socially
beneficial programs that contribute to the welfare and sustainable development of the community.

The Board had constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with the following
terms of references:
o Formulating and recommending a CSR Policy that outlines the specific activities to be
undertaken by the company, as mandated in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
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¢ Recommending CSR expenditure to the Board.
Monitoring the implementation, reviewing and reassessing of CSR Policy.

e Establishing a transparent monitoring system to track the progress and implementation of
CSR programs, or activities undertaken by the company.

e The committee collaborates with external agencies or entities to execute CSR programs in
line with the CSR Policy and reviews their performance periodically.

e The committee may delegate specific responsibilities to subcommittees or individuals when
appropriate and necessary.

e The committee provides regular reports to the Board, updating them on the progress,
initiatives, and outcomes of CSR activities.

During FY 2022-23, the CSR Committee held its meeting on 04/06/2022, and all the
recommendations made by the Committee to the Board during the year were accepted by the Board
of Directors. This Committee presently comprises of the following members:

. . No. of Meetin No. of Meetin
Name of the Member Designation Held g Attended g
Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar Chairman 1 1
Mr. Inderjit Walia Member 1 1
Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Member 1 1

The CSR policy of the Company may be accessed on the Company’s website at
https://ummeedhfc.com/en/company-policies.

5. OTHER COMMITTEES

The Company has constituted various Committees as per the requirement under Reserve Bank’
Master Directions of 2021 on HFCs, as amended from time to time. These Committees meet time to
time as per requirement and predefined periodicity, minimum number of meetings or prescribed
frequency as per applicable laws or RBI Directions / Guidelines.

The list of the Committees and their members as on 31st March 2023 as follows:

Committee | Composition Terms of | Periodicity | Compliance with
References of meetings | coverage and review
function
Risk (@ Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD & | RMC is | Monthly The committee
Management Chairman responsible  for discusses and
Committee (b) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD evaluating  and recommends  various
(RMC) (¢) Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra, | managing the ways  to manage
CFO overall risks faced integrated risks on a
(d) Mr. Rajendra Gupta, NCH by the Company, monthly  basis and
(e) Mr. Alok Prasad, Senior | including reviews action plans
Consultant liquidity risk. submitted by
management.
Asset (@) Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD & | The ALCO | Monthly Members of ALCO
Liability Chairman ensures adherence meet monthly to review
Management | (b) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD to the risk debt position, strategy,
Committee (c) Mr. Alok Prasad, Senior | tolerance/limits liquidity risk
(ALCO) Consultant set by the Board management, and ALM
(d) Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra, | and implements positioning.
CFO the liquidity risk
management
strategy.
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Internal (@) Ms. Beenata Lawrence, | The Company has | Eventbased | No incidents requiring
Complaint Presiding Officer instituted the reporting to the
Committee (b) Ms. Geeta Mathur, | Internal committee were
Independent Director Complaints recorded so far. The
(c) Ms. Sonia Gaba, Executive | Committee  for ICC monitors employee
Assistant and Office Manager | redressal of sexual training and
(d) Mr. Shariq Khan, Head - | harassment compliance with the
Product complaints  and Sexual Harassment of
(e) Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra, | ensuring timely Women at Workplace
CFO treatment of such Act, 2013.
() Mr. Vikas Khandelwal, State | complaints.
Business Head
() Mr. Suraj PS Bhandari, State
Business Head
(h) Mr. Salamrit Virk, External
Member
Customer (@) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD & | The  committee | Monthly The committee meets
Service and Chairman monitors and monthly to review
Grievance (b) Mr. Sandeep Verma, Grievance | reviews the customer  complaints,
Redressal Redressal Officer and Head — | company's service requests, and
Committee Operations processes on escalations to
(¢) Mr. Sharig Khan, Head - | customer service regulatory or judicial
Product and grievance authorities.
(d) Ms. Veena Mishra, Lead — | redressal.
Customer Service
Wilful (@) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD & | The identification | Event based | The committee meets
Defaulter Chairman committee periodically, at least
Identification | (b) Mr. Shariq Khan, Head - | examines and once a quarter, to
Committee Product concludes cases of review cases that may
(c) Mr. Sandeep Verma, Grievance | wilful default and qualify —as  wilful
Redressal Officer and Head — | issues Show default.
Operations Cause Notices to
concerned
borrowers.
Wilful (@) Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD & | The review | Event based | As no wilful default
Defaulter Chairman committee, cases have been
Review (b) Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar, | headed by the MD identified so  far,
Committee Non-Executive Director and comprising therefore, no review of
(c) Mr. Inderjit Walia, | one independent such orders has taken
Independent Director director and one place
non-executive
director, reviews
and confirms the
orders of the
identification
committee.
IT Strategy | (a) Mr. Inderjit Walia, | The IT Strategy | Half yearly | The committee meets at
Committee Independent  Director & | Committee least twice a year to
Chairman reviews and approve and
(b) Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD amends the recommend IT policies,
(c) Mr. Harvinder Gandhi, IT | company's IT oversee IT investments,
Consultant strategies, cyber and review IT projects
(d) Mr. Madan Singh, CTO & CIO | security and strategy.
(e) Mr. Indrajit Lahiri, Senior | arrangements, and
Consultant other IT
(f) Chief Information Security | governance
Officer (CISO) matters.
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Human (@ Mr. Inderjit Walia, | The HR Matters | Periodically | The committee meets
Resource Independent  Director & | Committee periodically to provide
Matters Chairman ensures the guidance on HR
Committee (b) Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar, | adoption of best strategies, review HR
Non-Executive Director practices related projects and plans, and
(c) Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD to employees and support Ummeed's
(d) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD creates an HRD.
(e) Ms. Beenata Lawrence, HR — | attractive  work
Head environment.
Executive (@) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD & | The executive | Quarterly The committee meets
Committee Chairman committee quarterly to discuss
on Fraud | (b) Mr. Bikash Mishra, CFO discusses  high- high-risk RCU cases,
Reporting (c) Mr. Afzal Ahmed, RCU Head | risk RCU cases, classify them as fraud
(d) Mr. Nitin Agrahari, CS & | classifies them as accounts, and ensure
Compliance Officer fraud  accounts, compliance with
and submits reporting requirements.
returns to the
RBI/NHB.
Borrowing & | (a) Mr. Ashutosh Sharma, MD & | The  committee | Periodically | Committee  members
Banking Chairman examines debt meet periodically to
Committee (b) Mr. Sachin Grover, WTD proposals, discuss and review
(¢) Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra, | borrowing limits, proposals from banks.
CFO and approves Committee minutes are
management's shared with the board
proposals related for review and
to bank accounts. monitoring purposes.

6. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors receive sitting fees in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole Time Director is determined by resolutions
passed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors. These
resolutions cover the terms of their appointment and the payment of their remuneration.

Apart from the above, there are no other financial relationships or transactions with the Company. A
detailed breakdown of the remuneration, including sitting fees paid to Directors, can be found in

Section 1 of this Corporate Governance Report.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a. Details of last three AGM of the Company are given below:

Financial Date of Meeting Location Time No. of
Year Special
Resolution
Passed
2021-22 July 25, 2022 Corporate Office of the Company | 11:00 AM -
2020-21 September 30, 2021 Corporate Office of the Company | 11:00 AM -
2019-20 July 22, 2020 Through Video Conferencing 03:30 PM -

b. During the financial year 2022-23, no resolution was passed by way of Postal Ballot.

c. Atthe forthcoming AGM, no resolution is to be passed through Postal Ballot.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

During the year under review, the Company published its Quarterly/Half-Yearly/Yearly Financial
Results in the "Financial Express" newspaper. All material information, including Financial Results,
Board Meeting outcomes, General Meeting details, and SEBI (LODR) disclosure documents, were




communicated through the respective Stock Exchanges' websites and the Company's own website at
https://lummeedhfc.com/en/regulatory-disclosures. The Audit Committee thoroughly examined all
financial results before submission to the Board and the stock exchanges. In FY23, the Company
shared information and documents, such as general meeting notices, audited financial statements,
directors' reports, auditors' reports, etc., to members' registered email/ addresses. Besides these
channels, no official news or announcements were released during the year under review, and no
presentations were made to Institutional investors or Analysts that were published.

9. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

M/s Skyline Financial Service Private Limited, New Delhi is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
(RTA) of the Company for handling the share transfer work both in physical and electronic form. All
the correspondences relating to share transfer, transmission, dematerialization, rematerialization etc.
can be made at the following address:

Skyline Financial Service Private Limited

Address: D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -I, New Delhi - 110 020
Tel: 9999589742

Email: info@skylinerta.com

Contact Person: Mr. Virender Kumar Rana, Director

10. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SECURITIES

Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to
the Company’s securities are:

S.No. | ISIN Securities Type/ Description

1 INES70W01012 Equity Shares

2 INE870W03018 SERIES A CCPS

3 INE870W03026 SERIES B CCPS

4 INES70W03034 SERIES C CCPS

5 INE870W03042 SERIES D CCPS

6 INE870W03059 SERIES E CCPS

7 INE870W07035* 11.90 NCD FV Rs 10,00,000

8 INE870W07068 8.80 LOA 01FB28 FVRS 10 LAC
9 INE870W07076 8.90 LOA 30DC27 FVRS 10 LAC

*Redeemed on April 21, 2023, on its maturity.

Your Company is maintaining connectivity with both the Depositories i.e., NSDL and CDSL. The
members are requested to dematerialize their physical holding in view of various advantages in
dematerialized form. The details of the Shares of the Company dematerialized as on March 31, 2023,
are given hereunder:

Particulars As on March 31, 2023
No. of Shares % age
No. of Shares Dematerialized 4,07,23,807 76.85%
-NSDL 4,07,22,651 76.85%
-CDSL 1,156 0.00%
No. of Shares in Physical Form 1,22,68,848 23.15%
Total 5,29,92,655 100.00%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Ashutosh Sharma Sachin Grover
Managing Director Executive Director
(DIN: 02582205) (DIN: 07387359)

Date: June 23, 2023
Place: Gurugram, Haryana
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Annexure - “II”

The Annual Report on CSR Activities
Financial Year 2022-23

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The company's CSR Policy has been adopted by the Board, following the recommendation of the CSR
Committee. This policy aligns with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").
At Ummeed, we are committed to creating a positive impact on society and contributing to its betterment. Our
CSR Activities encompass a range of initiatives mentioned in Schedule VII of the Act. These include
eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition; promoting healthcare, including preventive measures;
supporting education, especially among children, women, the elderly, and individuals with disabilities;
facilitating vocational skills development; promoting rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic
sports, and Olympic sports; contributing to public-funded universities and institutions; and undertaking rural
development projects and slum area development.
As per the requirements, the Company will undertake CSR activities based on its CSR policy, focusing on
various projects, programs, or activities approved by the CSR Committee. These initiatives will be carried out
through registered trusts, societies, or companies established under Section 8 of the Act. There is no maximum
limit for CSR expenditure, but the Company is mandated by Clause 135 of the Act to spend at least 2% of the
average net profits made during the preceding three financial years on CSR activities annually. The Board of
Directors, upon the recommendation of the CSR Committee, will approve the annual budget for Ummeed's
CSR initiatives. The allocation of funds to specific projects and programs will be determined by the Board.
To ensure accountability and progress, the Company will monitor various CSR activities, projects, and
programs. Regular progress reports will be submitted to the CSR Committee of the Board at periodic intervals
as required by the Committee.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Number of | Number of meetings
S. Name of Director Designation / Nature of | Meetings of CSR | CSR Committee
No. Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
Mr. Rajiv Yashwant | Non-executive Director and
1 - 1 1
Inamdar Chairman
2 Mr. Inderjit Walia Independent Director 1 1
3 Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Managing Director 1 1

3. Web-link for composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects listed on the website: The
Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved are available on the website of the
Company at the following links:
https://ummeedhfc.com/sites/default/files/Composition-ofvarious-committee.pdf;
https://www.ummeedhfc.com/company-policies; and
https://Jummeedhfc.com/en/requlatory-disclosures.

4, Details executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable

5. (a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 1,488.43 Lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 29.77 Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:
Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 29.77 Lakhs
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6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 29.79 Lakhs
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 29.79 Lakhs
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: Refer below table-

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Total Amount Spent Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule V11 as per second proviso to section
for the Financial section 135(6). 135(5).
Year. (Rs) Name of the
Amount Date of transfer Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
Rs. 29.79 Lakhs NA NA NA NA NA
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:
S. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 29.77 Lakhs
2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 29.79 Lakhs
3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 0.02 Lakhs
4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous |Nil
financial years, if any
5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs. 0.02 Lakhs*

*Board has not resolved any amount to be carried forward for set-off in succeeding financial years.
7. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
Section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Mr. Rajiv Yashwant Inamdar
Managing Director Chairman- CSR Committee
(DIN: 02582205) (DIN: 01295880)

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: June 23, 2023




Annexure - “III”

Employees Stock Options Plan (ESOP)
Financial Year 2022-23

The details of the employee stock option pursuant to the provisions of Rule 12(9) and 16(4) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on March 31%, 2023, under Ummeed’ Employees Stock Option Plan 2017
(“ESOP 2017 or “Plan”) to are given below:

Details ESOP 2017*
(a) | Options granted 18,24,070 (outstanding as on March 31, 2023)
(b) | Options vested 3,17,762 (during the financial year ended on March 31, 2023)
(c) | Options exercised 60,466

(d) | The total number of shares (Equity | 60,466
Shares) arising as a result of exercise of

option
(e) | Options lapsed 1,30,469
(f) | The exercise price 10 - 28.50
(9) | Variation of terms of options During the financial year ending on March 31, 2023, amendments to the ESOP

2017 were approved by the shareholders during their meetings held on
December 23, 2022, and March 29, 2023. The purpose of these amendments
was to provide immediate benefits to employees who have been granted
options and aimed to clarify the exercise period of vested options in case of
employee separation; and to establish a trust responsible for administering the
plan, respectively.

(h) | Money realized by exercise of options During the financial year ending on March 31, 2023, the Company did not
receive any amount from the exercise of options by employees. However, in
previous years, the Company received a total of Rs. 15.94 Lakhs, which
includes Rs. 6.05 Lakhs as Share Capital and Rs. 9.90 Lakhs as Share

Premium.

(i) | Total number of options in force 16,36,885 (outstanding as on March 31, 2023)

() | Employee wise details of options granted to

i Key Managerial Personnel Total Options

KMPs Designation Granted till
March 31, 2023

Sachin Grover Whole Time Director & COO 7,59,052
Bikash Mishra Chief Financial Officer 1,25,000
Nitin Agrahari Company Secretary 11,000

ii. | Any other employee who receives a | Name of employees have been granted options amounting to 5% or more
grant of options in any one year of | options granted during the year.

option amounting to five percent or . . Total Options

more of options granted during that year Employees Designation Granted
Amit Sarin National Sales Manager 85,000
Mahesh Adhikari National Head - Credit 60,000
Suneel Yadav Head - Marketing & Distribution 30,000
Sanjay Rawal State Business Head 25,000

iii. | ldentified employees who were granted | Nil

option, during any one year, equal to or

exceeding one percent of the issued

capital (excluding outstanding warrants

and conversions) of the company at the

time of grant;

*Ummeed Stock Option Plan 2017- became effective from May 25, 2018, as per the terms of the scheme.
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Details of voting rights which are not exercised directly by the employees in respect of shares under ESOP 2017 as
per Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, are as follows:

Details Disclosure
(a) | the names of the employees who have not exercised the voting rights directly Not Applicable*
(b) | the reasons for not voting directly Not Applicable*
(c) | the name of the person who is exercising such voting rights Not Applicable*

(d) | the number of shares held by or in favour of, such employees and the percentage of such shares to | Not Applicable*
the total paid up share capital of the company

(e) | the date of the general meeting in which such voting power was exercised Not Applicable*
(f) | the resolutions on which votes have been cast by persons holding such voting power Not Applicable*
(9) | the percentage of such voting power to the total voting power on each resolution Not Applicable*
(h) | whether the votes were cast in favour of or against the resolution Not Applicable*

*During the financial year ending on March 31, 2023, shareholders approved amendments to the ESOP 2017.
Consequently, on April 17, 2023, the Company established the Ummeed Employee Welfare Trust (*'Trust™) to
administer the plan for the benefit of employees. Notably, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting
rights for shares directly purchased by employees under the scheme.




Annexure - “IV”

Related Party Transaction Policy
1.  BACKGROUND

Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “HFC” or “Ummeed”)
is a Private Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and
registered as a Housing Finance Company (“HFC”) with the National Housing Bank (“NHB”).

With the shifting of regulation of HFCs from NHB to RBI, now Reserve Bank of India’s (“RBI”) Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021,
shall apply to all HFCs. Therefore, this Policy is prepared in line with the said RBI Master Direction due to
the onset of change in regulations for HFCs.

The Board of Directors of the Company approved this Policy to define and lay down the procedures based on
applicable laws or regulatory directions to be adopted by the Company while dealing with a related party and
entering into a transaction with a related party.

2. SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
2.1 Policy Objective

The Policy intends to define a governance framework for proper approval and reporting of transactions
between the Company and its Related Parties. This Policy has been framed with the objective of ensuring
compliance with the provisions pertaining to Related Party Transactions in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”),
the Rules made thereunder, INDAS 24 or applicable Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI and the
applicable provisions of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (“Master Directions™). The present policy is designed with an objective to
regulate transactions with related parties and ensure adequate systems and procedures to address potential
conflict of interest and compliance with the provisions of the Act. This policy seeks to serve the following
objectives:

e Toregulate and control related party transactions as intended under Companies Act/ RBI Master Directions;
To ensure that there is a proper system of approval for related party transactions;

To ensure disclosure of the related party transactions entered between the company and its related parties;
To ensure transparency regarding such transactions; and

To improve corporate governance by providing required disclosures of related party transactions.

2.2 Review of Policy

The Policy shall be reviewed periodically on such gaps as considered necessary by the Audit Committee of
the Board and whenever required under the applicable directions, rules and regulations.

2.3 Policy Approval

The Board of Directors or the Audit Committee of the Board may review and may amend this policy, as and
when required by the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

3. POLICY STANDARDS

All Related Party Transactions should be reported to the Audit Committee and referred for approval to the
relevant authorities in accordance with this Policy.

DEFINITIONS
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4.1.6

4.1.7

4.1.8

4.1.9

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and includes any amendment or
modification thereof.

“Arms’ Length Transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is conducted as if they
were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“Audit Committee or Committee” means a committee of the Board of Directors of the Company constituted
under provisions of the RBI Directions and the Companies Act, 2013.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company constituted under provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

“Company” means Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013
and includes

i)Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-Time Director;

ii) Chief Financial Officer; and

iii) Company Secretary.

“Material Related Party Transaction” means a transaction with a Related Party shall be considered material
if the transaction / transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the company as per the last
audited financial statements of the Company or such limits as may be prescribed either in the Companies Act,
2013 or other applicable regulatory directions, from time to time. Provided that in case of any amendment to
the Act or applicable directions, rules and regulations, definition of Material transactions will be deemed to be
changed without any further approval of Audit Committee or Board.

“Related Party”: An entity shall be considered as related to the Company if:

i)  Such entity/ person is a related party as per Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, or

a) Director or a KMP or their relatives, or

b) aFirm, in which a director, manager or his relative is a partner,

c) aPrivate Company in which a director or manager or his relative is a member or director,

d) a Public Company in which a director or manager is a director and holds along with his relatives, more
than 2% of its paid-up share capital,

e) any Body Corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is accustomed to act in
accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a director or manager and

f) any Person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director or manager is accustomed to act as
related party transactions.

g) any Body Corporate which is:
¢ holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company
o asubsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary
e an investing company or the venture of the company

h) a Director (other than an independent director) or KMP of the holding company or his relative

i)  Such entity is a related party under the IND AS 24 or applicable Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI

“Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transactions between the Company on one hand and one or more
related party on the other hand including contracts, arrangements and transactions as envisaged in Section
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or IND AS 24 or applicable Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI

4.1.10“Relative” as per section 2 (77) of the Companies Act, 2013, with reference to any person, shall be deemed

to be relative of another, if he or she is related to another in the following manner, namely: -
i) Father, including step-father;

i) Mother, including step-mother;

iif) Son, including step-son;
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6.2

6.3

iv) Son’s wife;

v) Daughter;

vi) Daughter’s husband,;

vii) Brother, including step-brother;

viii) Sister, including step-sister;

iX) are members of a Hindu Undivided Family;
X) they are Husband and wife.

IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Every Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) shall, at the time of appointment, annually and whenever
there is any change in the information already submitted, provide requisite information (Form MBP-1) about
all persons, firms, entities in which he is interested whether directly or indirectly, to the Company Secretary.
For identification of the Related Parties, a Related Parties (“RP”) list will be prepared basis intimations
received from the Directors/ KMPs or changes in management or shareholding structure from time to time.
The updated RP List will be shared with all relevant functions and shall be referred for monitoring of the
transactions and ensuring compliance at their end.

Each director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be responsible for providing notice to the Board or Audit
Committee of any potential Related Party Transaction involving him or her or his or her Relative, including
any additional information about the transaction that the Board/Audit Committee may reasonably request. The
Board/Audit Committee will determine whether the transaction does, in fact, constitute a Related Party
Transaction requiring compliance with this policy.

Identify the Ordinary Course of Business in relation to company.

The Company’s directors and KMP shall endeavor to intimate such notice of any potential Related Party
Transaction well in advance so that the Audit Committee/ the Board has adequate time to obtain and review
information about the proposed transaction. All Related Party Transactions for the period will be placed for
approval / noting / ratification by the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee, in accordance with this Policy. To
review a Related Party Transaction, the Board / Audit Committee will be provided with all the relevant
information as mentioned in the Act pertaining to the Related Party Transaction, including the name of the
related party, the nature of the relationship, nature of the transaction, whether the transaction is in the ‘Ordinary
Course of Business’, whether the transaction is at ‘Arm’s Length’ and any other matter, as may be required.

APPROVING AUTHORITIES

Audit Committee: Any transaction or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with
related parties shall require the approval of the Audit Committee at a Meeting of the Audit Committee or by
Circulation.

Board of Directors: All “Related Party Transactions which are not in OCB or not at an Arm’s Length” shall
require the prior approval of the Board of Directors at a Meeting of the Board and cannot be passed by
Circulation.

Shareholders: All “Related Party Transactions which are not in OCB or not at an Arms’ Length” and
exceeding the prescribed criteria under Section 188 of the Act, shall require prior approval of the Shareholders’
by means of an Ordinary Resolution passed at a General Meeting.

PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OMNIBUS
APPROVAL

All Related Party Transactions defined/ stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 shall require prior approval
from the Audit Committee. For any ratification or exception, parameters mentioned in this Policy shall be
followed.

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval, on an annual basis, for Related Party Transactions
proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to the following conditions:

The Audit Committee shall lay down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in line with the policy on
Related Party Transactions of the Company and such approval shall be applicable in respect of transactions
which are repetitive in nature;

The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval and that such approval is in the
interest of the Company;




d)

10.

Such omnibus approval shall specify (i) the name/s of the related party, nature of transaction, period of
transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into, (ii) the indicative base price / current
contracted price and the formula for variation in the price if any and (iii) such other conditions as the Audit
Committee may deem fit;

The omnibus approval shall be valid for one year as per rule 6A of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its
Power) Rules, 2014.

Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details are not
available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for such transactions subject to their value not
exceeding Rs.1 crore per transaction.

Omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions in respect of selling or disposing of the undertaking of
the company and/or any other transaction the Audit Committee may deem not fit for omnibus approval.
Additionally, other related party transactions prescribed under the IND AS 24 or applicable Accounting
Standards issued by the ICAI shall be presented to the Audit Committee for its review and noting.

ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

The phrase “Ordinary Course of Business” has not been defined under the Act or Rules made thereunder.
However, the Company will adopt a reasonable approach/ methodology to demonstrate ‘Ordinary Course of
Business’ which shall, inter alia, include the Nature of the transaction, the frequency / regularity / length of
time the company is engaged such transaction, or transactions permitted by the Object Clause in the
Memorandum of Association of the Company or such transaction/ action is consistent with the past practices
and was taken in the ordinary course of the normal day-to-day operations of such company, common
commercial practice i.e. customarily taken, in the ordinary course of the normal day-to-day operations of other
companies that is in the same / similar line of business.

ARM’S LENGTH PRICING

For transactions between two related parties to be considered to be at Arm’s Length Pricing, the transaction
should be conducted between the two parties as if the parties were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of
interest i.e. Arm’s Length Pricing is the condition or the fact that the two related parties transact as independent
(un-related) parties and on an equal footing from one or more of the following aspects viz. nature of goods/
services, risk assumed, assets/ resources employed, key terms/ covenants.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Transactions will be referred to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee
for review /noting and/ or approval as above. Any member of the Committee who has a potential interest in
any Related Party Transaction will recuse himself or herself and abstain from discussion and/ or voting on the
approval of the Related Party Transaction. In the event the management determines that it is impractical or
undesirable to wait until a meeting of the Committee for the approval of a Related Party Transaction, due to
business exigency or otherwise, such transaction may be approved by the Committee by way of circular
resolution in accordance with this Policy subject to applicable statutory provisions of the Act for the time being
in force and as amended from time to time. Every such transaction as approved through resolution passed by
circulation shall be placed within three months from the date of transaction at the Audit Committee meeting
for ratification.

To review a Related Party Transaction, the Committee will be provided with all relevant material information
of the Related Party Transaction as required under the Act, including the terms of the transaction, business
purpose of the transaction, benefits to the Company and to the Related Party, and any other relevant matters.
In determining whether to approve a Related Party Transaction, the Committee may consider the following
factors, among others, to the extent relevant to the Related Party Transaction:

Whether the terms of the Related Party Transaction are fair and on arm’s length basis to the Company and
would apply on the same basis if the transaction did not involve a Related Party;
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Whether there are any compelling business reasons for the Company to enter into the Related Party Transaction
and the nature of alternative transactions, if any;

Whether the Related Party Transaction would affect the independence of an independent director;

Whether the proposed transaction includes any potential reputational risk issues that may arise as a result of or
in connection with the proposed transaction;

Whether the Company was notified about the Related Party Transaction before its commencement and if not,
why pre-approval was not sought and whether subsequent ratification is allowed and would be detrimental to
the Company; and

Whether the Related Party Transaction would present an improper conflict of interest for any director or Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company, taking into account the size of the transaction, the overall financial
position of the director, Executive Officer or other Related Party, the direct or indirect nature of the director’s,
Key Managerial Personnel’s or other Related Party’s interest in the transaction and the ongoing nature of any
proposed relationship and any other factors the Board/ Committee deems relevant.

If the Audit Committee determines that a Related Party Transaction should be brought before the Board, or if
the Board in any case decides to review any such matter or it is mandatory under any law for Board to approve
the Related Party Transaction, then the considerations set forth above shall apply to the Board’s review and
approval of the matter, with such modification as may be necessary. Further, the Audit Committee shall review,
at least on a quarterly basis, the details of Related Party Transactions entered by the Company pursuant to each
of the omnibus approval given.

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE FOLLOWING RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS SHALL NOT REQUIRE APPROVAL OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

i)

i)

12.

13.

14.

Any transaction that involves the providing of compensation to a director or Key Managerial Personnel in
connection with his or her duties to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates, including the
reimbursement of reasonable business and travel expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business.

Any transaction in which the Related Party’s interest arises solely from ownership of securities issued by the
Company and all holders of such securities receive the same benefits pro rata as the Related Party.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY

In the event the Company becomes aware of a transaction with a Related Party that has not been approved
under this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee shall consider the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Related Party Transaction and
failure to report RP Transaction. The Committee, while deciding on the matter, shall evaluate all options
available to the Company, including ratification, revision or termination of the Related Party Transaction and
shall take any such action it deems appropriate including immediate discontinuation or rescission of the
transaction. The Audit Committee, while considering a Related Party Transaction, will have authority to
modify or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy subject to compliance of applicable statutory
provisions for the time being in force.

INTERNAL PROCESS FRAMEWORK

The Company shall institute an appropriate internal process framework to ensure requisite approvals/ noting
of all Related Party Transactions to comply with this Policy.

COMMUNICATION TO ALL THE DIRECTORS AND CONCERNED EMPLOYEES

The relevant aspects of this Policy will be communicated to all the directors and concerned employees/ officials
of the Company.

*khkkk




Annexure - “V”

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
Financial Year 2022-23
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited

Regd. & Corporate Office: Emaar Digital Greens, Tower A, Unit No. 809 - 815 — 8th Floor, Golf Course
Ext Rd, Sector 61, Gurugram, Haryana 122102

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence
to good corporate practices by the Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited (CIN NO-
U65922HR2016PTC057984) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records or
registers maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to us and the representations made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March 2023, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and
Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records or registers
maintained by the Company for the period ended on 315t March 2023, according to the provisions of:

M The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), viz.;

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Only Debt Securities were listed on the Stock Exchanges; hence, no such
transaction was held during the financial year and accordingly the Regulations were not
applicable to the Company during the audit period.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Shares Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; The Company was
not engaged in the activities relating to Registrar to an Issue and was also not acting as Share
Transfer Agent, Hence the aforesaid Regulations were not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employe
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.

Since, the Equity Shares of the Company was not listed, therefore, regulations stated above at

sub-clauses (e) to (h) of clause (v) of this Report, were not applicable on the Company during the

audit period.

(vi)  Other labour, environment and specific applicable Acts / Laws to the Company for which Secretarial
Audit was conducted as an overview audit and was generally based / relied upon the documents
provided to us and Management Confirmation Certificate provided by the Management of the
Company & other audit report and certificates given by other professionals, the company has
complied with the following Acts / Laws applicable to the Company during the audit period:

a) Reserve Bank of India Act read with Non-Banking Financial Company —Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India as amended till date;

b) National Housing Bank Act 1987 as amended till date and the NHB Directions and Guidelines as
applicable to HFCs;

c) The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 & The Employees Deposit-
Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976 and Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952;

d) The Contract Labour (Regulations and Abolition) Act, 1970;

e) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;

f)  Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

g) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

h) The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

i) The Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1958;

j)  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

k) The Child Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) Act, 1986;

I) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

m) Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959 and Rules made
thereunder;

n) Labour Welfare Fund Act;

0) Indian Stamp Act, 1899;

p) Information Technology Act, 2000;

g) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013
read with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Rules 2013;

r) IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015.

s) (Environment (Protection) Act 1986 read with The Environment (Protection) Rules 1986 and other
Environment Laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(if)  Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015, in respect of listing of non-convertible debentures with BSE Ltd.

We have not examined the applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have
been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

We report that during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that:

1) The Company has complied with Companies Act 2013 in respect of constitution of the board with proper
balance of Executive, Non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors. The Changes in the
Composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act;




2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings atleast seven days in advanc
and agenda and detailed notes on agenda were also sent in advance to all the Directors subsequently,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. In case of shorter notice, the
Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with clause 1.3.7 of the Secretarial Standard -1 of ICSI;

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes;

The Company has obtained requisite approval from the Board and filed requisite returns with the
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana and complied with the applicable provisions in
respect of:

A. lssuance of 320 (Three Hundred Twenty) Secured, Rated Unlisted, Redeemable Transferable, Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDS) of face value of INR 10,00,000/- aggregating upto INR.32 Crores
through Private Placement basis of the Company which was approved by Board in the Board
Meeting held on 26" Day of July, 2022 as well as allotment was approved by the Board in its
meeting held on 01t August 2022.

B. Issuance of 206 (Two Hundred Six) Secured, Rated Unlisted, Redeemable Transferable, Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDS) of face value of INR 10,00,000/- aggregating upto INR.20.60
Crores through Private Placement basis of the Company which was approved by Board in the Board
Meeting held on 20" Day of December, 2022 as well as allotment was approved by the Board in its
meeting held on 30" December 2022.

The Company has obtained requisite approval from shareholders and filed requisite returns with
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana and complied with the applicable provisions in
respect of:

A. Amendment in the Ummeed Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 in due compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014 which
was recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board in their
respective meetings held on December 08, 2022, and December 09, 2022, respectively and approved
by the Shareholders in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 23" December 2022.

B. Establishment of the Trust for Administering in the Ummeed Employees Stock Option Plan 2017
and Amendment in the Ummeed Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 in due compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014 which
was recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board in their
respective meetings held on March 14, 2023, and March 16, 2023, respectively and approved by the
Shareholders in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 29" March 2023.

C. Amendment in the Ummeed Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 in due compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014 which
was recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board in their
respective meetings held on March 14, 2023, and March 16, 2023, respectively and approved by the
Shareholders in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 291" March 2023.

There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review
under the Companies Act 2013, Depositories Act and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under
these Acts against / on the Company, its Directors and Officers;

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of
appointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for
Directors and Management Personnel;

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.




We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

a) Public Issue of Shares / Sweat Equity / other securities except as stated above in point No. 4;
b) Buy-back of Securities;

c) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc. and

d) Foreign Technical Collaborations.

For Navneet K Arora &L Co LLP
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Navneet Arora

Managing Partner

CS: 3214, COP: 3005

[ICSI Firm Unique Identification Code: P2009DE061500]
UDIN: F003214E000466809

Place: New Delhi

Date: June 07, 2023

[Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms
an integral part of this report].




To,

The Members,

Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Regd. & Corporate Office: Emaar Digital Greens, Tower A, Unit No. 809 - 815 — 8th Floor, Golf Course
Ext Rd, Sector 61, Gurugram, Haryana 122102

Annexure —“A”

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter as under:

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records on our audit.

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5) The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

6) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Navneet K Arora & Co LLP

Company Secretaries

Sd}-

CS Navneet Arora

Managing Partner

FCS: 3214, COP: 3005
UDIN: F003214E000466809
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 07, 2023




Annexure - “VI”

Management Discussion & Analysis Report
Financial Year 2022-23

This report offers a comprehensive analysis of the global and Indian economies, with a specific focus
on the management discussion and analysis. While the global economy is currently encountering
uncertainties and challenges that affect projected growth, India's economy stands resilient, showcasing
a positive GDP growth rate. This resilience creates appealing investment opportunities. Notably, the
affordable housing finance sector in India is undergoing significant growth, propelled by increasing
demand and government support. We remain attentive to regulatory changes, the impact of economic
instability, rising house prices, and operational risks. To address these concerns, we adopt diligent
monitoring and implement robust risk management practices.

Global and India Economy Overview

The global economic landscape continues to face various challenges and uncertainties, as outlined in
the latest report from the International Monetary Fund (IMF) in January 2023. The report indicates that
global growth is projected to decline to 2.9% in 2023 from 3.4% in 2022, with a subsequent recovery
to 3.1% in 2024. Although, the 2023 forecast is slightly higher than the previous projection, it remains
below the historical average of 3.8%. Factors such as rising interest rates and the ongoing war in Ukraine
continue to exert pressure on economic activity worldwide. However, amidst these challenges, there are
signs of resilience and pockets of growth. It is important to note that global inflation is projected to
decrease from its current levels, with an expected decline to 6.6% in 2023 and further to 4.3% in 2024.
Despite these reductions, inflation remains above pre-pandemic levels, indicating persistent inflationary
pressures.

Inflation projections indicate a decrease in global headline inflation from 8.7% in 2022 to 7.0% in 2023,
primarily driven by lower commodity prices. However, underlying (core) inflation is expected to
decline at a slower pace. It is unlikely that inflation will return to target levels before 2025 in most
cases, underscoring the persistent inflationary pressures faced globally.

On the other hand, the Indian economy has demonstrated resilience and signs of improvement despite
the global volatility. Factors such as business continuity, expansion of manufacturing footprints by both
domestic and international firms, government schemes, innovation, technology-driven value chains,
and strong demand, coupled with rapid vaccination coverage, have contributed to India's economic
growth. In the fiscal year 22-23, India achieved a robust GDP growth rate of 6.9%.

India's strong economic performance enabled it to surpass the UK and become the world's fifth-largest
economy. India is widely regarded as one of the fastest-growing major economies, with a projected
growth rate of 6.5% in the fiscal year 23-24 and an average growth rate of 6.1% over the next five years.
The momentum of India's economic growth positions it on a path to become the third economic
superpower, with ambitions to reach the $10-trillion mark by 2035 from its current fifth spot on the
World Economic League Table. Over the next five years, India's annual GDP growth rate is expected
to average 6.5%.

Considering the structural strength, positive growth outlook, and reasonable valuations, India presents
itself as an attractive investment destination compared to its peers.

Industry Structure and Development

The affordable housing finance (AHF) sector in India has witnessed significant growth and evolution
in recent years, driven by the rising demand for affordable housing and government initiatives to address
the housing crisis. As an affordable housing finance company (AHFC), our company operates within




this dynamic industry, focusing on serving the economically weaker sections (EWS), lower-income
groups (LI1G), and middle-income groups (MIG) segments.

The affordable housing segment can be segmented based on income profiles (EWS/LIG/MIG), source
of income (formal/informal salaried/self-employed), and ticket size, which typically determine the
yields. Since their customer base primarily consists of individuals from the EWS/LIG segments mainly
from informal salaried and self-employed class, with an average ticket size of around INR 1 million,
their focused approach enables them to benefit from stronger pricing power on the loan portfolio,
contributing to overall profitability.

The AHF market in India is witnessing increasing competitive intensity. While banks continue to
dominate the prime home loan segment, AHFCs have emerged as formidable players in the sub-INR
2.5 million segment. These HFCs have demonstrated high growth rates (CAGR of 18%-+ during FY 18-
FY?22) and profitability (Return on Assets of approximately 3%). However, the superior economics of
this segment have attracted intense competition, which may exert pressure on growth rates and super-
normal spreads.

The Indian government has played a crucial role in promoting AHF through initiatives such as the
PMAY and 'Housing for All' schemes. These initiatives have acted as enablers for the sector, facilitating
increased demand for home loans and supporting the growth of AHFCs. The discontinuation of certain
schemes, such as the CLSS scheme under PMAY, is not expected to have a material impact on housing
demand, as the underlying demand drivers remain strong.

While the industry faces challenges such as increasing, tighter liquidity, and relentless competition, we
remain focused on navigating these challenges, capitalizing on opportunities, and adapting our
strategies to maintain our growth trajectory and enhance our market position.

Opportunities

Currently, the AHF space appears to be highly promising, driven by favourable industry specific
dynamics and our strategic initiatives to capture market opportunities. We anticipate continued growth
and sustainable returns in the coming years.

The AHF industry is expected to experience robust expansion, supported by various structural factors.
These factors include improving affordability, increasing urbanization, a rising middle-class population,
and strong government support for affordable housing initiatives. Analysts project a Compound Annual
Growth Rate (CAGR) of 20.58% for the sector during the period from 2022 to 2027, indicating
substantial growth potential.

As an AHFC, we are well-positioned to capitalize on this favourable industry outlook. We have
developed a competitive advantage through our focused approach on the affordable housing segment
and our ability to meet the financing needs of different income profiles. By segmenting our offerings
based on income profiles (EWS/LIG/MIG) and tailoring our products to various ticket sizes, we can
cater to a broader customer base and effectively capture market share.

Our strategic expansion into tier-2, tier-3, and tier-4 cities enhances our growth potential by tapping
into emerging markets. These locations exhibit a growing demand for affordable housing and housing
finance. Through the establishment of new branches and leveraging our expertise, we aim to extend our
reach, cater to new homebuyers, and drive the growth of our loan portfolio. By strategically entering
underserved geographies, we are committed to addressing the pressing need for housing finance in these
regions, providing access to those with limited options. Additionally, approximately one-quarter of our
customer base comprises participants from the MSME sector, highlighting our strong support for small
businesses.

We acknowledge the favourable growth prospects in the industry while also recognizing the potential
challenges that lie ahead. Increasing competitive intensity and other factors may impact loan growth
and margins. To address these challenges, we remain vigilant and continuously refine our strategies and




risk management practices to navigate them effectively. By focusing on operational efficiency,
maintaining credit quality, and driving innovation, we aim to mitigate risks and sustain our profitability
in a dynamic business environment.

We are well-positioned to capitalize on the industry's growth potential by leveraging our competitive
advantages, expanding our presence in emerging markets, and catering to the evolving needs of our
customers. With a customer-centric approach, prudent risk management, and a focus on sustainable
growth, we are confident in delivering long-term value to our stakeholders and achieving our strategic
objectives.

Threats

The AHF industry faces significant threats and challenges that require careful consideration. The
emergence of new waves of COVID-19 infections poses a risk to housing demand, portfolio quality,
and affordability, particularly for self-employed buyers. The duration and severity of the pandemic
remain uncertain, posing a significant threat to the sector.

Inflation and global geopolitical risks have led to increased interest rates, resulting in higher borrowing
costs for HFCs. This leads to lower profit margins and challenges in competing with banks that have
lower borrowing costs.

Rising house prices, which have nearly doubled over the past decade, worsen affordability for first-time
homebuyers. This diminishing affordability threatens the demand for affordable housing finance.
Operational risks are inherent in the high-touch lending nature of affordable housing finance. Proper
customer due diligence, property assessments, and critical functionalities require careful execution or
monitoring. High employee attrition rates in the sector add to operational challenges, impacting
productivity and increasing costs.

To mitigate these threats, close monitoring of regulatory developments, adaptation to market conditions,
and maintaining a resilient balance sheet are essential. Robust risk management practices, efficient
operations, improved employee productivity, and leveraging technology for streamlined processes can
drive economies of scale and ensure long-term sustainability in the face of these challenges.

Analysis of financial performance in terms of operations

Company's total AUM stood at INR 1,143 crore as of March 31, 2023, compared to INR 766 crore at
previous fiscal end, representing a growth of 49% in the loan book. During the year, the company
disbursed loans totalling INR 642 crore, with HL accounting for 58%, LAP for 15%, BL for 12%, and
STBL for 15%. This reflects a 71% increase from the FY22 disbursement of INR 375 crore.

The total revenue increased by 48% to INR 161 crore in FY23 from INR 109 crore in FY22. Interest
expenses increased by 18% to INR 42 crore in FY23 from INR 36 crore in FY22. Employee benefit
expenses stood at INR 52 crore in FY23, compared to INR 35 crore in FY22, representing a 49%
increase.

As of March 31, 2023, the average borrowing cost was 9.35%, while the average portfolio yield was
17.8%, resulting in a spread of 8.45%. The total number of live accounts stood at 16,715, representing
a year-on-year growth of 47%. The net interest margin was 10.01%. The company has built a strong
branch network of 70 branches, adding 26 new branches in the last 12 months, to deliver quality service
to its customers.

The company has demonstrated strong collection efficiency following the post-Covid period,
outperforming its peers, with a collection rate of 99.21% as of March 31, 2023. The collection efficiency
is in the top 10 percentile in the industry. The company has made total ECL provisions of INR 5.46
crore as of March 31, 2023. The company classifies its assets based on the RBI Circular dated November




12,2021, and GNPA as of March 31, 2023, stood at INR 4.18 crore, while the NNPA stood at INR 2.7
crore, while the GNPA ratio stood at 0.41%, which is 32 basis points lower than the previous year.

The company has adopted a detailed approach to calculate its Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provisions,
considering Probability of Default (PD) rates based on various CIBIL score buckets. The company
applies a Loss Given Default (LGD) of 30%, in line with industry benchmarks. The secured nature of
collateral and low Loan-to-Value (LTV) ratio support these assumptions. Additionally, the company
creates a management overlay by increasing the LGD and making additional provisions on restructured
assets. As of March 31, 2023, the total ECL provisions amount to INR 5.46 crore, exceeding the
regulatory requirement of INR 4.40 crore. The total write-offs for the company are minimal, totalling
INR 0.90 crore as of March 31, 2023.

Regarding borrowing, the company has access to diversified sources such as the National Housing Bank
(NHB), development financial institutions, large financial institutions, and PSU and private banks,
allowing for cost-effective long-term financing. During the year, the company borrowed INR 411 crore
at an average rate of 8.56%. The borrowing mix as of March 31, 2023, comprises 84.8% from Term
Loans, 10.2% from Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD), and 5% from other sources such as External
Commercial Borrowings (ECB) and Cash Credit Limit.

In terms of profitability, the company's Profit After Tax increased by 85% year-on-year to INR 35 crore
for FY23. The Return on Assets (ROA) is 3.62%, and the Return on Equity (ROE) is 7.35% for FY23.
Ummeed is well-capitalized with a net worth of INR 488 crore and a capital adequacy ratio of 74.09%.
The company has also maintained a strong liquidity position with INR 145.98 crore of funds, including
cash credit lines and undrawn sanction lines of INR 385 crore.

Outlook

The AHF sector demonstrates a stable outlook, supported by ICRA research indicating a resurgence in
loan growth and improved asset quality, which are expected to drive sector profitability. Ummeed is
well-positioned to capitalize on these positive trends and maintain a steady growth trajectory.

At Ummeed, our commitment to social entrepreneurship and extending credit to the underbanked
segments of society sets us apart. We take pride in promoting gender equality by ensuring 100% women
participation as coborrowers and co-homeowners. Additionally, we prioritize providing upgraded water
and sanitation facilities to our customers, contributing to their overall well-being.

During FY23, our company achieved strong disbursement volumes, resulting in the highest growth in
our loan books. Gross disbursements amounted to Rs. 642 Crores, reflecting a 71% increase compared
to the previous financial year's total disbursements of Rs. 375 Crores. While our market share in the
overall housing finance industry remains relatively small, we recognize the immense growth potential
in the under-penetrated affordable housing market.

Looking ahead, we are prepared to navigate potential margin pressures that the industry may face. Our
focus on controlled credit costs and enhanced operating efficiency will support our overall profitability.
By streamlining our processes and leveraging technology, we aim to optimize our operations and
mitigate any potential impact on our margins. With a stable outlook for the AHF sector and our strategic
positioning within the market, Ummeed is poised for continued growth and sustained success in the
coming years.

Risks and concerns

AHFCs in India face a range of challenges that can impact their operations and financial performance.
These challenges include economic slowdowns affecting housing affordability, rising non-performing
assets, funding difficulties, increased competition, limited affordable housing supply, and the need for
customer awareness.

These concerns are anticipated to persist and interrelate with each other, evolving over time. Economic
downturns can lead to a decline in housing demand and loan disbursements, while a higher NPA ratio




can adversely affect the financial well-being of companies. The availability of affordable funding play:
a vital role and influences the overall operating environment. Additionally, intensified competition may
exert pressure on margins, and the limited supply of affordable housing restricts the growth prospects
for companies operating in this sector.

Moreover, a lack of awareness among potential borrowers regarding the benefits and availability of
AHF options can hinder market penetration. To address this, we actively engage with customers, launch
awareness campaigns, and educate the target audience about our offerings and eligibility criteria to
stimulate demand.

To effectively mitigate these risks and concerns, our company adopts proactive measures and
implements robust risk management strategies. We prioritize adapting to market conditions,
implementing effective risk management practices, driving innovation in our offerings, and actively
engaging with customers to understand their needs and preferences.

Additionally, we place a strong emphasis on regulatory compliance. We maintain a dedicated
committee, implement comprehensive policies, employ cybersecurity measures, and provide regular
reports to regulators and shareholders. Through these efforts, our objective is to effectively manage
risks, meet regulatory expectations, and ensure sustainable growth while delivering value to our
stakeholders.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The company has implemented robust methods for internal control systems, including effective policies,
internal manuals, and processes aligned with regulatory and business requirements. Standard operating
procedures (SOPs) are part of the Internal Control Framework (ICF) and are reviewed and tested by the
Statutory Auditor.

The Risk Management Committee conducts monthly meetings to comprehensively review risks and
provide updates to the Board. While the RBI’s mandate for Risk-Based Internal Audit does not apply
to our company, we have proactively established an independent audit function and a Risk-Based
Internal Audit Framework. The internal audit department of the company conducts business and support
function’s audit according to an approved Annual Audit Plan and Scope by Audit Committee of the
Board, tailored to the size and nature of our business. Compliance reporting is conducted through
assigned function owners, and internal audits are carried out by the Internal Audit Head and team.

The company also conducts information system audits, IT risk assessments, and cyber drills, holding
ISO 27001:2013 certification for information security. The Audit Committee oversees the internal audit
function's performance and evaluates the adequacy of internal control systems, providing necessary
oversight, recommendations, and monitoring implementation.

HR updates: Workforce size and significant developments

As of March 31, 2023, our company had a total of 892 employees on roll. Out of these, 847 were male
and 45 were female. We also employed 102 individuals who were classified as youth, below the age of
25, maintaining a strong and cohesive workforce. Since our inception, we have followed a gender-
agnostic approach to recruitment, ensuring equal opportunities for all candidates. Analysing the
distribution of our employees, we found that 148 individuals, with 22% of them being women, were
stationed at our Head Office. On the other hand, 744 employees, with 2% of them being women, were
assigned to our branches. The nature of field roles, which involve frequent travel to multiple customer
locations, combined with cultural barriers, has resulted in a lower number of female applicants for
branch positions. This trend aligns with industry peers. However, our Head Office exhibits a higher
participation of women, primarily in function and support roles.

At our organization, we place a strong emphasis on promoting gender diversity in leadership positions.
We take great pride in featuring a distinguished One-Woman Independent Director on our Board.
Furthermore, we have accomplished women leading key departments within our organization. They




play pivotal roles in critical functions such as Customer Service, HR, and Treasury. Their exceptional
expertise and significant contributions are instrumental in driving our overall success.

We adhere to all applicable social and environmental laws in India, ensuring our operations align with
regulatory requirements. Our codes of business principles, derived from IFC performance standards,
outline our commitment to safe working conditions, fair treatment of employees, consultative work-
place structures, community impact assessment, and maintaining high standards of integrity and
honesty. We strictly prohibit engagement in any form of forced labour, child labour, or involvement in
prohibited trades.

We prioritize fair and competitive compensation for our employees. Monthly remuneration,
benchmarked against market rates, forms the basis of their earnings. In addition to salary, employees
receive periodic incentives, bonuses, and comprehensive retirement benefits, including provident fund
(PF) contributions. We also provide extensive health insurance coverage, including group personal
accidental insurance policy and a free 24/7 access to medical professionals. These benefits underscore
our commitment to the overall well-being of our employees.

We maintain a proactive approach to address employee grievances and foster a safe work environment.
Our Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace is widely disseminated through
multiple channels, including our website, training modules, appointment letters, and notice boards at
branches. Regular trainings, conducted by our L&D Department, ensure awareness and understanding
of the policy among employees. Additionally, we have established an Internal Complaints Committee
comprising the Audit Committee Chairperson and an external member. Our leadership consistently
emphasizes a zero-tolerance policy towards policy violations and disrespectful behaviour during
business meetings and employee interactions.

In summary, our organization has made significant strides in Human Resources and Industrial
Relations, encompassing various aspects such as workforce composition, gender representation,
recruitment policies, compliance with labour laws, and employee welfare. Through our comprehensive
approach, we prioritize equal opportunities, employee well-being, and a safe work environment. These
material developments demonstrate our commitment to fostering a diverse, inclusive, and thriving
workforce.

*kkk*k




% CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

D-6/9, Upper Ground Floor, Rana Pratap Bagh, Delhi-110007 (INDIA)
Phone : 011-41011281, 43512990 E-mail : caagiwal68@gmail.com, office@agiwalassociates.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Ummeead Housing Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Respaonsihilities for the Audit of tha Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of ELhics. We believe Lhat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of Financial assets (as described in Note 8 of the standalone financial statements) —

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loan receivables (financial
instruments) using the expected credit loss
(ECL) approach.

ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over
their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the
credit quality of the Company's loans and
advances,

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

a. Defining gualitative/ guantitative
thresholds for ‘significant increase in credit
risk’ (“SICR") and ‘default’.

b. Grouping of loan portfolio under
homogenous  pools to  determine
probability of default on a collective basis.

c. Estimating recoveries to determine loss
given default on a collective basis for loans
that have defaulted.

d. Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default.

e.  Management overlay for macro-economic
factors and estimation of their impact on
the credit quality.

The Company has developed models that derive
key assumptions used within the ECL calculation
such as probability of default (PD) and loss given
default (LGD). The output of these models is
then applied to the expected credit loss
calculation with other information including
and the exposure at default (EAD).

Considering the significance of such expected
credit loss to the overall financial statements
and the degree of management’s judgement,
any error or misstaterment in such estimate may
give rise to a material misstatement of the
financial statements or omission of any
disclosure  required by the Standards.
Therefore, itis considered as a key audit matter.

Qur audit procedures included, among others,

e (Considering the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of loan receivables, assessing compliance with
the policies in terms of Ind AS109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Master Directions - Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued on February 17, 2021, as amended.

e Tested the assumptions used by the Company for staging of
loan portfolio into various categories and default buckets for
determining the Probability of Default ("PD") and Loss Given
Default (“LGD") rates.

e Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for staging
of loans based on their past-due status. Tested samples of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any loss
indicators were present requiring them to be classified under
stage 2 or 3.

e Tested the input data used for determining the PD and LGD
rates and compared the data with the underlying books of
accounts and records.

e Assessed the additional management overlay applied by the
Company to factor the impact of macro-economic factors and
estimation of their impact on credit quality as approved by
their board of directors.

e Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision performed by the Company in spreadsheets.

e Compared the disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109 and other
guidelines/directions issued by Reserve Bank of India from
time to time.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director's report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

55



gl & Slasociales

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditer’s report unless law or regulation pracludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asreqguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion a2nd to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does have some pending litigations cases which does not have material impact on its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 57 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the note 57 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Agiwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Bfm Registration Number: 000181N

per P.C. Agiwal

Partner

Membership Number: 080475
UDIN: 23080475BGWKSIB367
Place of Signature: Delhi

Date: May 18, 2023
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited ('the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i){a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the managemeant during the year and no
material discrepancias were identified on such verification.

(c] There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i} (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
or financial institutions. However, such loans are secured by way of negative lien over assets of the Company.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (3}~ The Company's principal business is to give loans and is a registered HFC, accordingly, reporting under clause
(iii)(a) is not applicable..

(b)  During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c]  Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as part of its business of
providing loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the
Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to furnish entity-
wise details of amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay (as suggested in the
Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under
this clause) in this Annexure 1, in respect of loans and advances which were not repaid / paid when they were
due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in the normal course of lending business.

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and / or
interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset classification in
note 8 to the financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also
regular in payment of interest, as applicable

(d)  Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days
as at March 31, 2023 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery
of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

(e} The company’s principal business is to give loans and is a registered HFC, accordingly, reporting under clause
(iii){(e) is not applicable.
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(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii){f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed
to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{vi) The Company is notin the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii){z) ~ The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employaes’ state insurance, income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(wili) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(ix)(b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(ix){c)  Monies raised during the year by the Company by way of term loans has been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.

(ix){d) Onan overall test examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) ~ The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on Clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(x)(b)  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clausa
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)(a]  No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year
as informed to us.

(xi)(b)  During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi)c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(i) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3{xii)(a}, (b} and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an inhouse internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(xiv)(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934).

(xvil(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(xvi){c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi){d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year.

(xviil}  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 52 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 2 period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspant amounts that are required to be transferred to
a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special

account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

For Agiwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fir gistration Number: 000181N

per P.C. Agiwal

Partner

Membership Number: 080475
UDIN: 23080475BGWKSI6367
Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: May 18, 2023
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial staterents of Ummeed Housing Finance
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinian on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendituras
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
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financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial

statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Agiwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 000181N

per P.C. Agiwal

Partner

Membership Number: 080475
UDIN: 23080475BGWKSI6367
Place of Signature: Delhi

Date: May 18, 2023
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Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Financials assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6A 36.28 27.86
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6B 5,775.38 6,053.57
Derivative financial instruments 7 28.64 75.65
Loans 8 1,00,791.98 67,383.07
investments 9 1,098.08 420.00
Other financials assets 10 1.829.87 1,825.44
1,09,560.23 75,785.59
Non-financials assets
Current tax assets (net) 141.86 -
Deffered tax assets (net) 31 - 155.95
Property, plant and equipment 1A 257.41 212.08
Intangible assets 118 107.71 99.51
Right to use assets 11C 350.97 418.37
intangible assets under Development 11D 42.54 -
Other non-financial assets 12 306.42 185.58
1,206.91 1,071.49
Asset held for Sale 27.36 -
Total assets 1,10,794.50 76,857.08
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financials liabilities
Trade Payables 13
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 5.12 1.34
(it} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 108.98 67.21
and small enterprises
Debt securities 14 5,5636.01 4,452.34
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15 53,377.38 22,697.33
Lease liabilities 386.61 469.99
Other financials liabilities 16 1,974.60 3,526.27
61,388.70 31,214.48
Non-financial liabilities
Deffered tax Liabilities (net) 31 7.95 -
Current tax liabilities (net) - 7.96
Provisions 17 389.40 265.79
Other non-financial liabilities 18 188.06 151.49
585.41 425.24
Equity
Equity share capital 19 1,604.19 1,604.19
Instruments entirely equity in nature 20 6,917.23 6,917.23
Other equity 21 40,298.97 36,695.94
Total equity 48,820.39 45,217.36
Total liabilities and equity 1,10,794.50 76,857.08
Significant accounting policies 1-5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For AGIWAL & ASSOCIATES

per P. C. Agiwal
Partner
Membership number: 080475

Date: May 18, 2023
Place: New Delhi

For
Umn

!

AW
Ashutosh Shar(

Managing Director
DIN: 02582205

Culonb Lo tals
Bikash Kumar Mishra
Chief Financial Officer

S

Date: May 18, 2023
Place: Gurugram

d %r% behalf of the Board of Directors of
c} rjousing Finance Private Jgmited »
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Sachin

rover
Director
DiN:«07387359

Nitin Kumar Agrahari
Company Secretary
M No.: A36376




Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amountin Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 13,860.09 9,462.99
Fees and commission Income 23 91241 458.24
Net gain on fair value changes 25 167.53 262.52
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 24 1,014.79 539.48
Total revenue from operations 15,944.82 10,723.23
Other income 26 183.54 182.85
Total income 16,128.36 10,906.08
Expenses
Finance costs 27 4,223.36 3,567.70
Impairment on financial instruments 28 34.95 75.39
Employee benefits expenses 29 5,194.76 3,486.02
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 11A/11B/11C 332.92 264.27
Other expenses 30 1,828.35 1.088.29
Total expenses 11,614.34 8,481.67
Profit before tax 4,514.02 2,424.41
Tax expense: 31
Current tax
Pertaining to profit for the current period 860.11 487.54
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 17.92 (23.22)
Deferred tax 176.20 94.17
Total tax expense 1,054.23 558.49
Profit for the period 3,459.79 1,865.92
Other comprehensive income
(A) (i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain of defined benefit plan (5.02) (1.68)
(ii) Income tax impact on above 1.26 042
(B} (i} Hems that will be reclassified
(a) Derivative instruments in Cash flow hedge relationship (43.86) 1.58
(ii) Income tax impact on above 11.04 (0.40)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (A+B) (36.58) (0.08)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,423.21 1,865.84
Earnings per equity share 32
Basic (Rs.) 6.85 3.99
Diluted (Rs.) 6.62 3.86
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For AGIWAL & ASSOCIATES
ICAl Firm registration number : 000181N

perP. C. Agiwal
Partner
Membership number: 080475

Date: May 18, 2023
Place: New Dethi

&

Y
i
i
|

Fol

Ashutosh S’f{

Managing Director
DIN: 02582205

Qjmgx ﬁ\f& Wﬁ‘)

Bikash Kumar Mishra
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 18, 2023
Place: Gurugram

Jd n hehalf of the Board of Directors of
e Housing Finance Private Limited

M

Sachin Gr
Director
DIN: (\)7387359

Nitin Kumar Agrahari
Company Secretary
M No.: A36376
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Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise}

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Expenses on employee stock option

Depreciation and amortization

L.oss on sale/discard of fixed assets

Interest income on fixed deposits

Gain on sale of mutual funds and redemption of bonds and market linked debentures
impairment on financial instruments

Loss assets written off

Provision for employee benefits

Interest on borrowings

interest on lease liabilities

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :

Change in loans

Change in other financial assets

Change in other non financial assets

Change in trade payables

Change in other financial liabilities

Change in provisions

Change in other non-financiat liabilities

Cash used in operations

Less: taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets including intangible assets under development
Sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of current investments

Proceeds from sate/maturity of current investments

interest income from fixed deposits

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of instrument entirely equity in nature (including securities premium) -

Payment of share issue expense
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

interest paid on borrowings

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and bank balance include
Cheques in hand
Balance with banks
In current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than three months
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For AGIWAL & ASSOCIATES
ICAI Figm registration number : 000181N

per P. C. Agiwal
Pariner
Membership number: 080475

Date: May 18, 2023
Place: New Dethi

4,514.02 2424.41
179.82 121.20
332.92 264.27

0.48 0.46
(492.54) (384.05)
(157.53) (262.52)

(52.55) 26.14
87.50 49.25
55.95 39.12
4,184.65 3,520.02
38.71 47.68
8,691.43 5,845.98

(33,472.89) (17,314.99)

269.63 1,505.85
(120.84) (108.54)
4555 (1.16)
(1,540.62) (1,254.53)

68.30 61.14

36.57 54.38

(26,022.87) (11,211.87)
999.04 443 87

(27,021.91) {11,655.74)
(138.15) (128.56)
(76.98) (44.91)

0.25 4.01
(8,151.04) (12,250.00)
7.624.06 17,952.99

492.54 384.05
(249.32) 5,917.58
1489.72

- 15,079.28
48,530.07 7,135.00
(16,788.74) (14,778.34)
(4,195.70) (3,688.38)
(227.27) (161.65)
(38.71) (47.68)
27,279.65 5,027.95
8.42 (710.21)
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36.28 27.86
36.28 27.86
36.28 27.86
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Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars ; / No. Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 . 1,59,80,416 1,598.04
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period ervors . - -
Restated Balance as at1 April 2021 S 1,69,80,416 1.59&.04
Changes In equity share capital during the year ’ 61,466 6.15
Balance as at 1 April 2022 e 1,60,41,882 1,604.19
Changes in equity share capitat due to prior period errors ' . - - :
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2022 * 1,60,41,882 1,604.19 R
Changes in equily shere capital duting the year N - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,60,41,882 1,604.19
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
R pulsotity convertible preference shares (CCPS)
Particulars No, Amount
Batance as at1 April 2021 2,70,14,933 5402.38
Changes in equity share capital due to prior petiod eirors - -
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2021 2,70,11,833 540238
Changes in equity share capital during the year T4ASTT2 1489.95
Balance as.at 1 April 2022 344,61,705 689233
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period emors B - . -
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2022 344,561,706 £,892.33 {
Changes In equity share capital during the year - - 0 |
Balance ss at 31 March 2023 _34481,708 $,392.33 . i
Optionalty Convertibie Non R F shares (OCNCRPS')
Particulars No. Amount
. 1
. |
Balance as at 1 Aprif 2021 13,00,616 13.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errars . -
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2021 13,00,616 1300
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 11,88,552 11.90
‘Balanice as at 1 April 2022 24,389,068 2490
Changes in equity share caphtal due to prior period efrors - -
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2022 24,89,068 24.90
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balence as at 31 March 2023 24,89,068 24.80
¢
C. Other squity Reserve and Surplus ‘Ottar Comprehensive i
$acome i
Securities. Statutory  Share based Retslned  Cash flow hedge Total
premi R g recsrve
reserve 1
Balance as at April 01, 2021 17.931.76 400.30 3823 88263 {22.05) 19.647.87 |
Changes in accaunting policylprior period ermors - - - - - -
Restated Balance as at 1 Aprit 202¢ 1783116 400.30 355.23 $8243 {22.85) 10,547,687 * |
Profil for the yesr - - - 1286503 - T 186583 b
Other comprehensive incoma for the year . - - (326) 1.18 .07} i
Premium on issue of preference shares (CCPS) 1533012 - . - - 1683842
Shwe lssur axpenses {258.84) - . - . (258.84)
Shace based payments - - e - . 102.93
Teanster 0 statulory reserve” - 373.18 . (373,19) - -
Batance as at March 31, 2022 33,011,064 71348 488.16 247442 {2087) 3659594
Balance #s at § Apri 2022 33,011.04 77349 458,16 247442 {2087} 3669594
Changes In scoounting poticyfprior perod errors - - . . - -
Restated Bulance se st 1 April 2022 33,011.04 71343 458.16 247442 f2087) 34,895.94
ml« the yoar ot - - . 3459.79 . 345978
comprehensive kncome year - - - 3.76; {3282
Premium o0 issue of preference shares (CCPS) - - - ¢ - ! - ! (ae:se) |
Shace issue expenses - . . . . . :
Shexe based payments - - 2 179.82 . - 179.62 ;
Transfer to stakdory raserve® - 891,96 - {891.96) - . i
Balance as st March 31, 2023 33,0114 146545 | 7 637,98 523819 {63.69) 40.208.97 ‘
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Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate information

Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited {‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India as a private limited
company having CIN U65922HR2016PTC057984. The Company was incorporated on January 27, 2016 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is registered as a housing finance company with National
Housing Bank {NHB) vide Registration No. 07.137.16 and is engaged in the long-term financing activity in the
domestic markets to provide housing finance.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing housing and Non-Housing loans. The Company is having
registered office at 318, DLF Magnolias, Sector-42, Golf Course Road, Gurugram Haryana ~ 122002 and maintain
books of accounts at Corporate office at Unit 809-815,8th floor, Tower A, Emaar Digital Greens Golf Course
Extension Road, Sector-61 Gurugram - 122102. The Company's redeemable non-convertible debentures are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange in India.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except derivative financial Instruments,
other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) or through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) Instruments all of which are measured at fair
value.

3. Presentation of financial statement

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported gross in the balance sheet. An analysis regarding recovery or settiement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {(non-current) is presented in Notes
to financials. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also
intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business

s The event of default

e The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and/or its counterparties.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except when otherwise indicated.
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Note 4: Significant accounting policies
4.1. Recognition of income and expense
4.1.1 interest income

The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that itis probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Interest revenue is
recognized using the effective interest method {EIR). The effective interest method calculates the amortized cost of a
financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effective Interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets. When a financiai asset becomes credit-Impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3',
the Company calculates the interest only if it is considered recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer
credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income using EIR Method.

4.1.2 Interest expense

Interest expense includes borrowing costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial
liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective Interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are
directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

4.1.3 Other fees

Other charges including application fees {penal interest, cheque bouncing charges, etc.) are recognised on realization
basis.

4.1.4 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company'’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably. This is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

4.2. Financial Instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

4.2.1 Financial Assets
4.2.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. The classification of
financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management's
intention when acquiring them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
Financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.
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4,2.1 Financial Assets (continued)
4.2.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
*  Debt instruments at amortised cost
=  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI)
= Debtinstruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

4.2.1.3. Debt instruments at amortised costs

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
*  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
= Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the nature of
portfolio, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and
collect contractual cash flows. However, considering the economic viability of carrying the portfolios on the books of
the Company, it may enter into immaterial and infrequent transactions to sell these portfolios to banks and/ or asset
reconstruction companies without affecting the business model of the Company.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost Using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method less impairment.

4.2.1.4. Debt Instruments at FVTOCI

A 'debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
= The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
*  The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive Income (OCl). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned while holding FVTOCI debt Instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

4.2.1.5. Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
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4.2.1 Financial Assets (continued)
4.2.1.6. Equity Investments at FVTPL and FVOCi

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument.
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

4.2.2. Financial liabilities
4.2.2.1. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A Financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if It is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as such on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised
Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts
and derivative financial instruments.

4.2.2.2, Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading If they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.2.2.3. Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost

The Company's loans and borrowings are generally classified in this category. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or toss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

4.2.2.4. Financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantees are Initially recognised in the financial statements {within Provisions) at fair value, being the
premium/deemed premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liability under each guarantee
Is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life
of the guarantee.
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4.2.2, Financial liabilities {continued)
4.2.2.4. Financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments {continued)

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is
required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of
the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market
terms, are not recorded in the balance sheet.

4.2.3. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
Circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business fine. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

4.2.4. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
4.2.4.1 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and
forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

. Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment.

. Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness
requirements {including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A
hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

. There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
. The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

. The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually uses
to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
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4.2.4. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting {continued)

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance
costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through
profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the
fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the Effective portion of
cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The
Effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the
commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

The Company designates only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The forward element
is recognised in OCI.

The amounts accumulated in OCl are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged transaction.
if the hedged transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in
equity is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount
of the hedged asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in OCi for the
period. This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability
subsequently becomes a firm commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCl is reclassified to profit or loss as reclassification
adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCl must remain in
accumulated OCI if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be
immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After discontinuation, once the hedged cash
flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated OClI must be accounted for depending on the nature of the
underlying transaction as described above.

4.2.5. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
4.2.5.1. Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-
recognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de recognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only If, either:
*» |t has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
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4.2.5. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities {continued)
4.2.5.1. Financial Assets {continued)

= It retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset {the 'original asset') but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or
more entities {the 'eventual recipients'). Pass-through arrangements result in derecognition of financial assets only
when all the following three conditions are met:

= The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual receipts unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount
lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

®  The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

=  The Company must remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material
delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents
including Interest earned, during the year between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition If either:
= The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
= The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement,
in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Company could be required to
pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the
continuing involvement Is measured at the value the Company would be required to pay upon repurchase. in the case
of written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Derecognition due of modification of terms and conditions

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent
that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent
that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL
measurement purposes unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchase Oriented Credit Impaired (“POCI”). If the
modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.
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4.2.5.2. Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

4.3, Impairment of financial assets
4.3.1. Overview of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with foan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (in this section all referred to as
‘financial instruments'). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance
is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss {12mECL).

The 12mECLis the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial Instrument
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caiculated on collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of
financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting year, of whether a
Financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Company group its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs.
Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage
2 or Stage3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has
been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-Impaired. The company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This Is considered a
(partial) derecognition or write off of the financial asset.

4.3.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows
that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows;

* PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the Likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may
only happen at a certain time over the assessed year, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in
the portfolio.

* EAD- The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a reporting date.

* LGD - The loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive
including from the realisation of any collateral. it is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The maximum year for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
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The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a Financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the
reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected
LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over
the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undisbursed loan commitments, the Company estimates the
expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on
the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.
4.3.3. Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between
key economic trends like GDP, Property Price Index, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank
of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the
internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary
overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

4.4, Collateral repossessed

In Its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets in its portfolio,
but generaily engages external or internal agents to recover funds generally at auctions to settle outstanding debt.
Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. The residential properties under legal repossession
processes are treated as assets held for sale at (i) Fair value less cost to sell or (ii) principle outstanding, whichever is
less, at the repossession date.

4.5. Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the recovery possibility from these
properties seems remote, despite legal remedies and other actions taken by the Company. If the amount to be written
off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that
is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to Statement of profit and
loss account.

4.6. Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is Significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

4.7 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities representing obligations to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use ('ROU') the underlying assets.

I} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depredated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. {(Refer to the accounting policies on Impairment of non-
financial assets.)

I} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the transition
date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Other financial liabilities.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
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the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

4.8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash balance with bank and highly liquid investments
with maturity period of three months or less from the date of investment.

4.9. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an
item of Property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Assets costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Depreciation is charged on a
proportionate basis for all assets purchased and sold during the year.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

The Company depreciates its Property, plant and equipment {‘Assets’) on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the useful
lives of assets estimated by management. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year is charged from date of
acquisition and for assets sold/disposed off, it is charged upto the date of sale/disposal. Modification or extension to
an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an internal part thereof is depreciated prospectively
from date of capitalisation upto remaining useful life of that asset. Management estimates for useful lives of assets
are set out below:

Property, plant & equipment Useful lives {in years)
Computers 3

Computer servers and networks 6

Office equipment 5

Furniture and Fixture 10

Motor Vehicle 5

4.10. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are acquired by the company are measured initially at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving the cost of asset.

All such expenditure that increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard
of performance is included in the gross book value.

After Initial Recognition, Intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a
presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed six years from the date when the asset is
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available for use. If persuasive evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds six years, the
Company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life.

4.11. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining
net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount.

4.12. Retirement and other employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will iead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or
a cash refund.

The Company provides gratuity benefits which is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing gratuity benefits is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each
plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit fiability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:
*  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes.
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4.13, Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

4.14. Taxes
Current tax

Current tax assets and labilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from, or paid to, the taxation authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted. or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

* Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

4.15. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated
as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period.
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For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4.16. Foreign currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {Rs.) which is also the Company's functional
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

income and expenses in foreign currencies are Initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized
in OC! or profit or oss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

4.17. Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair vaiue at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments
is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting year, based on the Company's estimate of equity Instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

4.18. Contingent liabilities and assets
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

e Apresent obligation arising from past event” when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not be

required to settle the obligation.

e Apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
e A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
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Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following Significant
judgements and estimates, which have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

5.1. Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets
to achieve its business objective. The Company considers the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior years, the
reason for such sales, and its expectations about future sales activity. However, Information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of a holistic assessment of how company's stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised. Therefore, the Company considers information about
past sales in the context of the reasons for those sales, and the conditions that existed at that time as compared to
current conditions.

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured its financial
assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest ('the 'SPPI criterion').

5.2. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this Is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations
of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

5.3. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income/expense using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural fife of loans given /taken and recognises the effect
of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle {including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement
regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and
other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

5.4. Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a Significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes
in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding
the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates include:

e The Company's model, which assigns Probability of default (PD)s.

e  The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a Lifetime expected credit loss {LTECL) basis and the qualitative
assessment.

e  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

e Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.
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e Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and the effect on
PDs, Exposure at default (EADs) and Loss given default {LGDs).

s Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

5.5 Defined employee henefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
cbligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future.

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

5.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them,

5.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation
risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations
and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business. When the Company can reliably measure the
outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company
records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a
reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

5.8 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the
leased asset).

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate {IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Note 6: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

March 31, 2023

6A. Cash and cash equivalents
Chegques in hand
Balance wilh banks
in current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than three months
Yotal

6B. Bank balance other than above

36.28

March 31, 2022

27.86

36.28

27.86

Pariculars

March 31, 2023

Fixed Deposit with Bank

Balance with banks 1o the extent held as margin mangin or security deposit against the
Totat

Note 7: Derivative financial instrument

. other

34.17
5741.21

Warch 31, 2022
1.737.36
4,316.27

577538

6,053.57

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Notional amount | Fair value assets

Fair value

Fair value asset
liabilities ailr valu ets

Notional amount Notional amount

Notional amount

Fair value
labilities

Part|
Currency Derivatives:

-Currency swaps 1,374.52 28.64

1,260.99 75.85

Partll

Incuded in  above are
derivatives held for hedging and
risk management purposes as
follows:

Cash flow hedging:
- Currency swaps
Undesignated derivatives

1.379.52 28.64

1,260.99 75.65

Totat derivative financial
instruments

1,379.52 28.64

1,260.99 75.65

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative insteuments are interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

as hedging

The foreign currency and interest rate risk on borrowings have been aclively hedged through a combination of forwarg conlracts, principal orly and interest rate swaps.

The company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its foreign currency homrowings amounting to $18,60,000 {Previous Year $18,00,000), Interest or: the borrowing is payable at a floating rate linked to USD
LIBOR. The company economically hedged the interest rate risk arising from the debt with a ‘receive floaling pay fixed’ interest rate swap {'swap’).

The Company uses currency Swaps Conlracts (Fixed to Floating) 1o hedge its risks associated with currency fate fluctuations arising from foreign currency

The Company

designates such swaps contracts in a cash flow hedging relationship by applying the hedge accounting principles as per IND AS 109. These swap contracis are stated at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in
the fair value of these swap contracts that are designated and effective as hedge of fiture cash flows are recognised directly in “Cash Flow Hedge Reserve” under other equity and the ineffective portion is recognised
.immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedge accounting is disconlinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no Jonger qualifies for hedge accounting.

The Company also hedges foreign currency risk arising from its fixed rate foreign currency borrowing by entering into the currency swaps. There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
inslrument as the terms of the contract match that of the foreign currency borrowing {notional amoun, interest payment dates, principal repayment date etc.). The Company has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the
hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the Cross currency swap are identical to the hedged risk components.

As of March 31, 2023

Notional Amount Carrying Amount Line item in Balance Sheet Change in fair
value
1.379.52 28.64 Derivative Financial Assets (47.01)

The impact of hedging instruments (net)

As of March 31, 2023

National Amount

Accumulated fair value adjustment

Line Item in Balance Sheet

Change in fair

The impact of hedged instruments (net)

Effect of Cash flow hedge

value
1,379.52 100.38 Borrowings {other than debt securities) 100.38
As of March 31, 2023
Total hedging gain / {loss) Ineffactive-ness recognised Line Item in the
recognised in OCI in profit or { loss) statement of profit or loss
{43.86) - Finance Cost
As of March 31, 2022
Notional Amount Carrying Amount Line Item in Balance Sheat Change In Falr
value
1,260.99 75.65 Detivative Financial Assels 43.02

The impact of hedging instruments (net)

As of March 31, 2022

Notional Amount

Accumulated falr value adjustment

Line Item in Balance Sheet

Change in fair
value

The impact of hedged instruments (net) 1,260.99

103.64 Borrowings {other than debt securities)

As of March 31, 2022

Total hedging galn/ (loss)
recognised in OCI

Ineffective-nass recognised Line item in the
in profit or  loss} statement of profit or loss

Effect of Cash flow hedge 1.58

- Finance Cost

41.44
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Note 8: Loans

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

At amortised cost:

Loans assets 1,01,337.96 67,962.02
Staff loans - -
Total Gross 1,01,337.96 67,982.02
Less: Impairment loss allowance {545.98) {598.95)
Total Net 1,00,791.98 67,383.07
Secured by tangible assets 1,01,337.96 67,982.02
of equitable morl of i property elc.)

Unsecured - -
Total Gross 1.01,337.96 67.982.02
Less: impairment loss aflowance (545.98) (598.95)
Total Net 1,00,791.98 67,383.07

Loans in India

Public sector . -

Others. 1,01,337.96 67.982.02
Total Gross 1,01,337.96 67,982.02
Less: Impairment loss allowance (545.98) {598.95)
Total Net 1,00,791.98 67,383.07

e ————————

i} Loans granted by the Company are secured by equitable mortgagelregistered morigage of the property andfor undertaking to create a security andfor personal guarantees andfor hypothecation of assets andfor
assignments of life insurance policies.

ii} The Company has assigned a pool of certain foans amounting to Rs, 6551.70 lakh during the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 Rs. 3,162.35 lakh) by way of a direct assignment transaction. These loan
assels have been de-recognised from the loan porifolio of the Company as the sate of foan assets is an absolute assignment and transfer on a ‘no-recourse’ basis. The Company continues o acl as a servicer to the
assignment fransaction on behalf of assignee. In terms of the assignment agreement, the Company pays 1o assignee, on a monthly basis, the pro-rata collection amounts.

iii} Loan commitment amount is Rs.5,264.65 as on March 31, 2023 (Rs.3,643.20 as on March 31, 2022) (Refer note 17.1)

i¥)The Company is not granting any loans against gold jewellery as colfateral.

v)The Company is not granting any loans against security of shares as collateral.

Note 8.1 Credit Quality of assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finsncial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Company. The canying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.
The Company groups its exposure into smaller hamogeneous portfolios, based on & combination of intermal and extemal characteristics. Folfowing asset dlass pools i by the
Company for risk calegorisation:

- Housing Loan

- Loan against properly

- Business loan

- Small ticket business loan

Details of companies risk assessment mode! are explained in Note 40.
An analysls of risk categarisation, changes In gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances
8.1.1 Analysis of risk categorisation

As at March 31, 2023

Risk Categorlsation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Low risk 87,635.57 1,169.58 327.02 89,1227
Medium risk 9,419.08 319.07 41.91 9,780.06
High risk 2,286.81 99.49 49.43 243573
Totaf 99,341.46 1,578.14 418.36 1,01,337.96
As at March 31, 2022

Risk Categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Yotal
Low risk 51,984.65 1.371.78 423.49 53,779.92
Medium risk 11.541.28 447.52 127.99 12,116.79
High risk 1.958.26 115.00 12.05 2,085.31
Total 65,484.19 1,934.30 563.63 67,982.02

8.1.2 Reconciliation of gross carrying amount

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage 1° Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 65.484.19 1,934.30 563.53 67,982.02
New assels originsted or purchased 52,248.10 - - 52,248.10
Assels derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs} (17,887.89) (565.80) (350.97) (18,804.66)
Transfers from stage 1 (933.99) 698.47 235,52 .
Teansfers from stage 2 398.99 (488.83) 88.84 -
Transfers from stage 3 31.06 {31.06) -
Amounis written off {87.50) {87.50)
Gross carrylng amount as at March 31, 2023 99,341.46 1,578.14 418.36 1,01,337.96
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stage 1° Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 49.091.81 1.282.11 342.36 50,716.28
New assets originated or purchased 30.801.44 - - 30.801.44
Assels derecognised or repaid {excluding write offs} (13,057.76) (290.47) (138.22) (13,486.45)
Transfers from stage 1 {1,488.33) 1,264.09 224.24 -
Transfers from stage 2 126.16 {321.43) 196.27 -
Translers from stage 3 11.87 - {(11.87) -
Amounts wrilten off - - {49.25) (49.25)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 65,484.19 1934.30 563.53 67,982.02

* Includes over due from 1 to 30 days amounting to Rs. 983,39 fakhs and Rs. 956.35 lakhs as at 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022.
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8.1.3 Impairment affowance for loans to customers

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
pai for loans to as at April 1, 2022 223.52 175.46 199.97 598.95

ECL remeasurements due to changes in EADICredit Risk/Assumptions (Net) 3707 (44.11) (19.68) (26.72)
Teansfers from Stage 1 (5.30) 4.02 1.28 -
Teansfers from Stage 2 28.62 (36.23) 7.61 -
Transfers from Stage 3 14.50 (14.50) -
Amounts wiiten off (26.25) (26.25)
[ i il for foans to as at March 31, 2023 298.41 99.14 148.43 545.98

Decrease in ECL is aliribulable to decrease in credit impaired and significant increase in credit risk loans.

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stage { Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
I for loans to as at April 1, 2021 267.89 189.03 124.65 578.57
ECL remeasurements due to changes in EAD/Credil Risk/Assumptions (Net) {48.37) 16.74 66.76 35.13
Transfers from Stage 1 (12.24) 10.39 1.84 0.01)
Transfers from Stage 2 11.37 (40.70) 29.32 {0.01)
Translers from Stage 3 487 - (a.87) -
Amounts writien off - - (14.73) (14.73)
H for toans to as at March 31, 2022 223.52 175.46 199.97 598.95
Decrease in ECL is allributable to decrease in credit impaired and significant increase in credit risk foans.
Note:8.2 Impairment assessment
The references below show where the Company's il i and approach is set out in these notes. it shauld be read in j ion with the y of signif ing policies

- Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulled and classifies it as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The
Company may also dassify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, delerioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market condilions rmay have
a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment.

- Probability of default {"PD")
The Company uses blend of both CIBIL score and account level delinquency white assigning Probability of Default (PD) at a portiofic level. The PDs are for partfolio

- Exposure at default ("EAD"}
The Gross carrying amount as at the reporting dale is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering that PD delermined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given default {"LGD")
The Company uses historical foss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calcutating LGD. The eslimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation
factors in the NPV of the recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk

The Company evaluates the loans on an ongaing basis. The Company also assesses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the previously assessed risk taking into consideration both qualitative
and quantitative information. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due and when the accounts have been

under the RBI
- Risk assessment model
The Company has designed and operates its risk assessment model that factors in bolh itative as well as itative i ion on the loans and the borrowers. The model uses historical empirical data to arrive
at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the basis of inations of these into smaller portfolios from the perspective of credit behaviour.

Note 8.3 Collateral

The Company is in business of secured lending and all foans are adequalely covered by either residential coflateral or commercial collateral. The collaterals are assessed at the lime of originalion and are being
reassessed as and when required. The ive factors i while ion of collateral are liquidity, enforceability, marketability, ease and efficiency in custody & settlement and free from alt encumbrances
in the relevan! jurisdictions and complied with local by laws. The of collateral is by team of i agencies. The company has specified the maximum loan-to value ratic
for various types of asset 1o be accepted a5 collateral, Such ratios commensurate with the refative risk of the assets as prescribed by NHB and pravides an adequate buffer against potential fosses.

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. There was no change in the Company's collateral policy
during the year.

Note 9: Investments

Parti March 31, 2023___ March 31, 2022

Investments carried at falr value through profit or loss

Mutual funds

Arbitrage Funds 208.61 -
Shorl term debt funds. 284.95 -
Ultra Short term debt funds - 420.00
Market Linked Debentures 804.52 -
Total 1,098.08 420.00

Investments outside India - -
Investments in India 1,098.08 420.00

Total 1,098.08 420.00

Note 10: Other flnanclal assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with other financial institutions {refer note 10.1) - 560.37
Excess Interest Spread (E1S) receivable (refer note 10.2) 1,708.55 1,062.59
Security deposits 125.12 92.42
Clher receivables - 114.88

Gross 1,833.67 1,830.26

Less:i i foss on EIS i {3.80) {4.82)

Net 1,829.87 1,825.44

Note 10.1: Balance with financials institutions include Fixed deposit with NBFC's of Rs. Nil {March 31, 2022: 560.37 Lakhs}

Note 10.2: Under Ind AS with respect to Assignment deals, Company has created an £1S i with credit to of profit and loss, which has been computed by discounting EIS to present
value.
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Note 11A: Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office Computers IT Networks Furniture Fixtures Vehicles Total
Equipment Equipment's & Fittings

Cost:

At April 1, 2021 31.04 145.81 6.02 9.40 97.75 290.02

Additions 8.05 79.89 0.00 - 40.62 128.56

Disposals (0.87) (1.90) (0.35) (0.15) (17.95) (21.22)

At March 31, 2022 38.22 223.80 5.67 9.25 120.42 397.36

Additions 18.99 113.34 - 5.82 - 138.15

Disposals (0.24) (0.88) - (0.62) - (1.74)

At March 31, 2023 56.97 336.26 5.67 14.45 120.42 533.77

Depreciation

At April 1, 2021 14.72 89.83 2.43 2.18 20.56 129.72

Charge for the year 6.79 40.49 0.90 0.88 23.26 72.31

Disposals (0.64) (1.68) (0.24) (0.00) (14.19) (16.75)

At March 31, 2022 20.87 128.64 3.09 3.06 29.62 185.28

Charge for the year 7.78 59.59 0.89 0.94 22.88 92.08

Disposals {0.07) (0.67) - (0.26) - (1.00)

At March 31, 2023 28.58 187.56 3.98 3.74 52.50 276.36

Net book value:

At April 1, 2021 16.32 55.98 3.59 7.22 77.19 160.30

At March 31, 2022 17.35 95.16 2.58 6.19 90.80 212.08

At March 31, 2023 28.39 148.70 1.69 10.71 67.92 257.41

Note 11B: Intangibles

Particulars Software Total

Cost:

At April 1, 2021 118.56 118.56

Additions 44,91 44.91

At March 31, 2022 163.47 163.47

Additions 34.44 34.44

At March 31, 2022 197.91 197.91

Accumulative amortisation:

At April 1, 2021 42.63 42.63

Charge for the year 21.33 21.33

At March 31, 2022 63.96 63.96

Charge for the year 26.24 26.24

At March 31, 2023 90.20 90.20

Net book value

At April 1, 2021 75.93 75.93

At March 31, 2022 99.51 99,51

At March 31, 2023 107.71 107.71
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Note 11C: Right to use asset

Building and

Particulars - . Total
office premises
Gross block
At April 1, 2021 661.88 661.88
Addition 275.75 275.75
Write offs (66.73) (66.73)
At March 31, 2022 870.90 870.90
Addition 187.03 187.03
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2023 1,057.93 1,057.93
Depreciation h
At April 1, 2021 327.22 327.22
Charge for the year 170.63 170.63
Reversal for the year {45.32) (45.32)
At March 31, 2022 452,53 452.53
Charge for the year 214.58 214.58
Reversal for the year 39.85 39.85
At March 31, 2023 706.96 706.96
Net book value
At April 1, 2021 334.66 334.66
At March 31, 2022 418.37 418.37
At March 31, 2023 350.97 350.97

Note: There have been no acquisitions through business combinations and no change of amount due to revaluation of Property,plant and
equipment and other intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note 11D: Intangible assets under Development

Intangible assets under Development as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 42.54 Lakhs {March 31,2022~ Rs. Nif)

March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of

intangible assets under Development Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years
Projects in Progress 42.54 - - - 42.54
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 42.54 - . - 42,54
March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible assets under Development Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

88



Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in Rs. lakhs untess slaled olherwise}

Note 12: Other non-financial assels

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Particulars
GST lnput 29.33 28.93
Prepaid expenses 112.35 108.91
Other advances 156.79 42.98
Employee Advance 8.03 4.76

306.42 185.58

Total

Note 13: Trade Payables

Particulars March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Trade Payables

Total ing dues of Micro ises and Small 5.12 1.34

Total oulstanding dues of Creditors olher than Micro Enterprises and Smal! Enterprises 108.98 67.21
Totat 114.10 68.55
Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium ises Di Act, 2006. Di: as required by section 22

of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006, are given below:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Partlculars
Principal amount remalning unpaid 5.12 1.34
nterest due thereon
interest paid by the Company in lerms of Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, atong with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers and service providers beyond the - -
appointed day during the year Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appainted day during the period) but
without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year. Further interest remaiaing due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the smalt enterprise for the purpase of di: asa i under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
Total 512 1.34
Trade Payables ageing schedute
OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 210 3 years More than 3 years
As at 31 March 2023
(i) MSME 512 - - - 5.12
{ii} Others 10378 4.57 0.63 - 108.98
{iii} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Unbilled dues - - - - -
TYotal 108.90 4.57 0.63 - 114.10
As at 31 March 2022
(i} MSME 1.34 - - - 1.34
(ii} Others 63.00 244 0.63 1.14 67.21
(ifi) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Unbilled dues - - - - -
Total 64.34 244 0.63 1.14 68.55
Note 14: Debt securities
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost:
Secured
5,536.01 445234
Total 5,536.01 4.452.34
Deb securities in India 333.24 665.51
Debt securities outside India 5,202.77 3,786.83
Total 5,536.01 4,452.34
Detail of Secured Non-G
No. 4.
No. of Debentures 206 320 100 380
Call/Put Option NA. NA NA. N.A.
Date of Redemplion 30-12-2027 01-02-2028 21-04-2023 03-01-2023
Rate of Interest 8.90% 8.80% 11.90% 11.72%
tnterest Type Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
Listed/unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Listed Listed
Face value 10.00,006 10,00,000 10,060,000 10,00,000
Cairying Amount as at March 31, 2023 2,036.78 3,165.99 333.24 -
- - 665.51 3,786.83

Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2022

Non-Cx ible D are secured by ion of specified recei under financing Activities and are repayable in bullet payments
These debenlures are privately placed and are redeemable at par.
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Terms of repayment of Debt securities as at March 31, 2023

Original Maturities of Debt Securities {(No of Days) 1-365 366-1095 Totat
No of instalments Amount No of instalments Amount No of instalments Amount
Duse within one year - - 1 333.33 1 333.33
Due 110 3 years - - - - - -
Due 3 to Syears - - 2 5.260.00 2 5,260.00
Due above 5 years . . - N - .
Total - - 3 5,593.33 3 5,593.33
Terms of repayment of Debt securities as at March 31, 2022
Original of Debt Securlties (No of Bays) 1-365 366-1095 Totat
No of instaiments Amount No of instalments Amount No of instalments Amount
Due within one year - - 2 1,283.33 2 1,283.33
Due 1to 3 years - - 2 3.,183.33 2 3,183.33
Due 3 to 5 years - - . - - -
Due above 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - 4 4,466.66 4 4,466.66
Note 15: Borrowings {other than debt securities)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost:
Secured
Term Loans

-from National Housing Bank (fefer note 15.1) 12,279.39 5,241.35

-from Banks (refer note 15.2} 31,580.73 9,744.17

~from Non-Banking Financiat Instilutions (refer note 15.3) 2,065.22 1,065.67

~from Financial institutions (refer note 15.4) 1,219.32 2,024.57

TFerm Loans in foreign currency {USD)

from Financial institutions (ECB) (refer note 15.4) 1,476.76 1,361.05
Others

~Cash credit facilities with scheduled banks (refer note 15.5) 1.462.90 1,981.37

-Working Capital Demand Loan with scheduted banks - 200.00

~Securitized Borrowings from Banks and NBFC 3,283.06 1.079.15
Total 53,377.38 22,697.33
Borrowings in India 50.681.30 19,311.7¢
Borrowings oulside tndia 2.696.08 3,385.62
Total 53,377.38 22,697.33

B L e 0. 60

Note 15.1: Secured term loans from National Housing Bank carry rate of interest in the range of 2.80% to 8.75% p.a. The loans are having tenure of 5 to 10 years from the date of disbursement and are repayable in
quarterly instalments. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge} of the loans and advances given by the Company. Loans from National Housing Bank to the extent of Rs. 10,814.74 lakhs
{Previous year Rs Rs. 3,037 lakhs} have been quaranteed by Bank guarantee of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank limited (Rs.900.00 lakhs).

Note 15.2: Secured term loans from Banks carry rate of interest in the range of 7.30% to 12.25%p.a. The loans are having tenure of 3 to 8 years from the date of disbursement and are repayable in monthly or
quarterly instalments or bullel payment. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of the Joans and advances given by the Company and vehicles of the Company.

Note 15.3: Secured term loans from Non-Banking Financiat Institutions carry rate of interest in the range of 9.40% to 12.75%p.a. The loans are having tenure of 3 1o 10 years from the date of disbursement and are
repayable in monthly or quarterly instalments. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of the loans and advances given by the Campany.

Note 15.4: Secured term loans from Financials Institutions carey rate of interest in the range of 10.07% to 10.09%p.a. The loans are having teaure of 3 o 5 years from the date of disbursement and are tepayable in
half yearly Instaiments or Bullet Payment. These loans are secured by hypothecation (excusive charge) of the loans and advances given by the Company.

Note 15.5: Cash credit borrowings from bank are secured by hypothecation (exdusive charge) of the loans and advances given by the Company or against fixed deposits, are repayable on demand and cay interest
rates ranging from 6.50% to 11.89%.

Defaults
There are no defaults as on batance sheet date in repayment of borrowing and inlerest therean,

End Use

The Company has taken borrowings from banks, NBFC's, National Housing Bank and financial institutions and utilised them for the specific purpose for which they were taken as at the Balance shest dale. Unutilised
funds as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are held by the Company in the form of fixed deposits with banks and financial Institutions till the time the utilisation is made subsequently.

Note 15: Borrowings (other than debt securities} {continuad}

Yerms of repayment of terms loans as at March 31, 2023

Repayments Monthly repayment schedule @ Total
schadule
No of instalments Amount No of instalments Amount No of instalments Amount

Due within one year 375 5,086.11 83 8,076.29 458 13,162.40
Due 1to 3 years 536 8,077.68 152 10,679.17 688 18.756.85
Due 3 to 5 years 358 6,284.18 108 4,650.59 466 10,934.77
Due above § years 123 1.989.98 90 4,130.33 213 6,120.31
Total 1392 21,437.85 433 27,536.38 1825 48,874.33

Terms of repayment of tarms loans as at March 31, 2022

Repayments Monthly repayment schedule Q Total
schedule
No of instaiments Amount No of instalments Amount No of instaiments Amount

Due within one year 283 3,036.57 34 4.299.62 317 7,336.19

Due 1 to 3 years 257 2,536.53 50 7.777.00 307 10,313.53

Due 3 to 5 years 45 264.96 14 1,624.50 59 1,889.46
\Due above § years - - 1 100.58 1 100.58

Total 585 5,838.06 98 13,801.70 684 19,638.76
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Note 16: Other financial liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest accrued but nat due on

48.47 108.52

~Term Loans
-from banks 83.53 36.98
-from Nen-Banking Financial Inslitutions 5.70 417
-from Financial institutions {ECB) 65.98 74.06
Loan pending disbursement 23.44 1,887.16
Payable towards collections in derecognised assets 383.59 341.81
Payable/refundable to borrowers 88.08 2315
Employee benefits payable 650.77 604.02
Advance from boscowers 293.32 75.14
Payable to Insurance companies 32072 313.21
Others liabllities 1.00 57.25
Total 1,974.60 3,526.27

e — e DS

Note 17: Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefils
-Leave encashment 50.77 32.18
-Gratuity 139.43 102.07
Provision for Other Expenses 180.15 111.85
ECL on undisbursed foan commitment 19.05 19.69
Total 389.40 26579

Note 17.1: Loan commitment
The table below shows the credil quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk based on the Company's internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification for loan commitments.

As at March 31, 2023

Risk Categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Low Risk 4,887.92 13.65 13.18 491476
Medium Risk 300.24 1.53 - 30177
High Risk 44.40 0.13 3.58 48.11
Total 5,232.56 16.31 16.77 5,264.64
As at March 31, 2022

Risk Calegorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Yotal
Low Risk 3,235.07 11.78 5.06 325192
Medium Risk 331.24 4.78 18.58 354.60
High Risk 32.97 3.71 - 36.68
Total 3,599.28 20.28 23.64 3,643.20
Note 17.1.2: An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to other undrawn commitments is, as follows:

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 3,699.28 20.28 23.64 3.643,20
New assets originated or purchased 4,093.68 - - 4,093.68
Assets derecognised of repaid {excluding write offs) (2.459.36) (2.70) {10.18) (2.472.24)
Transfers from Stage 1 {18.03) 7.16 10.87 -
Transfers from Stage 2 5.85 (9.43) 3.58 -
Transfers from Stage 3 11.14 (11.14) -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 5,232.56 15.31 16.77 5,264.64
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross catrying amount as at April 1, 2021 1.751.27 33.95 10.62 1,795,74
New assels originated or purchased 3,153.00 - - 3,153.00
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding wite offs) (1,278.60) (22.81) (4.13) (1,305.54)
Transfers from Stage 1 {26.39) 20.28 6.11 -
Transfers from Stage 2 - (11.14) 1114 -
Teansfers from Stage 3 - - - -
Gross carrylng amount as at March 31, 2022 3,599.28 20.28 23.64 3,643.20
Reconciliation of ECL balance amount as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totat
ECL allowance as at April 1, 2022 8.93 1.49 8.28 19.70
ECL remeasurements due 1o changes in EAD/Credit Risk/Assumptions (Net) 5.11) (0.29) 477 {0.63)
Transfers from Stage 1 (0.16} 0.05 0.11 -
Teansfers from Stage 2 0.72 {0.90) 0.18 -
Transfers from Stage 3 7.46 {7.46) -
ECtL aliowance as at March 31, 2023 12.84 0.35 5.88 18.07

QH
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Recongiliation of ECL balance amount as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance as at Aprif 1, 2021 7.86 235 3.68 13.89
ECL remeasurements due o changes in EAD/Credit Risk/Assumptions (Net) (1.33) 1.38 5.76 5.81
Teansfers from Stage 1 (632} 0.41 0.01 -
Transfers from Stage 2 207 {2.35} 0.28 -
Transfers from Stage 3 145 - {1.45) -
ECL allowance as at March 31, 2022 9.93 1.49 8.28 19.70
Note 18: Other non-financiat liabifities
Parti March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory dues payable 188.06 151.49
Total 188.06 151.49
Note 19: Equity Share Capital
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorized shares
1,63,00,000 {March 31, 2022: 1,63,00,000} equily shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,630.00 1,630.00
‘Total authorized shares capital 1,630.00 1,630.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
16,041,882 (March 31, 2022: 16,041,882) equity shares of T 10/- each 1.604.18 1,604.19
Totat issued, subscribed and fully pald-up share capital 1,604.19 1,604.18
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Partlcuf 3

artiowars No. of Shares Amount __No. of Sharos Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,604,882 1,604.19 1,59,80,418 1598.04
Issued tufing the year - . 61,466 6.15
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,60,41,882 1,604.19 1,60,41,882 1,604.19

(B} Termsf rights attached to equity shares

‘The Company has a single class of equily shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share (previous year ¥ 10 per share). Each holder of equity share is entilled to one vote per share in proportion of the share of ihe paid-
up capital of the Company held by the I the event of liguidation, the equity are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after discharging a1l fiabilities of the Company, in
proportion to their shareholdings.

{c) Detalls of equlity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the shareholder Number of shares % of share Number of shares % of share
holding holding

Equity shares of €10 each fully paid

Ashutosh Sharma 89,982,172 56.05% 89,92.172 56.05%
Thyme Private Limited, Mauritius 31.40,927 19.58% 31,40,927 19.58%
Norwest Capital, LLC, USA 10,51,947 6.56% 10,51,847 6.56%
NHPEA Kabtu Holding B.V.. 21,08,005 13.14% 21,08,005 13.14%

{d} Shareholding of Promoter in the Company (Equity)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Promoter Name Number of shares % of share Number of shares % of share
holdling holding
Ashutosh Sharma 89,892,172 56.05% 89,92,172 56.05%

Note 20: Instruments entirely equity in nature

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Authorized shares

3.45,63,000 {(March 31, 2022: 3.45,63,000) 0.001% Computsorily Convertivle Preference shas

res (CCPS) of R 20/- each

25,02,000 (March 31, 2022: 25,02,000) Optionally C ible Non C
Total authorized shares capital

issued, subscribed and paid-up shares

Preference shares (QCNCRPS) of ¥ 10/- each

6.912.60
250.20
7,162.80

6,912.60
250,20
7,162.80

RO {17 21 S Y

CCPS:

Cumulative:

26.36,204 0.001%, Participative CCPS of ¥ 20/- each-Seties A 527.24 527.24
74,19,322 0.001%. Participative CCPS of  20/- each-Serigs 8 1,483.86 1.483.86
Non-Cumulative:

76.85,840 0.001%, Parlicipative CCPS of X 20/- each-Series C 1.537.17 1.637.17
92,70,567 0.001%, Parlicipative CCPS of ¥ 20/- each-Series D 1.854.11 1,854.11
74,49,772 0.001%, Participative CCPS of % 20/- each-Series E 1,489.95 1,489.95
OCNCRPS:

24,89,068 (March 31, 2022: 24,89,068) OCNCRPS of ¥ 10/- each (partly paid up T 1) 24.90 24.80
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 6,917.23 6,917.23
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Amount in Rs. lakhs unless staled othenvise)

{a} Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

[ ily Convertible P shares (CCPS)
. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Series A
At the beginning of the year 26.36.204 527.24 26.36.204 527.24
Issued during the year . R . .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 26,36,204 527.24 26,36,204 527.24
Series 8
At the beginning of the year 74,19.322 1.483.86 74,19,322 1,483.86
Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 74,19,322 1,483.86 74,19,322 1,483.86
Series C
At the beginning of the year 76,85,840 1.637.17 76,85,840 1,637.17
Issued duting the year - . - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 76,85,840 1,537.17 76,85,840 1,537.17
Series D
At the beginning of the year 92,70,567 1.854.11 92,70.567 1,854.11
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 92,70,567 1,854.11 92,70,567 1,854.11
Series £
At the beginaing of the year 74,490,772 1,489.95 - -
issued during the year - - 74,483,772 1,489.95
Outstanding at the end of the year 74,49,772 1,489.95 74,48,772 1,489.95
Opfir C ible N i F shares (OCNCRPS)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 24,89,068 24.90 13,00.516 13.01
Issued during the year - - 11.88,562 118.86
Less: ¥ 9 per share not called up - - - {106.97)
Outstanding at the end of the year 24,89,068 24.90 24,89,068 24.90
(b) Terms / Rights attached to C ity C i shares {CCPS)

The Company has issued its Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) in series A, B, C, D and £ having the par value of 3 20, The holders of the CCPS shalf be entitled o receive nolice of and vole on alt
matlers that are submitted to the vate of the Shareholders (induding the holders of Equity Shares). The shares are convertible in the ratio of 1 equity share for 1 CCPS. The shares carry a dividend right of 0.001% per
annum of subscription amount.

For Series A, the preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether or nol paid, and accrued dividends shall be paid in full (fogether with dividends accrued fram prior years, provided that
such dividends are due only when declared) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shaves of any olher class or series in the same Financial Year, excep! the Series B CCPS, Series C
CCPS, Series D CCPS and Series E CCPS which shall rank pari passu to Series A CCPS in relation to dividend. the above. the F ial Dividend shall be due only when declared by the Board.
Series A CCPS may be converied inlo Equity Shares at any time at the option of the holder of that Series A CCPS. However, the same shall be automalically be converled into Equity Shares, at the Series A
conversion price (as defined) then in effect. upon the eartier of (i) 1 (one) day prior 1o the expiry of 20 {twenty) years from the issuance of Series A CCPS; or (i) in connection with an initial public offering approved by
the Quatified 1nvestor Majorily in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, prior to the filing of a prespectus (or equivalent document, by whatever name calfed} by the Company with the competent authority or
such later date as may be permitted under Law.

For Series B, the preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether or not paid, and accrued dividends shati be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior years, provided that
such dividends are due only when dedlared) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon snares of any clr\er class or seties in the same Financial Year, except the Series A CCPS, Series C
CCPS, Series D CCPS and Series E CCPS which shall rank pati passu to Series B CCPS in refation to dividend. the above. the iat Dividend shalt be due only when declared by the Board.
Series B CCPS may be converted inlo Equity Shares at any time at the oplion of the holder of that Sefies B CCPS. However, the same shall be automatically be converted into Equity Shares, at the Series 8
Conversion Price (as defined) then in effect, upon the eadier of: (i} 1 (one) day prior lo the expiry of 20 {twenty) years from the Series B Closing Date, i.e.. 19 May 2017; or (i) in connection with an initial public
offering approved by the Qualified investor Majority in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, prior to the filing of a prospecius (o eguivalent document, by whatever name called) by the Company with the
compstent authority or such fater date as may be permitied under Law.

For Serias C, the ial dividend is ive and shall be payable, as and when declared, from year to year prior to and in preference 1o any dividend or distcibution payable upon shares of any olher dass
or sefies in the same Financlal Year, except the Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series D CCPS, and the Series E CCPS which shall rank pari-passu to Series C CCPS in relation to dividend. Each Series C CCPS
may be converted into Equity Shares al any time at the option of the holder of that Series C CCPS. However, the same shall be automatically be converted into Equity Shares, at the Series C conversion price (as
defined) then in effect, upon the earfier of: (i) 1 (one} day prior to the expiry of 20 {twenty) years from the Series C Clasing Date, i.e.. 18 Seplember 2018; or (i} in connection with an initial public offering approved by
the Quatified Investor Majority in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, prior to the fiting of a prospectus {or equivatent document, by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or
such later date as may be permitted under Law.

For Series D, the pi ial dividend is non- ive and shall be payable, as and when declared, from year to year prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other dass
of series In the same Financial Year, except the Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS which shatl rank pari passu to Series © CCPS in refation to dividend. Each Series D CCPS may be converted into
Equity Shares at any lime at the option of the holder of that Series D CCPS. Each Series D CCPS may be converted inlo Equity Shares at any time at the oplion of the holder of that Series D CCPS. However, the
same shall be aulomatically be converted into Equity Shares, al the Series D conversion price (as defined) then in effect, upon the earlier of: {i} 1 {one) day prior to the expiry of 20 {twenty) years from the Closing
Date; or (ii} in connection with a IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus {or equivalent document, by whateves name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under
Law; of (iii) upon occurrence of a Liquidation Event, if required.

For Series E, the pi ial dividend is non- ive and shall be payable, as and when declared, from year 1o year prior to and in preference 1o any dividend or disteibution payable upon shares of any other class
or series in the same Financial Year, except the Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS Series C CCPS and the Series D CCPS which shall rank pari-passu to Series E CCPS in relation to dividend. Each Series E CCPS
may be converted into Equity Shares at any time at the option of the holder of that Series € CCPS, However, the same shall be automalically be converted into Equily Shares, at the Series € conversion price {as
defined) then in effect. upon the earlier of: (i) 1 (one) day prior ta the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the Closing Date; or (i) in conneclion with an initial public offering approved by the Qualified Investor Majority in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement, prior 10 the filing of a prospectus {or equivateni document, by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such fater date as may be permitted
under Law.

In the event of a Liquidalion Event, out of the proceeds of the Liguidation Eveat, each holders of Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS, Series D CCPS and Series E CCPS and holders of equity shares
shalt be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis, an amount which is the pro-rata entittement of the Liquidation Proceeds based on their sespeciive shareholding in the Company on a Fully Diuted Basis.

{c) Terms / Rights attached to Optionatly Convertible Non € Shares
The Company has a dlass of Optionatly Convertible Non Ct i shares (OCNCRPS) having par value of € 10 per share.

OCNCRPS shall be converted into Equity Shares subject to adjustment on account of any share splits, share consolidations, recapitalizations, or like events. The OCNCRPS which are fully paid and subject to
conditions specified under the said Agreement, shall carry 1 (one) vole per share on and as if paid-up and converted basis. Further, each OCNCRPS shall be entilled to dividend at the rale of 0.001% per annum until
they are converted into Equity Shares.

In any Liquidation Event, the Incentive Shares shall not be treated in preference or priority 1o the Equity Securities of the Investors, whether pending conversion or after conversion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in Rs lakhs unless staled otherwise}

(d) Details of preference shares{CCPS) held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

N £ sharehold March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ame of shareholder No of CCPS % of holding No of CCPS % of holding
Preference shares(CCPS) of ¥ 20 each fully paid
Series A-C ity i shares
Thyme Private Limited 13.18.830 50.03% 13,18,830 50.03%
Lightrack Glabal Fund 13,17.374 49.97% 1317374 48.97%
Series B-C i ible p shares
Thyme Private Limited 25,99.187 35.03% 25,99,187 35.03%
CX Alternalive Investment Fund 6,27.239 8.45% 6.27.239 8.45%
Ashutosh Sharma 3,86.279 5.21% 3.86,279 5.21%
Atma Ram Properties Private Limited 3.86,279 5.21% 3,86.279 5.21%
Norwes! Capital, LLC 34,20,338 46.10% 34,20.338 46.10%
Series C-C ily pl shares
Lightrock Global Fund 70,84,614 92.31% 70,94,614 92.31%
Norwesl Capitat, LLC 591,126 7.68% 5,91,126 7.69%
Series D-C [sort il shares
NHPEA Kabru Helding B.V. 86,37,070 93.17% £6,37,070 9.17%
Lightrock Global Fund 6,33,497 6.83% 6.33,497 6.83%
Series E-C p shares
NHPEA Kabru Holding B.V. 16,83,863 22.60% 16.83,963 22.60%
Norwest Capital, LLC 57,65,809 77.40% 57.65,808 77.40%
e) Shareholding of Pramoter in the Company {CCPS)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Promoter Name Number of shares % of share Number of shares % of share
holding holding
Ashutosh Sharma 3.86.279 $.21% 3.86.279.00 5.21%
{f} Details of preference shares{OCNCRPS) held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of shares % of share Number of shares % of share
holding holding
Preference shares(OCNCRPS) of ¥ 10 each fully paid
Ashutosh Sharma 21,44,285 86.15% 21.44,285 86.15%
Sachin Grover 290,175 11.66% 290,175 11.66%
(g} ing of Promoter in the C: (OCNCRPS)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Promoter Name Number of shares % of share Number of shares % of share
holding holding
Ashulosh Sharma 21.44,285 86.15% 21,44,285.00 86.15%
Note 21: Other equity
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Share premlum
Opening Bafance 33,011.04 17,931.76
Add: Premium on issue of share capital - 16,338.12
Less: Share issue expenses - (258.84)
Total {A} 33,011.04 33,011.04
Statutory reserve under Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Opening Balance 773.49 400.30
Add: Transfer to statutory reserve £691.96 373.19
Total (8) 1,465.45 773.49
Share based payment reserve
Opening Ralance 458.16 355.23
Add: Charge for the year 179.82 102.93
Total {C) 637.98 458.16
Retained earnings (accumulated losses)
Opening Balance 2474.12 982.63
Add: Profit for the year 3459.79 1865.93
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year (3.76) (1.26)
Less: Transfer to statutary reserve (691.96) (373.19)
Yotal {D} 5,238.19 2,474.12
Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance (20.87) {22.05)
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year (32.82) 1.18
Total (E} (53.69] 20.87,
Grand Total {A+B+C+D+E} 40,298.97 36,695.94

Share premlum account - Share premium account is credited when shares are issued at premium. [t can be used to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, share issue
related expenses like underwriting costs etc. in accordance with Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013.

Statutory reserve under Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987- As per Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act {NHB). 1987, the Company is required 1o transfer al least 20% of its net profits every year 10 a reserve
before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserve created by the Gompany under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible lranster. Thus, during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has ransferred (o Stalulory Reserve, an amount ardived in accordance with Section 29C of the NHB Adt, 1987.

Share based payment reserve - The share based payment reserve is used to recognise grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Company’s slock option schemes,
Retalned earnings (accumulated fosses) - Retained earnings represents the amount of accumutated eamings of the Company.

Other Income - of he net defined benefit liabilittes comprise actuarial gain/ loss.
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(Amount in Rs. fakfis unless staled othenwvise)

Note 22: Interest Income

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

interest on term loans 13,367.55 9,078.94
interesl Income on deposits wilh banks. 492.54 384.05
Total 13,860.09 9,462.99

Note 23: Fee and commission Income

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Commilment fee 422.24 210.47
Other fee Income 368.96 200.03
Commission Income 101.21 47.74

Total 912.41 458.24

Geographical markets

[n India 91241 458.24
Outside India - -
Total revenue fram contracts with customers 91241 458.24

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 91241 4568.24

Services transferred over time - N

Total revenue from contracts with customers 912.41 458,24

Note 24: Net gain on of financial at cost

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments. 1014.78 539.48

Total 1014.79 539.48

Note 25: Net galn on fair value changes

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

Total net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss

-~ On trading portfolio - investment in units of mutual funds 147,25 262.52
- On trading portfolio - investment in Bonds and Market Linked Debenlures 10,28 -
157.53 262.52

Total net gain on falr value changes on financial instruments measured at falr vaiue through profit and loss .
Fair value changes:

~Reatised 131.38 406.92
~Unrealised 26.14 {144.40)
Total 157.53 262.52

Note 26: Other Income

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Advertisement income 150.00 155.04
Other incoma 33.54 27.81

Totat 183.54 182.85

Note 27: Finance Cost

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost:
Interest on borrowings

617.36 841.08

~Term Loans
~from Nationa! Housing Bank 571.06 396.86
-from banks 1,951.31 1,099.55
~from Non-Banking Financial Institutions 156.25 400.97
-from Financial institutions. 350.25 454,84
-Cash credit facilities with scheduled banks 96.55 70.26
~Working Capital Demand Loan with scheduled banks 3.22 1.01
{nterest expenses on lease liability 38,7t 47.68
Unwinding of Interest expense on servicing liability 598 8.54
Interest on Securitised pool 366.38 163.54
Other borrowing Cost 60.29 83.57
Total 4,223.36 3,567.70
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Note 28: impatrment on financial instruments

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at amartised cost:

Loan assels and EIS receivable (54.00) 20.34
Loans wrillen off and Loss on acquired asset 83.59 49.25
Loan commitment (refer note 17.1.2) (0.64) 5.80

Total 3495 7533

Note 29: Employee benefits expenses

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 4.739.18 3.192.02
Conlribution fe providenl and othet funds 177.08 110.86
Share based payments to employees 179.82 121.20
Staff welfare expenses 98.76 61.94

Total 5,194.76 3,486.02

Nate 30: Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent 72.48 4275
Rates and taxes 21.23 4.06
Repairs and maintenance

Computers 248.01 147.46
Others 152.00 100.59
Efectricily & Water charges 25,06 29.38
Travelling and conveyance 279.25 129.92
Cemmunication expenses 86.32 70.66
Printing and stationery 57.76 39.38
Manpower Cost 92.89 44.35
Advertising and sales promotion 92.71 4543
Legal and professional fee 216.26 133.64
Customer Acquisition Cost B 357.64 222.56
Oireclors” silling fee 34.12 2275
Auditor's remuneration {refer note A befow) 7.70 11.74
Bank charges 37.44 17.92
Donations 2979 16.11
Miscellaneous expenses. 17.69 9.59

Total 1828.35 1088.29

A: Payment to audltors

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor:

Audit fee 3.50 5.00
Limited Review 1.00 4.25
Tax audit fee 0.50 1.00
In other capacity:

Certification fee 270 1.40
Reimbursement of expenses. - 0.09
Total .10 11.74

Note 31: Income tax
The components of Income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

Profit or loss section March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 860.11 487.54
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year 17.92 (23.22)
Deferrad tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 176.20 94.17
fncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1054.23 558.49
Other Comprehensive Income section March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversat of temporary differences 12.30 0.03
Income tax expense reported in other comprehensive section 12.30 0.03
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Notes o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the ing profit iplied by India's ic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 4514.02 242441
Tax at Statutory Income Tax rate of @25.17% (Previous year 25.17%} 1136.09 610.18
Permanent differences 7.50 4.05

impact of lax deduction u/s 36(1){viii) of Income-lax Act 1961 {96.50) (37.45)
Olhers (including rate change) {10.78) 4.93

Tax at Effective income Tax rate of@23.04% (Previous year 22.71%) 1,036.31 581.70

Tax on other comprehensive Income 12.30 0.03

Tax for earier years 17.92 (23.22)
Total tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 1066.53 558,51

Deferred Tax
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income 1ax expense:

Particulars Deferred tax Deferred tax  Net Deferred tax Income ocl
assets liabilities liabilities Statement
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 2022-23 2022-23
E1S receivables - (430.01} {430.01} (162.58) -
EiR- borfowings - {126.04) {126.04) {95.63) -
Property, plant and equipment - (9.11) {8.11) (2.78) -
Provision for employee benefits 47.87 - 47.87 14.08 1.26
Expected credit loss (ECL) 143.16 - 143.16 12.42 -
Unamortised processing fees on loans 346.31 - 346.31 110.81 -
Foreign exchange loss on derivative instrument 18.06 - 18.06 11.04 11.04
tnrealised gain on mutual fund (6.58) - (6.58) (42.92) -
Employee stock compensation expenses - - - - -
Other Adjustments 97.30 {88.91) 8.39 {20.62) -
Gross deforred tax asset 646.12 (654.07) 7.95) (176.20) 1230
Defeired tax Deferredtax  Net Deferred tax tncome oal
Pastlculars assets liabilities asset Statement
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 2021-22 2021-22
EIS receivables - (267.43) (267.43) (78.29) -
EIR- borrowings - (30.41) {30.41) 8.22 -
Property, plant and equipment - (6.33) (6.33) (2.44) -
Provision for employee benefits 33.79 - 3379 .85 .42
Expected credit loss (ECL) 130.74 - 130.74 (19.59) -
Unamortised pracessing fees on foans 235.51 - 23551 42.24 -
Foreign exchange loss an derivative instrument 7.02 - 7.02 (0.40) {0.40)
Unrealised gain on mutual fund 36.34 - 36.34 36.34
Employee stock compensation expenses - . - {89.40) -
Other Adjustments 122.00 (105.28) 16.72 {0.67) -
Total 565.40 (409.45} 155.95 {94.14) 0.02

Note 32 : Earning per share
Basic earning per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attribulable to equity hoiders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating dituted earning per share, the net profit of loss for the year atlributable to equily shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Following reflects the net profit and weighted average equity shares data used in EPS computation:

Basic

Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Basic EPS (in Nos.) 5,05,03,587 4,67,99,239
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS 3,459.79 1,865.92
Baslc eaming per share (in Rs.) 6.85 399
Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Diluted EPS (in Nos.) 5,22.45,835 4,82,96,949
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 3.459.79 1,865.92
Diluted sarning per share {in Rs.) 6.62 3.86

Recongciliation of Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Basic EPS 5,05.03,587 4,67,99.239
Add: Dilutive potential equity shares 17,42,048 14,97,710
Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Diluted EPS 6,22,45,635 4,82,96,949
NominaliFace value of equity share (in Rs.} 10 10

Note 33: Retirement benefit plan

{A) Datined contribution plan
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Employer’s contribution to Employee's Piovident Fund * 157.78 111.26

* Provident fund is a defined contsibution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regionat Provident fund Commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless slaled othenvise)

{B} Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined bonefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or mare of service is efigible for gratuity on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days salary (last drawn
safary} for each completed year of service subject Lo such limit as prescribed by The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from lime 1o time.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefits expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the batance sheel for fhe respective plans:

Table showing change in present value of projected benefit obligation
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Change in benefit obligations

Present value of benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 102.07 70.34
interest cost 5.65 3.81
Current service cost 37.08 26.71
Actuatial gain on Obligations due to change in demographic assumptions . -
Actuarial loss on Obligations due 1o change in financial assumptions. {9.59} 0.50
Actuarial Losses on Obligations-Due to Experience 14.61 1.18
Regidar benefit payments directly by the sponsor {10.39) (0.47)
Liability at the end of the year 139.43 102.07

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of benefit obligation af the end of the year 139.43 102.07
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 139.43 102.07
inthe of Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 37.08 28,71
Net Interest cost 5.65 3.8t
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 42.73 30.52
In the Other Income {OCH)
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Remeasurement loss/(gain) of defined benefit plan 5.02 168
Net for the year inoCi 5.02 1.68
The actuarial used to benefit as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 are as follows:
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate 7.13% 5.83%
Salary escalation rate 850% % g_(s';:e‘ﬂh;sgﬂe:
Employee Turnover rate 20.00% 20.00%

Balance Sheel reconciliation for defined benefit obligations

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Opening net fiability 102.07 70.34
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 42.713 30.52
Expenses recognized in OCI 5.02 1.68
Benefits paid during the year (10.39) (0.47)
Net liabllity recognized In the Balance Sheet 139.43 102.07

Cash Flow Projection

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Projected benefits payable In future years from the date of reporting

15t folfowing year 16.89 11.34
2105 years 8263 52,72
6 1o 10 years 61.03 46,76
More than 10 years 52.01 34.60

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
i benefit obligation on current
Delta effect of \‘1% change in rate of discounting {6.62) (5.12)
Della effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 121 5.64
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 6.34 4.85
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of safary increase (5.92) {4.52}
Della effect of +25% change in rate of employee turnover (8.98) {7.87)
Delta effect of -25% change in rate of employee iumover 10.89 10.22
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{C) Other Retirement benefits

Compensated Absence
The company provides compensated absences benefils to the employees of the company whiich can be carried forward to future periods. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss for compensated
absences is as under-

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
-Leave Encashment 50.77 3218

The Indian Parliament iias approved the Code an Social Security, 2020 which assumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and Employment hias also released draft
rules thereunder on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company vall evaluate the rules, asses the impact. if any, and
account for the same once the rides are noified and become effective.

Note 34: Segment Infarmation

The Company's main business is financing by way of loans for purchase or ion of residential houses, real estate and certsin other purposes in India. All other activities of the Company revolve
around the main business. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per IND-AS 108 dealing with Operating Segment.

Note 35: Change in i arislng from fil

Particulars April 1,2022 Cash flows (net} Others* March 31, 2023
Debt securitios 4,452.34 1,126.66 (42.99) 5,536.01

Borrowings other than debt securities 22,697.33 31,020.19 {340.14) 53.377.38

Total 27,149.67 32,146.85 {383.13} 58,913.39

Particulars April 1,2021 Cash flows (net) Others* March 31, 2022
Debt securilies 7,779.07 (3.352.13) 25.40 445234

Borrowings other than debt securities 27.013.93 (4.365.32) 48.72 22,697.33
Total 34,793.00 {7,717.45) 74.12 27,149.67

*Others column includes amortisation of lransaction cost and hedge impact of borrowings

Note 36: Contingent Habilltles and commitments

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Undisbursed amaount of loans sanctioned {refer note 17.1) 5,264.85 3,643.21
Note 37: Related party disclosures

(A} Names of related parties identified in accordance with IND AS -24 *Relaled Party Disclosures” are given befow:

1. Entities where contro! exists:
None

2. having

Ashutosh Sharma

NHPEA Kabru Holding B.V., Nethedands
Thyme Privale Limited, Mauritius
Lighirock Global Fund, Luxembourg
Norwest Capital LLC,USA

3. Key management personnel

Mr. Ashutosh Sharma Managing Director

Mr. Sachin Grover Whole Time Director

Mr. Inderjit Walia Independent Director

Mrs. Geeta Mathur tndependent Director

Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Non-Executive Nominee Director
Mr. Rajeev Yashwant inamdar Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta Non-Execulive Nominee Director
Mr. Vinayak Prabhakar Shenvi Non-Executive Nominee Director
Mr. Bikash Kumar Mishra Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Nitin Agrahari Company Secretary

4. Enterprises under of the key 1
None

5. of key i {with whom there were during the y P year)
Norne

(B} The nature and volume of transactions carried oul with ihe above related parties in the ordinary course of business are as follows :

1. Transactions during the year
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

A. Remuneration to KMP:

{a) Short term employee benefils 459.39 398.06

{b} Share based Payment 16.68 41.59
B. issue of Shares (OCNCRPS}

{a) Mr. Ashutosh Shanna - 10.79

{b) M. Sachin Grover - 0.81
C. Sitting fee

{3} Mrs. Geeta Mathur 13.30 8.90

{b} Mr, Inderjit Walia 12.00 4.50

{c} Mr. Rajeev Yashwant inamdar 6.00 7.47

99



Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in Rs. fakhs unless stated othenvise)

2. Bal i able) at year end

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Short Tetm employee benefits . 14.08
Note: Short term employee benefits with ions 10 key i does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuariat basis for the Company
as a whote.

The company has not granted any loaas or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the refated patties during the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022
Note 38: Capital Management

For the putpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued share capital, share premium and all other equity reserves atlribulable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of
the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in i tions and the requi of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which s total debt divided
by net worth. The Company’s policy is 1o keep the gearing ralio at reasonable level of 2-4 times in imminent year while the Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Hausing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 currently permits HFCs to borrow up 1o 12 imes of their net owned funds ("NOF*). The Corspany includes with in debt, its all interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Debts 58,913.39 27,149.67
Net worth 48,670.14 44,961.90
Debt to Net worth (in times) 1.21 0.60
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure that it meets financials covenants attached 10 the interest-bearing loans and A Breaches
in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financiats of any inl 1-bearing loans and ing in the cument
year.

Note 39: Maturity analysis of assets and liabititles
The table below shows contractual maturity profile of carrying value of assets and liabilities:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets Within 12 Months  After 12 Months Total Within 12 Months  After 12 Months Tota!

Financials assets
Cash and cash equivatents. 36.28 - 36.28 27.86 - 27.86
Bank Balance other than cash

and cash equivalents 382175 1.953.63 5775.38 5413.32 640.25 6,053.57
Derivative financial instruments - 2864 ) 28.64 75.65 - 75.65
Loans 7.296.48 93.495.50 1,00,791.98 5,010.89 62,372.18 67,383.07
Investments 1.098.08 - 1,098.08 420.00 - 42000
Other financials assets 614.31 1,21556 1.829.87 1,043.14 782.30 1,825.44

Non-financlals assets
Current tax assels (net) - 141.86 141.86 - -
- - 165.95 155.85

Detfered tax assefs (net) - -

Preperty, plant and equipment - 257.41 257.41 - 212.08 212.08
intangible assets - 107.71 107.71 - 88.51 99.51
Right to use assels - 350.97 350.97 - 41837 418.37
intangible assets under Development - 4254 42.54 -
Other non-financial assels 275.84 30.58 306.42 159.73 25.85 185.58
Assel held for Sale 27.36 - 27.38 - - -
Total assets 13,170.10 97,624.40 1,10,794.50 12,150.59 64,706.49 76,857.08

Financlals llabilitles
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of
micro eplevpnse and smalt 512 . 5.12 1.34 . 1.34
enterprises

{ii) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro

enterprise and small 108.98 - 108.98 67.21 - 67.29
enterprises

Debt securities 325.65 5,210.36 5,636.01 1,273.23 3,179.11 4,452.34
Borrowings (other than debt

securities) 14,779.08 38.598.30 53,377.38 9.534.27 13,163.06 22,697.33
Lease liabililies 167.27 219.34 386.61 185.39 284.60 469.99
Other financials liabilities 1.974.60 - 1,974.60 3,528.27 - 3,526.27

Non-financlal llabilities
Deffered lax Liabilities (net) - 7.95 7.95

7.96 - 7.96

Current tax liabitities (net) - - -

Provisions 229.46 159.94 389.40 151.09 114.70 265.79
Other non-financial liabilities 188.06 - 188.06 151,49 - 151.48
Total liabifities 17,778.22 44,195.89 61,974.11 14,898.25 16,741.47 31,638.72
Net {4,608.12) 53,428.51 48,820.39 {2,747.66) 47,965.02 45,217.386
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Note 40: Financial risk management

40.1 introduction and risk profie

Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities. it is managed through an tisk including ongoing and . subject to risk imits and other
controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's profitability and each individuat within the Company s accauntable for the risk exposures relating 10 fis of her responsibilities. The Company i
exposed to credil risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Il is also subject 10 various operating and business risks. The Company alsa has a system of lnternal controls to reduce the residual risk in each of these categories
and effectiveness of these controls is assessed periodically.

40.1.1 Risk management structure and policies

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for ap the risk ies and principles. The Risk G ittee has the overall itity for
the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles. frameworks, policies and fimils. The Risk C ittee is ible for ing fisk decisions and monitoring risk tevels and reports to
the Board.

The Risk [e ittee is {or ing and mai ing risk related 1o ensure an i control process is maintained. The unit works closely with and reports 10 the Risk
Management Commmee 1o ensure zhal procedu!es are compliant with the overall framework.

The Unit is also for with risk principles, policies and timits across the Company, induding maonitoring the acluat risk of exposures against aulhorised limits and the assessment of

risks of new products and structured transactions. The Company's Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and fiabilities and the overall financial structure, It is also primarily responsible for the funding and
liguidity tisks of the Company.

40.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its or ies fail to di their igati Credit isk in the Company is managed through a framework that sets out
policies and covering the and of credit risk. There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction originators in the business function and approvers in the credil risk
function. Board approved credit policies and procedures mitigate the Company’s prime risk which is the default risk. There is a robust Credit Risk Management set-up in the Company at various levels.

1. There are Credxl (eams to ensure implementation of various poficies and processes through random customer visits and assessment, training of branch staff on application errors, liaison with other institutions to
obtain Yy closure . as {he case may be, and highlight eady warning signals and industry enabling pro-active field fisk

2. The credit sanclion is done through a defegation matrix where credit sanciioning powers are defined for respective levels.
3. Portfolio analysis and reporting is used to identify and manage credit quality and concentration risks.

4. Credit risk monitoring for \he Company is broadly done at two fevels: account leve! and portfclio level. Account mom(onng aims to identify weak accounts at an incipient stage to facifitate corrective action. Portfclio
itoring aim towards risk in the porttolio as welt as identifying stress in centain occupations, markets and states.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk is Rs. 1,03,046.51 lakhs and Rs. 69,044.61 lakhs as of 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022
respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of Loan assets and EIS receivable

40.2.1 Analysis of risk concentration

Tha Company’s concentrations of risk is managed based on Loan to value (LTV) type and ical spread. The following tables stralify credit exposures from housing and other loans 10
customers by these metrics. LTV is calculated as the ratio of sanction amount of foans o the value of the collateral. The value of the coflaterat for housing and other loans is based on collateral value at origination.

Loans to Customers:
As at March 31, 2023

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
<=40 35.038.23 530.05 136.23 35.704.51
40-60 40,226.04 691.70 146.10 41,063.84
60-70 13,203.48 165.58 8113 13,540.19
70-80 9.534.90 108.23 33.58 9.676.71
>80 1,248,861 82.58 21.32 1,352.71
Total 99,341.46 1,578.14 418.36 1,01,337.96
Employment Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Salaried 2722595 370.41 77.32 27.673.68

Seif Employed 72,1155 1.207.73 341.04 73,664.28
Total 99,341.46 1,578.14 418.36 1,01,337.96
Geographical Concentration Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Rajasthan 52,439.59 903.41 232.14 53,575.14
Haryana 20.861.83 250.62 §3.38 21,165.83
Delni 8,930.85 204.04 52.47 8,187.36
Chandigarh 7.269.13 70.99 25.74 7.365.86
Uttar Pradesh 3,962.48 149.08 48.15 4,159.71
Uttarakhand 3,510.06 - 6.48 3,516.5¢4
Punjab 2.367.52 - - 2,367.52
Total 99,341.46 1,578.14 418.36 1,01,337.96

As at March 31, 2022

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
<=40 24.182.25 §83.22 123.00 24,888.47
40-60 176.48 93.59 114.88 385.03
60-70 25,982.94 731.59 226.20 26,940.73
70-80 8,626.61 323.37 66.13 9.018.19
>80 6,513.93 202.53 33.22 6,749.68
Total 65,484.19 1,934.30 563.53 67,982.02
Employment Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Salaried 18,713.74 417.74 91.80 19,223.28

Self Employed 46,770.45 1,516.56 471.73 48,758.74
Total 65,484.19 1,934.30 563.53 67,962.02
Geographical Concentration Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Rajasthan 30,784.05 802.78 142.66 31.729.48
Haryana 16,045.76 300.10 141.93 16,487.79
Dethi 7,465.58 421,98 141.91 8,029.47
Chandigarh 6.980.84 162.46 67.96 7.211.26
Uttar Pradesh 2,328.26 246.98 69.07 264431
Utlarakhand 972.75 - - 972.75
Punjab 906.95 - - 906.95

Total $5,484.19 1,934.30 563.53 67,982.02
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40.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk refers to the risk that (he company can not meet iis financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is o maintain sutficient liquidity and to ensure that funds are avaitable for use as per
the requirement. The unavailability of adequate amount of funds at optimum cost and co-terminus tenure to repay the financial liabiliies and further grovith of business may result in Asset liability Management (ALM)
mismalch caused by a difference in the maturity profite of Company assets and liabilifies This risk may arise from the unexpected increase in (he cost of funding an assel portfolio at the appropriale malurily and the
sk of being unable to iquidate a position in 4 timely manner and at & reasonable price. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate cash reserves and undrawn credit facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actuat cash flows, and by malching the malurity profiles of financiat assets and liabilities.

The table befow summaries the malurity profite of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financiaf assets and liabilities:
As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Up to 1 year 1-3 years 3-5years 5 years and above Total
Lease liabilities 167.27 178.03 4131 - 386.61
Borrowings {including debt securities) 19,058.60 24,344.31 19,046.49 6,861.73 69,311.13
Trade payables 114.10 - - - 114.10
Other financials fiabilities 1,874.60 - - - 1,974.60
Totat 21,314.57 24,522.34 19,087.80 6,861.73 71,786.44

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Up to 1 year 1-3 years 3-Syears S years and above Total
Lease liabilities 227.58 205.15 127.63 7.00 567.36
Borrowings (including debt securities) 12,508.50 14,708.12 2,021.40 102,17 28,341.18
Trade payables 177.99 - - - 177.99
Other financials liabilities 3,526.27 - - - 3.526.27
Total 16,441.34 14,913.27 2,149.03 109.17 33,612.81

40.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market factors. Such changes in the values of financial Instruments may fesull from changes
in the interest rates, currency and other market factors. The Company's exposure o market risk on the account of interest rate risk and price risk.

Interest rate risk

The company is subject to interest rate risk, primarity since it lends ta customers at rates and for maturily periods that may differ from funding sources. Interest rales are highly sensilive to many factors beyond
control, including the monetary policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and intemational economic and political conditions, inflation and other factars. In order to
manage interest rale risk, the company seek {o optimize borrowing profite between short-term and long-term loans. The company adopts funding sirategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize
cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabililies are categorized into various time buckets based on their matutities and Asset Liability C i pervise an interest rate itivity report
periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitigates its interest rate tisk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and fioating rate loans and borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table the itivity to 8 possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and foss:

{a) Loans (at floating rate)

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Basls point Effect on profit Basls point Effect on profit
before tax hefore tax
increase in basis points 50 23115 50 145,53
Decrease in basis points -50 {231.15) -50 (145.53)
(b} Borrowings (Other than debf securifies) (at floating rate)
Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Basis polnt Effact on profit Basis point Effect on profit
before tax before tax
increase in basis points 50 (213.20) 50 {17.71)
Decrease in basis points -50 213.20 50 7774
Price Risk
The Company is exposed {o price risk from its investment in mulual funds measured al fair value through statement of profit and loss
Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Basis point Effect on profit Basis point Effect on profit
before tax before tax
Increase in basis poins 50 5.49 50 210
Decrease in basis points -50 {5.49) -50 {2.10)
Note 41: Corporate social responsibility
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for respeclive financial year 29.77 15.73
{b) Total amount of expenditure incurred during the year: 28.79 16.11
i) constructionfacquisition of any asset - -
) on purposes other than {i) above 29.79 16.11
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
{d} Yotal amount of previous years shortfall - -
{e) Reason for shortfalt NA NA
The Company undertakes the following activities in the nature of Corperate social responsibility (CSR):
1. Promoting health care 5.00 9.86
2. Promoting education, for the Girl Chitd through Community-Based Learning Centres 15.52 6.25
3. Financial literacy & business training program for women kirana entrepreneurs in Jaipur 5.00 -
4. Promoting sports, nationally recognized sports & olympic sports 3.21 -
5. Welfare project for disadvantaged children and women living in the rehabilitation communities 1.00 -

Note: There have been no refated parly transactions during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 in respect of CSR activities.
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Note 42: Expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Interest payments* . -
Legal and professional charges 77.64 -
Total 77.64 -
™ Company has lull currency swap w.c.1. ECB transaction which provide hoth Interest and exchange rate hedging of principal and coupon payments, hence there is no foreign currency oulfiow for the campany.

Note 43: Employee stock Option Plan

{i} Details of the plan are given befow:

The Company formulated the *Ummeed Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017° ("ESOP 2017") which was approved by the Shareholders on May 25, 2017 and the amendment made in Scheme in 2018 was approved
by Shareholders in extra-ordinary general meeting held on May 22, 2018. Under the plan, the Company can issue up 1o 20,60,658 (Twenly Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Eight) Employee Stock Options
ta the Employees under ESOP 2017, exercisable inlo not more than 20,60.658 (Twenty Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Eight) fully paid-up equity Shares in the Company, with each such Option
conferring a right upon the Employee to apply for one Share of the Company. in accordance with the terms and conditions of such issue and subject to the provisions of ESOP 2017.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the following stock option grants were in operation:

Partfculars ESOP 20171 ESOP 20471l ESOP 2017 I_I_IJ ESOP 2017 IV| ESOP 2017 Vi ESOP 2017 vl ESOP 2017 VIi}
1. Date of grant 25-05-2017) 25.05-2017 25-06-2018) 25052019 ©2-01-2020) 25-05-2020) 25-05-2021
2. Number of Options granted 7.76.675 3.08.492 42329 33,000 25,000 64,500 150,674
3. Method of Shares Shares| Shares Shares Shares| Shares Shares
4. Total vesting period 5 Years 5 Years S Years 5 Years 5 Years| 5 Years 4 Years
5. Exercise price per option 10 28.50] 28.50 28.50 28.50] 28.50 28.50
6. Fair value of options 33.94-43.42] 22.77-31.30] 313 47.67 - 49.42 45.63 - 48.69 44.63 - 47.65] 93.01-67.55)
7. Stock price on the date of grant 40.84 40.64 50.26/ 69.53] 69.53 69453! 115.34]
Panticulars ESOP 2017 IX ESOP 2017 X ESOP 2017 Xi ESQOP 2017 X3l ESOP 2017 Xill ESOP 2017 XiV. ESOP 2017 XV

1. Date of grant 05-08-2021 16-09-2021 12-10-2021 01-12-2021 01-01-2022 17-01-2022 25-01-2022
2. Number of Options granted 10,000 3.000 20,000 3,000 17,500 2,500 15,000
3. Method of selifement Shares Shares Shares Shares; Shares Shares! Shares:
4. Total vesting period 4 Years| 4 Years 4 Years| 4 Years 4 Yeats| 4 Yeats| 4 Years|
5. Exercise price per oplion 28.50| 28.50 28.50] 28.50 28.50 28.50] 28,50,
6. Fair value of options 93.10-67.75] 93.10-97.75] 93.10-97.75| 93.10-97.75 93.10-97.75] 93.10-97.75 93.10-67.75|
7. Stock price on the date of grant 116.34] . 176.6) 176.6[ 176.6| 176.6] 176.6) 176.6]
Particulars ESOP 2017 XVI | ESOP 2017 XVil | ESOP 2017 Xviii ESQP 2017 XiX ESOP 2017 XX ESOP 2017 XXt ESOP 2017 XXII
1. Date of grant 08-04-2022 25-05-2022| 01-08-2022 15-09-2022 21-08-2022 01-12-2022 01-01-2023
2. Number of Options granted 25,000 1.03.000 3,000 5,000 30,000 5,000 7,000
3. Method of seftlement Shares Shares| Shares| Shares| Shares| Shares| Shares
4. Total vesting period 4 Years 4 Years| 4 Years: 4 Years| 4 Years 4 Years| 4 Years|
5. Exercise price per option 28.50, 28.50] 28.50 28.50] 28.50 28.50] 28.50
6. Fair value of options. 203.5-205.4 204.2-206 204.4 -206.1 204.5-206.1 204.5-206.2| 204.5-206.2| 204.6-206.3|
7. Stock price on the date of grant 221.9 227.9] 227.9 227.9] 227.9 227.9 227.9
Particulars ESOP 2017 XXIIl | ESOP 2017 XXIV | ESOP 2017 XXV

1. Date of grani 21-01-2023 01-02-2023| 27-03-2023

2. Number of Options granted 85,000 3.500 60,000

3. Method of settlement Shares| Shares Shares

5 Tolal vesting period 4 Years| 4 Years| 4 Years|

5. Exercise price per oplion 28.50] 26.50) 28.50)

6. Fair value of options 204.6-206.2] 304.6-206.3 204.7 -206.3,

7. Stock price on the date of grant 227.9| 227.9 227.9

1. Exercise perlod : Upon happening of any liquidity event or any other period as decided by board or NRC.

2. Vesting conditions :60% of the opfions granted shall be lime based {i.e. i wilh the and 40% of the options shall be performance based.

{ii) The expense recagnised for employee services received during the year is shown in the folfowing table:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expense arising from equity-settied share-based payment transactions 179.82 121,20
Total 179.82 121.20
(i} Reconclliation of opticns

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars ESOP 2017 | ESOP 20171l ESOP 2017 Ilf ESOP 2017 IV ESOP 2017 Vi ESOP 2017 Vil_| ESOP 2017 VIt
1. Options outstanding at April 1. 2022 7.69.714 2,53322 27,664 28,267 23,4717 50,992 1,48,574
2. Granted during the year - - - - - - -
3. Forfeited during the year - - 750 1376 - 10,500 17,500
4. Exercised during the year - - - - - - -
5. Expired during the year N T B B z . T
6. Outstanding at March 31, 2023 769,714 2,53,322 26,914 26,892 23,477 40,492 131,074
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2023 7.69.714 2,53,322 18,840 12,101 10,565 12,148 26,215
Particutars. ESOP20171X ESOP 2017 X ESOP 2017 XI ESOP 2017 Xil ESOP 2017 Xill ESQOP 2017 XIV ESOP 2017 XV
1. Options outstanding at Aprit 1, 2022 10,000 3,600 20,000 3.000 17.500 2,500 15,000
2. Granted during the year - - - - - - -
3. Forfeited during the year B B 16,000 N B - B
4. Exercised during the year - - - - - - -
5. Expired during the year - - - - - - -
6. Qutstanding at March 31, 2023 10,000 3.000 5,000 3.000 17,500 2.500 15,000
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2023 2,000 600 1,000 600 3,500 500 3,000
Particulars ESOP 2017 XVI | ESOP 2017 VIl | ESOP 2017 XVl | ESOP 2017 XIX ESOF 2017 XX | ESOP 2017 XXi_| ESOP 2017 XXit
1. Oplions outstanding at April 1, 2022 - - - - - - -
2. Granted during the year 25,000 1,03,000 3,000 5000 30.006 5.000 7,000
3. Forfeited during the year B 17,500 N N z N B
4. Exercised during the year - - - - - - -
5. Expited during the year N < z z B T -
6. Outstanding at March 31, 2023 25,000 85,500 3.000 5,000 30,000 5,000 7,000
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - - - - - - -
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Particulars ESOP 2017 XXill | ESOP 2017 XXIV | ESOP 2017 XXV
1. Options oulslanding at April 1, 2022 - - -
2. Granted duting the year 85.000 3.500 60,060

3. Forfeiled during the year
4. Exercised during the year - - -
5. Expired during 1he year N

6. Quislanding at March 31, 2023 85,000 3,500 60,000
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - - -

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars ESOP 2017} ESOP 2017 1t ESOP 2017 HI ESOP 2017 IV ESOP 2017 Vi ESOP 2017 VIl ESOP 2017 VIl

1. Options outstanding at Aprit 1, 2021 7.76,675 294,492 36,485 33,000 25,000 64,500 -
2. Granted duting the year - - - - - - 1,50.574
3. Forfeiled during the year - - 4,500 2,500 - 13,000 2,000
4. Exercised during the year 6,961 41,170 4,321 2,233 1.523 508 -
5. Expited during 1he year B B - B B - B
6. Cutslanding at March 31, 2022 7,609,714 253,322 27,664 28,267 23477 50,992 148,574
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2022 5,38.800 1.77,325 12,449 8,480 7,043 7.649 -
Particulars ESOP 20171X_| ESOP2017X | ESOP 2017 X1 ESOP 2017 Xil ESOP 2017 Xiii | ESOP 2017 XtV | ESOP 2017 XV

1. Opfions outstanding at Aprit 1, 2021 - - - - - - -
2. Granted during the year 10,000 3,000 20,000 3.000 17,500 2.500 15,000
3. Forfeited during the year - - - - - - -
4. Exercised duning (he year B B - - B B B
5, Expired during 1he year N z M < - = N
6. Outstanding at March 31, 2022 10,000 3,000 20,000 3.000 17,500 2,500 15,000
7. Exercisable at March 31, 2022 - - - - - - -

1. Weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options oulstanding as ai March 31, 2023 was 6.73 {Previous year 6.02).
2. Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. 204.81 (Previous year Rs. 95.67}
3. Exercise prices for options oulstanding at the end of the year was Rs.10 (o Rs.28.50 per option {Previous year Rs.10 to Rs.28.50 per option}

The following tables list the inputs to the Black-Scholes Mode! used for the options granied:

Particulars ESOP 2017 1 £SOP 20171 | ESOP 20171l ESOP 2047 IV ESOP 2017VI | ESOP 2017 Vi | ESOP 2017 Viii |
Date of grant 25-05-2017 25-05-2017 25-05-2018 25-05-2019 02-01-2020] 25-05-2020 25-05—2qu
Fair Market value of options on Graat Date (Rs.) 33.94 2277 31.30 - 43.42, A47.67 - 49.20| 45.63 - 48.69] 44.63 - 47.65 93.01-97.55|
Expecled volatlity (%) 28% 28% 28% 22% 22% 22% 22%
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.86% 7.89% 7.89% 6.82% 0 6.95% 6.03% to 6.42% 4.57% t0 5.37% 5% t0 5.95%
Dividend yield (%) NIL NIL| NIL NiL NIL NiL NIL|
Expected malurity from the date of vesling Upto 5 Years Uplo 5 Years Upto 5 Years Upto 5 Years Upto § Years Upto 5 Years Uplo 5 Years
Particulars ESOP 20171X_| ESOP 2017 X_ | ESOP 2017 X ESOP 2017 Xt ESOP 2017 XIl_| ESOP2017Xv | ESOP 2017 XV
Date of grant 05-08-2021 16-09-2021 12-10-2021 01-12-202% 01-01-2022 17-01-2022, 25-01-2022!
Fair Market value of options on Gran! Date (Rs.} 93.10-97.785 151.7-153.4 151.8-163.5] 151.8-153.5 151.9-163.6 152-153.8 152-153.8
Expected volatility (%) 22% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%
ﬁsk free interest rate (%) 5.11% 10 6.10%] 4.54% t0 5.15%| 4.62% to 5.23% 4.64% t0 5.23% 4.77% 10 5.37% 4.88% t0 6.62%|  4.90% t0 5.53%
{Dividend yield (%) NI NiL NiC NiL NIL] NIL NIL
|Expec|ed maturity from the date of vesting Upto 5 Years Upte & Years! Upto 5 Years Upto & Years Upto § Years Uplo 5 Years Upto 5 Years
Particulars ESOP 2017 XVi | ESOP 2017 XVII | ESOP 2017 XVIll ESOP 2017 XIX ESOP 2017 XX ESOP 2017 XXI ESOP 2017 XXIt
Date of grant 09-04-2022 25-05-2022, 01-08-2022 15-09-2022] 21-09-2022 01-12-2022 01-01-2023
Fair Market value of options on Grant Date (Rs.} 203.5-205.4! 204.2-206 204.4 -206.1 204.5-206.1 204.5-206.2] 204.5-206.2] 204.6-206.3]
Expected volatiily (%) 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30%
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.2%05.90%] 6.21% 106.62%] 6.39% t06.69% 6.53% t0 8.71% 6.62% 0 6.83% 6.58% 10 6.78% 6.75% to 6.93%
Dividend yield (%} NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NiL
maturity from the date of vesling Upto 5 Years Upto 5 Years Uplo 5 Years Upto 5 Years Uplo 5 Years: Upto 5 Years Uplo 5 Years
Particulars ESOP 2017 XXl | ESOP 2017 XXiV | ESOP 2017 XXV,
Dale of grant 21-01-2023, 01-02-2023 27-03-2023
Fair Market value of options on Grant Date (Rs.) 204.6-206.2; 204.6-208.3 204.7 -208.3|
Expacted valatiity (%) 30% 30% 30%.
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.69% to 6.86%{ 6.75% t06.90%| 6.89%t06.91%
Dividend yield (%) NIL NIt NIL
[Expecied maturty from the date of vesting Upto 5 Years Upto § Years Uplo 5 Years

Note 44: Fair value measurement

(a} Vatuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly/ indirectly observable or eslimaled using a valualion technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
dlassified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.

(b} Fair Value of financial i which are not at Fair Value

The catrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financiat it are imatis of fair vatues at financial statement level.
of financlal not at falr value

Loans

Most of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Borrowings
The companies mos! of the borrowings ate at floating rate which approximates the fais value.

Debt securities are fixed rale borrowings and fair value of these fixed rate is i by di ing expected future cash flows using curcent market interest rates charged for similar new
loans and carrying value approximates the fair value for fixed rate borrowing at financiat statement level.

Short Term and Other Financial Assets and Liabilities
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, investments, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.
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Note 45: Transfer of financial assets
Transfers of financial assets that are nof derecognised in their entirety

Securitisation:

The Company uses securilisations as a source of finance. Such transaclions generally resull in the transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt securities
Securitisation has resulted in the i ition of the ilised assets.

The table below oullines ihe carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are nol derecognised in their entirety and associaled fiabitilies

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of itized assels at ised cost 4,430.97 1.494.99
Carnrying amount of associaled liabilities 3,379.59 1,132.69

The carrying amount of above assets and lisbilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Assignment Deal:

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has sold some loans and advances at i cost as per deals, as a source of finance. As per the tetms of lhese deals, since
substantial risk and rewards refated 1o these assels were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the Company's balance sheel.

The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business plan , the Company business model remains to hold the assets for
collecting contractual cash flows.

The table befow summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assels measured at amortised cost and the gain on derecognition.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 6,551.70 3,162.35
Gain from derecognition 1.014.79 $39.48

Note 46: L.eases where the Company is a Lessee

The Company's lease assel class primarity consist of leases for buildings and office premises. The Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assels. The Company appties the short-term lease
iti i it t leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or fess from the commencement date and da not contain a purchase option).
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right 1o use assels recognised and the movemenits during the year:

Building and office premises March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening net carrying batance 418.37 334.66
Additions™ 187.03 276.75
Deletions 39.85 2141
Depreciation 214.58 170.63
Closing net carrying balance 350.97 418,37

*This includes deferred portion of fair valuation of securily deposits

Set out betow are the carrying amounts of fease liabilities and the movements dusing the year:

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Batance 469.99 384.58
Additions. 183.74 268.48
Deletions 47.18 26,58
Accretion of interest 46.04 52.84
Payments 265.98 209.33
Closing Balance 386.61 469.99
Partlcutars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense

Depreciation on right of use assets 214.58 170.63
Other expenses

Short-lerm lease rent expense 72.48 4275

Note 47: Disclosures required by R8I

Additional information required in terms of Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 vide reference no. RB2020-21/73
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21, dated Feb 17, 2021 have been prepared in with Indian i (lnd AS) is given in Note 52.

Note 48: Details of Benami Property held

The Company does rict have any Benami properly, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder, as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note 49: Borrowings from banks or financial Institutions on the basls of security of current assets
The Company does not borraw from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assels during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note 50: Wilful Defaulter

The Company is not & declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other fender, in with the guidei on wilful issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022
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Note 51: Refationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022,

Note 52: Analytical Ratios

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % Reasons for
Varlance Variance (if above
25%)
impressive

i) CRAR (%) 74.09% 99.86% 25.77% Increase of AU

ii) CRAR - Tier | Capital 74.09% 99.79% -25.70% during the year

iii) CRAR - Tier §i Capitaf 0.00% 0.07% -0.07% NA

iv) Liquidity Coverage Ratio® NA NA NA NA

* The Company is not required to comply with the guidelines on Liguidily Coverage Ratio (LCR) in line with Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Resetve Bank}
Directions, 2021 as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note 53: Reglstration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies {ROC}
The Company does not hiave any pending regisiration of charges ot satisfaction with Registrar of C ies (ROC) for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note 54: Compliance with number of layers of companies- Clause -87 of section 2 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the
company.

Note 55: Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypte currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note 56: Undisclosed income

There have been no transaclions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendeted or disclosed as income during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, in the tax
assessments, search or survey of any ofher refevant provisions under the Income Tax Act, 1961. There have been no previously unrecorded income and related assets which were to be prapedy tecorded in the books
of account during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note §7: Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium
As a part of the normal lending business, the company grants loans and advances on the basis of securily / guarantee provided by the borrower/ co-b: . These ions are after ising proper
due diligence.

Other than the transactions described above:

a. No funds have been advanced of foaned or invested {eilher from bofrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to of in any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign
entilies (7 iaries”) with the ing, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaty shall lend or invest in parly identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaties).

b. The Company has not received any fund from any party(s} (Funding Parly) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. securily or the like on behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries.

Note §8: C with of
The Company has nol approved any Scheme(s) of Arrangements in terms of Section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2043 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Note 59: Title deeds of immovable Properties not held In name of the Company
The Company do not own any immovable property as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. Al the lease agreaments are duly executed in favour of the Company for buitding and office premises where the Cormpany
is the lessee.

Note 60: Security Cover

‘The Secured Listed Non Convertible Debentures are secured by way of exclusive ion of specified i 1o the exlent of at feast 100% of oulstanding amount or such percent of asset cover as per the
terms of offer 7 { and/or Debenture Trust Deed as may be applicable, sufficient {o discharge the principal amount at all times for the Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the
Company.

Note 61: Previous year figures regrouping
Previous year figures have been ified wherever

R
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Note 62 : Disclosures as required in terms of Masler Direction — Banking Financial Comp: - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Dated 17
February, 2021 as have been prep: i with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) and Di: e as e by ion No. RBH2022-23/26
DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated Apr“ 19 2022 by the Reserve Bank of India and as applicable to the Company.

1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The ing policies regarding key areas of ions are di; as Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

2: Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR}: {Rs. in Crores)
Particutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i} CRAR (%) 74.09% 99.86%
i) CRAR - Tier | Capital 74.09% 99.79%

iii) CRAR - Tier #i Capital 0.00% 0.07%
iv} Amount of subordinated deb! raised as Tier- H Capital - -
v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual Debt instruments - -

Total risk-weig assets repi the wei average of funded and non-funded items after applying the risk weights as assigned by the RBI.

Tier | capital means owned funds as reduced by investment in shares of other NBFCs and in shares, deb , bonds, ing loans and ad i ing hire purchase and
tease finance made (o and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group exceeding, in aggregate, 10% of the owned fund.

Tier il capital includes p e share capital, ion reserves, general provisions and loss reserves, hybrid debt capital instruments and subordinate debts to the extent the

aggregate does nol exceed Tier | capilal.

3: Reserve Fund uls 29C, of NHB Act 1987
{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 5.51 3.27
b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 223 0.74
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total 1.74 4.01
Addition /Appropriation / Withdrawat during the year

Add:

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of lhe NHB Act, 1987 3.09 224
b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1)(viil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 3.83 1.49
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less:

a) Amount apprapriated from the Statutory Reserve w/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -

b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve ws 36(1)(viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been laken into . -
account for the purpose of provision w's 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Stalutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 8.60 5.51
b) Amount of special reserve ws 36(1)(viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 6.06 2.23
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total 14.66 7.74
4: {Rs. in Crores)
Particular March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Value of Investments
i) Gross Value of Investments

(a) In India 10.98 4.20

{a) Outside India - -
ii) Provisions for Depreciation

(a} In India - -

(a} Outside India - -
fii) Net Value of Investments

{a} In India 10.98 4.20

{a) Outside India - -
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
i} Opening Balance - -
it) Add: Provisions made during the year - -
iii) Less: Wrile-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year - -
iv} Closing balance - -

5: Derivatives:

(I). Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate swap (IRS} (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements 13.80 12.61

(it} Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements 0.29 0.76
(iii) Cottateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps - -
{iv} Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - -
{v} The fair valus of the swap book 14.08 13.37

Company entered into USD to INR full currency swap which provide bolh Interest and exchange rate hedging of principal and coupon payments on underlying exposure.

Terms and Conditions of agreements are as follows:

Trade Date 26th April 2022

Termination Date 04dth April 2025

Notionat Amount (USD) USD 18,00,000

Notinal Amount (INR}) INR 13,79,52,000

Bullet/Amortisation Bullet

Interest Calcufation Periods 6 Months

Fixed Rate 8.78% on Qutstanding INR Notional (Exdusive of withholding tax)
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(ii). Exchange Traded Interest Rate(IR) Derivative (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
{i) Notional principal amount of tfraded IR deri 4 during the year (instrument-wise) - -
{ii) Notional principal amount of ge traded IR derivati ing (instr ise) - -
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IRderivatives outstanding and not "highly effective(instrument-wise) - -
(iv} Mark-to-market value of traded erivati ing and not "highly effective”(instrument-wise) - -
{iii) Di: on Risk Exp in D

Qualitative Disclosure

The Company's operations expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company uses derivative contracts such as cross cusrency
o hedge its to in foreign and inferest rates. The use of these derivative contracts reduce the risk or cost to the Company and the Company does
not use these for trading or speculation purposes

a ot (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars Currency interest Rates
Derivatives Derivatives
(i) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount) 13.80 -
(i) Marked to Market Positions
(a} Assets (+) 0.28 -

(b) Liability (-} - R
{iit) Credit Exposure - -
{iv} Unhedged Exposures - -

6: {a) itisati {Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of Special Purpose (SPV) sponsored for Securitisations transactions 2 1
Total amount of Oulstanding securitised assels as per books 44.31 14.95

Total amount of exposures retained by Company to comply towards Minimum Retention Ration (MRR}) as on date of
balance sheet

1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancement

- First Loss - -

- Others - -
ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancement

- First Loss 11.56 4.18

- Others 5.70 i

Amount of exposures to securitizations transactions other than MRR
i} Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancement
- Exposure to own securitisations - -
- Exposure to third party securitisations - -
ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancement
- Exposure to own securitisations - -
- Exposure to third party itisati - -

6.{b) Details of Financial Assets sold to / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
(i) No. of Accounts - -
{ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC - -
(i) Aggregate Consideration - -
(iv} Additionat consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earier years - -
{v} Aggregate gain/Loss aver net book value - -

6.{c) Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
(i) No. of Accounts 1,163 567
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned 85.52 31.62
{iii) Aggregate Consideration 65.52 31.62

{iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in eardier yeats - -
{v} Aggregate gain/l.ass over net book value - -

6. {d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

{1) Details of P i assets p (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
(i) No. of accounts purchased during the year -
(i) Aggregate i - -
(i) Of these. number of accounts restructured during the year - -
(i) Aggregate i - -

(2) Details of non-performing fii ial assets sold {Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
(i) No. of accounts sold - -
(i) Aggregate oulstanding - -
(iii) Aggregate i ion received - -
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7: Asset Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Crores)

Over one Over 2| Over 3| Over 6
1dayto7) 8dayto] 15 dayto month to 2| months up| months to| months Over 1 year) Over 3 fo § Over § years Total
days{ 14 days| 30/31 days months| to 3 6 to 1 year to 3 years years|
Liabilities
Deposils -] -| - -] - - - -] - - -
Borrowings from banks/NHB 15.36 0.49 265 5.88 7.61 50.74 49.43 167.53 111.55 74.92 486.16
Market borrowings* 0.27 - 3.85 0.81 0.81 6.54 6.61 10.50 54.64 4.18 88.21
Foreign currency liabililies (ECB} - - - - - - {0.0%) 14.78 - - 14.77
Assets -
Advances™* 30.49 2.33 2.33 22.79 22.26 83.70 114.60 325.42 185.28 242.69 1,011.89
[ 4.94 - - 2.41 3.63 - - - - - 40.98
Foreign currency assets - - - - - - - - - - -

*Market borrowings includes Non-converlible and long-t: i {rom parties other than banks.
**Advances includes housing and non-housing loans net off provisions for non-perfosming assets

Asset Liability Management {Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022
{Rs. in Crores)

Over one Over 2, Over 3 Over &
1 daydto 7| 8daytoy 15 day to month to 2] months up| months to] months, Over 1 year| Over 3 to § Over 5 years| Total
ays| 14 days| 30/31 days| months| o 3 6 fo 1 year to 3 years years|
Liabilities
Deposits -| - - - - - - - - - -
Borrowings from banks 2242 - 1.63 2.89 4.34 12.13 2213 89.35 21.02 3.32 179.23
Market borrowings* 0.04 - 0.65 0.55 3.87 15.22 7.55 49.31 0.93 0.54 78.66
Foreign currency liabilities (ECB) - - 13.61 - - - - - - - 13.61
Assets -
Advances* 1241 1.55 155 15.15 14.80 42.39 76.40 218.20 126.19 169.18 677.82
4.20 - - N B N N N - - 4.20
Foreign currency assets - - - - - - - - - - -
*Market ings includes Non: i} and fong-t bol ings from parties other than banks.
**Advances includes housing and non-housing loans net off provisions for non-performing assets
8: Exposure
(a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector: {Rs. in Crores}
Category March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
a) Direct Exposure
{i) Resident Mortgages -
Lenqing fully secured by mor\gages_on residential properly that is or vyiil be occupied by the borrower or 101710 675.11
that is rented. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limited ‘ .
{ii) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by morigages on commercial reaf estates (office building, retail space, multipurpose
i i Iti-family residential buildi Hict ted i ises, i i
y p 3
or ware house space, hotels, land ESiti and ion, etc.). would also 4893 4114
include non-fund based (NFB) limited
(i) h in Backed ities (MBS) and olher securilised exposures -
a.  Residential - -
b. Commercial Real Estate - -
b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) - -
8(b). Exposure to Capital Market: (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
(i) Direct investment in equity shares, ible bonds, i and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt; - -
(i) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for i in shares {incluging
IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds; - -
{iii} Advances for any other purposes where shares or ible bonds or co il or units of equity oriented mutusl
funds are taken as primary security; - -
{iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equily oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances; - -
{v) Secured and unsecured to and issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; . .
{vi} Loans sanctioned to corporates against the securily of shares / bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter’s conlribution to the equity of new panies in anticipation of raising 3 - -
(vit) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
(viii} Al exposures to Venture Capital f gi and Qi ) - -
(ix) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds. - .
{x) Financing to stockbrokers for masgin trading - -
{xi) Al to i Funds:
(i} Category | . -
{il) Category 1l
(iii) Category It
Totat Exposure to Capitat Market - -
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8(c) Sectoral Exposure:

(Rs. in Crores)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Total Exposure Gross Percentag of Gross Total Exposure Gross NPAs Percentag of
Sectors (includes on balance NPAs NPAS to total (includes on balance Gross NPAs to
sheet and off-balance exposure in that sheet and off-balance total exposure in
sheet exposure) sector sheet exposure) that sector
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - - N -
2. Industry - - - -
3. Services - - - - - -
4. Personal Loans
i. Housing Leans (Including Priority Sector Housing) 675.50 1.68 0.25% 432.19 262 0.61%
ii. Non- Housing Loans 390.52 2.67 0.68% 284.07 3.28 115%
Total of Personal loans {i + ii) 1,066.02 4.35 0.41% 716.26 5.88 0.82%

8(d). Details of financing of Parent Company products: These details are not applicable as the Company is not a subsidiary of any company.

8(e). Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) Group Borrower Limit {GBL) exceeded by HFC: The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit
{GBL) during the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022,

8(f). Unsecured Advances: As on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022, the Company has not given any unsecured advances for which Intangibles securities has been taken

8(g). Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business:

(Rs. in Crores)

Description

Amount

% of Owned Fund

Exposure o any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business
Exposure to all entilies in a group engaged in real estate business

9: Other financial sector Regulator registration details:

Regulator

Registration No.

Insurance Regulatory Authority of India (IRDAI)

10: Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators

During the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022:

(i) there are no penalties imposed on the Company by NHB or other Regulators.
(ii) the Company has not received any adverse comments in writing by NHB or other Regulators on regulatory compliances, with a specific communication to disclose the same to the

public.

11: Related party Transactions and Policy

CAD479

Details of all material transactiens with related parties are disclosed in Note 37 to the Financial Statements. Related party policy is available in directors report and also on company

website.

12: Group Structure: Diagrammatic representation of group structure

The Company does not have any st

yijoint

as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022, hence this disclosure requirement is not applicable to us.

13: Ratings d by Credit Rating Agencies

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Non-convertible debentures (Secured)
Term loans from banks/NBFC {Secured)
Term loans from banks/NBFC (Secured)
Non-convertible debentures (Secured)

14: Net Profit or Loss for the year, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There are no prior period items that have impact on the current year's profit and loss.

15: Revenue Recognition

CARE A-; (A Minus)
CARE A-; (A Minus)
ACUITE A-; (A Minus)
ACUITE A-; (A Minus)

CARE BBB+, {Triple B Plus]
CARE BBB+: [Triple B Plus]
ACUITE A-; (A Minus)
ACUITE A-; (A Minus)

During the year, there have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties. Refer significant accounting policy no

413

16: Consclidated Financial Statement (CFS)

The Company does not have any subsidiary/Joint venture/Associates as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022, hence requirement of Consolidated Financial Statement is not

applicable,

47: Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

(i} Provisions for depreciation on investment

(i) Provisions for iIncome Tax

(it} Provisions for Deferred tax

(iv) Provisions for NPA

(v) Provisions for standard assets

(vi) Other Provisions and Contingencies
- Employee benefits related provisions
- ECL on undrawn commitment

8.78 464

1.76 0.94
(0.52) 0.78
(0.02) (0.58)

6.42 3.82

(0.01) 0.06
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Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon

{Rs. in Crores)

Housing
March 31, 2023

Particulars
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

Non-Housing
March 31, 2022

Standard Assets

a) Totat Qutstanding Amount 626.30 396.47 382.90

b) Provisions made 1.85 1.86 213
Sub-Standard Assets

a) Totat Outstanding Amount 1.08 1.75 1.53

) Provisions made 0.39 0.62 0.55
Doubtful Assets — Category-|

a) Total Outstanding Amount 0.39 0.59 0.90

b) Provisions made 0.14 0.21 0.32
Doubtful Assets — Category-ll

a) Total Outstanding Amount 0.16 0.23 0.12

b} Provisions rade 0.06 0.08 0.04
Loss Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount - - -

b) Provisions made - - -
Totat

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 627.94 399.04 385.45

b) Provisions made 2.44 2.77 3.04

271.72
213

2.18
0.78

0.84
0.30

0.04
0.0t

280.78
3.22

18: Draw Down from Reserves: During the financial year 2022-23 and 2021-22, there were no draw down from Reserves.

19(a): Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Concentration of Public Deposits {for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs) ~ The Company is Non deposit taking HFC.
Total Deposits of twenty largest Depositors

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

Concentration of Loans & Advances

Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers® 14.47 14.11

Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC 1.40% 2.07%
C ton of Exp: incl off- balance sheet exposure)

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers® 16.21 14.36
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / to Total Exposure of the HFC on ! 1.52% 2.00%
Concentration of NPAs

Total Exposure to ten NPA Accounts® 1.45 2.09

*Gross of impairment foss allowance

19(b}:Sector-wise NPA

Sector

% of NPAs to total Advances in

that sector
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

A. Housing Loans :

1. Individuals 0.26% 0.65%

2. Builders/Project Loans - -

3. Corporates . .

4. Others (specify) - .
B. Non-Housing Loans :

1. Individuals 0.66% 1.09%

2. Builders/Project Loans - -

3. Corporates - -

4. Others {specify) - -

of NPAs (Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{i} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.27% 0.54%
{iiy Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening balance 5.64 3.42

b} Additions during the year 3.24 4.21

¢) Reductions during the year 4.70 1.99

d) Closing batance 4.18 5.64
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening balance 3.64 220

) Additions during the year 255 2.68

¢) Reductions during the year 3.49 1.24

d) Closing balance 2.70 3.64
(i) of p for NPAs provisions on standards assets)

a) Opening balance 2.00 122

b} Provisions made during the year 0.69 1.53

¢} Write-offfwrite back of excess provisions 121 0.75

d} Closing balance 1.48 2.00

21: Overseas Assets

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Overseas Assets
Total

22: Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored - The Company does not have any off-balance sheet Special Purpose Vehide (SPV) sponsored which required to be consotidated as per

accounting norms as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022
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23: Customer Complaints

a) Summary i ion on i ived by the NBFCs from

s and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year
2. Number of complaints received during the year

3. Number of complaints disposed during the year

3.1 Of which, number of comptaints rejected by the NBFC
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year

by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

5. Number of maintainabte complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman®
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through concitiation/mediationfadviscries issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC

8. Number of Awards unil within the sti time (other than those appealed)”

Note: Maintai ints refer to ints on the grounds

Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.
* The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 is not applicable to the Company.

b) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

March 31, 2023

5
556
{652)

9

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

270
(265)

5

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 {Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking

Number of % increase/
camplaint decrease in the .
o ) ) pendingat  Number of complaints number of Number of complaints o 0 e of complaints
of (i.e. refating to) N N N . pending at the end of
the received during the year complaints received the year pending beyond 30 days

beginning over the previous y

of the year year
a. Document relaled (Account statement, outstanding - 14 133.33% - -
fetter, tax certificate, elc)
b. Disbursement Related 2 458 143.62% 6 -
c. Legal Notice Related - 11 10.00% 3 -
d. Refund Related 1 i1 10.00% - -
e. PMAY Subsidy related 1 4 -66.67% - .
{. Others * 1 58 31.82% - -
Total 5 556 105.93% 9 -

* Others shows remaining complaints which is not cover abave.

March 34, 2022

Number of
complaint

. . " : ding at
f .. relating to) PENCing
of {i.e. g to) the

Number of complaints
received during the year

% Increase/
decrease In the
number of
complaints received

Number of complaints
pending at the end of
the year

Of 5, number of complaints
pending beyond 30 days

beginning over the previous

of the year year
a. Document refated (Account statement, outstanding - [ 0.00% - -
letter, tax cerlificate, etc)
b. Disbursement Related - 188 69.37% 2 -
c. Legal Notice Related - 10 42.86% - -
d. Refund Related - 10 66.67% 1 -
8. PMAY Subsidy related - 12 20.00% ]
f. Others* - 44 16.79% 1 -
Total - 279 56.98% 5 -

* Others shows remaining complaints which is not cover above.

24: The Company has not given any Gald loan/loan against deposition of gold during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

25: There were no instances of fraud reported during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

26. Intra Group Exposure: These details are not applicable as the Company is singte owned company.

27.4 foreign Y exp: There is no foreign currency transactions during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. Refer note 7 for Companies

palicy to manage currency induced risk.
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28. Related Party Disclosure

March 31, 2023 {Rs. in Crores)
i Holding Associate/ Key Managerial  Relative of Maximum

Nature of transaction Company Subsidiary 20t Directors Personnel (KMP) KMP Others Total outstanding

Ventures during the year
Borrowings - - . - - - - - -
Deposits. - - - - - - - - -
Placement of deposils - - - - - - - - -
Advances - - - - - . - - -
nvestments - - - - - . - - -
Purchase of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - - NA
Sale of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - - NA
interest Paid - - - - - - - - NA
interest Received - - - - - . - - NA
Services Provided - - - - - - - - NA
Services received - . . - - - - - NA
Short term employee benefits - - - - 4,59 - - 4.59 NA
Share based Payment - - - - 0.17 - - 0.17 NA
Sitting fee - - - 0.31 - - - 0.31 NA
March 31, 2022 {Rs. in Crares)

Assoclate / N Maximum
Nature of transaction Holding o Joint Directors Koy Managerial ~ Refativeof ¢ Total outstanding

Company Subsidiary Personnel (KMP} KMP -

Ventures during the year
Borrowings - - - - - - N - .
Deposits - - - . - - - - .
Placement of deposits - - - - - . - - .
Advances - - - - - - - - -
investments - - - - - - - - -
Purchase of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - - NA
Sate of fixed/other assets - - - - - - - - NA
interest Paid - - - - - - - - NA
Interest Received - - - . - - - - NA
Services Provided - - - - - - . - NA
Services received - - - - - - - - NA
Short term employee benefits - - - - 3.98 - - 398 NA
Share based Payment - - - - 0.42 . - 0.42 NA
Sitting fee - - - 0.21 - - - 0.21 NA
Issue of Shares {(OCNCRPS) - - - - 0.12 - - 0.12 NA

29: There is no breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
30: Thete has been no divergence in asset classificalion and provisioning requirements as assessed by NHB during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

31) Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors {Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Directors and their relatives - -
Entities associated with directors and their relatives - -
Senior Officers and their relatives - -

32: Disclosure as required by Annex (It of Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021
{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Liabilities Amour?t Amount overdue
(1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures: Secured 55.84 -
Unsecured - -

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
{b) Deferred Credits - -
{¢) Term Loans 487.97 -
{d) Int foans and ing - .
(e} Commercial Paper - .
(f) Public Deposits . -
(g} Otheriocans

~Cash credit facililies with scheduled banks 14.63 -
-Working Capital Demand Loan with scheduled banks - -
-Securilized Borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions 32.83 -
(2} Breakup of (1){f} above {O public dep of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
{a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
{b) nthe form of L ie. where there is a shortfall in the value of security - -
{c) Other public deposits - -
Asset Amou:l
(3} Breakup of Loans and [i ing bills ivabies [other than those included in (4} befow]:
{a) Secured 1,013.38

{b) Unsecured -
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{4) Breakup of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i} Leased assels including lease rentats under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease
{b) Operating lease
(i} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry deblors
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assels
(i} Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b} Loans other lhan {a) above

(5) Break-up of Investments
{1] ipyestme
{1} Quoted
{i) Shares
(a) Equity
(b} Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual Bonds
{iv) Government Securities
{v} Others
{2} Unquoted
(i) Shares
{a) Equity
{b) Preference
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iit) Units of mutual Bonds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others
Long Term investments
(1) Quoted
{i) Shares
{a) Equity
{b) Preference
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
{iif) Units of mutual Bonds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others
2) Unquoted
(i) Shares
{a) Equity
{b} Preference
(if) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others

6.08
4.94

{6) group-wi ification of assets as in (3) and {4) above:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured Total

Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in same group
(c) Other related parties
2. Other than related parties

1.007.92

- 1.007.92

Total

1,007.92

- 1,007.92

(7} Investor group-wi: of all §

(current and long term) In shares and securities {both quoted and unquoted):

Category

Market Book Value (Nat
Value/Break up | of Provisions
or fair value or

NAV

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

10.98 10.98

Total

10.98 10.98

{8) Other information

Particulars

Amount

(i} Gross Non-perfomiing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
(i} Net Non-performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
(i} Assels acquired in sati: ion of debt
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33: A Comparison between provisions required under prudential norms on Income R

under Ind AS 109

As at March 31, 2023

and P

, Asset Cb

ing {IRCAP} and impairment allowance

{Rs. in Crores)

Gross
e Assets - Loss Allowance . . L oo
AsBs'els classifications as per classifications as carrying (Provisions) as required Net ‘i:”y.r:i ’ - IRAEP n ":: D rovisi and IR:(‘:‘:’:irﬁg
RBI norms. per Ind AS 109 amount as under tnd AS 109 mou pel 0 provisions S|
perind AS
) (2) 3) @) =314 (6) )=(4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Slage 1 993.41 2.98 990.43 2.99 (0.01)
S d
andar Stage 2 15.78 0.99 14.79 0.60 0.39
Sublotat 1009.19 3.97 1005.22 3.59 0.38
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 262 0.83 1.69 0.39 0.54
Doubtful - up to  year Slage 3 1.29 0.46 0.83 0.31 0.15
11to 3 year Stage 3 0.28 0.10 0.18 0.11 (0.01}
More than 3 years Stage 3 . - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful 1.87 0.56 1.01 0.42 0.14
Other items such as EIS, loan Stage 1 69.94 0.17 69.77 - 0.17
commitments which are in the Stage 2 0.15 0.00 0.15 - 0.00
scope of ind AS 103 but not
coveted under current income
Recognition, Asset Stage 3 0.17 0.06 0.11 - 0.06
Classificalion and Provisioning
{IRACP) norms
Subtotal 70.26 0.23 70.03 - 0.23
Stage 1 1063.35 3.15 1060.20 2.99 0.16
Total Stage 2 15.93 0.89 14.94 0.60 0.39
Stage 3 4.36 1.55 2.81 0.81 0.74
Total 1083.64 5.69 1077.95 4.40 1.28

34: Disclosure on Principat Business Criteria

Particulars

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

{1) Housing loans as per regulatory criteria

(2) Total Assels {Net off by intangibles assets)
{3) Minimum percentage of total assets towards housing finance
(4) Minimum percentage of totat assets towards housing finance for individuals

627.93 399.05
1,108.43 767.85
56.65% 51.97%
56.65% 51.97%

Note: Company has submitted to Reserve Bank of India(RBI) on January 20, 2021, Board approved transition plan lo meet the Principal Business criteria i.e. 60% of total assets {netted
off by intangible assets) towards housing finance (50% in case of housing finance to individuals) by year 2024 as mandated by RBI vide natification No RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC
{HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated on October 22, 2020.

35: Di p to RBI

21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020

{Rs. in Crores)

[)]

8}

©

(D)

()

Type of borrower

Exposure to]

Of {A), aggregate

as Standard|
consequent 0]
implementation of}
resolution  plan -]
Position as at the end|
of the previous half]
year (A}

that slipped into
during the haif-year

debt]
NPA

of (A} amount
written off during the
half-year **

Of (A) amount paid by

to as,

the borrowers during
the half-year =+

Standard consequent to|
implementation of resolution plan
- Position as at the end of this half
year

Personal loans ** 5.89] - 0.03 0.17 5.69)
Corporate persons®
of which, MSMEs -] - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total 5.89 - 0.03 017 5.69

* As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016.
** Includes restructuring implemented pursuant to OTR 2.0 till 31 December 2021 for Housing loans, Loan agains! Property, business loans and smalf business loans.
***Represents debt that slipped info stage 3 and was subsequently written off during the half year ended 31 March 2023

****Represents receipts net of interest accruals and other adjustments
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36: Disclosure pursuant to RBI circular RBIDOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 for loans transferred/acquired under the Master Direction - RBI {Transfer of

Loan Exp Di » 2021 dated 24, 2021 are given below:

(Rs.in Crores except no of accounts)

Entity/Assignee Bank/Financial institution
Count of foan accounts transferred 1,163
Amount of loan account transferred 65.62
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) 10%
Weighted Average residual tenure of the toans transferred 75.85 Months
Weighted Average holding pefiod 16.77 Months
Coverage of Tangible security coverage 100%
Number of Transactions 2
Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated
b) The company has not acquired any Joan in default during the year ended 31s! March 2023

¢) The company has not transferredfacquired any stressed loan during the year ended 31st March 2023

37: Disclosure pursuant to R8I circular RBY2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 for Liquidity Risk for N ing Financial

Companies dated November 04, 2019 are given below:
{i) Funding C ion based on signi party {(both deposits and ings)

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

i) Number of Significant Counterpariies

i} Amount(in Rs. crore)

i} F ge of funding ion to total deposits
iv) Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities

23
564.22

NA

91.04%

{ii} Top 20 Large Deposits

The Company is registered with National Housing Bank to carry on the business of housing finance institution without accepting public deposits. Hence, This is not applicable on us.

{iit} Top 10 borrowings

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

i} Total amount of top 10 borrowings
i) Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings

403.92
68.56%

{iv) Funding C based on

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

Percentage of
total liabilities*

i) Non-convertible debentures

ii) Term Loans from NHB

iti) Term Loans from banks

iv) Term Loans from Non-Banking Financial institutions
v) Term Loans from Financial Institutions

vi) Cash credit facilities with scheduled banks

vii) Working Capital Demand Loan with scheduled banks
viii) Securitized Borrowings from Banks and NBFC

55.36 8.93%
122.79 19.81%
31591 50.97%

2065 3.33%

26.96 4.35%

14.63 2.36%

- 0.00%

32.83 5.30%

*Total liabilities are excluding Equity share capital and Other equity.

{v} Stock ratio

Particulars

{i) Commercial papers as a % of lotaf public funds

(i) Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities*

{iti) Commercial papers as a % of total assets

(iv) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds
{v) Non-convettible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of tota! liabilities™
{vi) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assats

{vii) Other short term kiabilities as a percentage of total public funds

{viii} Other short term liabilities as a percentage of lotal liabilities”

{ix} Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total assets

March 31, 2023
Nil

Nit

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

NA

28.69%

16.05%

*Total liabililies are excluding equity share capital and other equity.

(vi) Institutionat set-up for fiquidity risk management

Liquidity Risk Management framework consists of Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors.

The meetings of ALCO are held at periodic intervals, While the ALCO is responsible for oversight of specific risks refating to liquidity and interest rate sensitivity, the Risk
N Ps e

is ible for p ide risk
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38: Disclosure pursuant to RBI circular RBIDOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 by the Reserve Bank of India and as applicable to
the Company.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1) No of SPEs holding assets for itisath i igil by the orig 2 1
2) Totat amount of Outstanding securitised assets as per books 44.31 14.95

3) Total amount of exposures retained by Company to comply towards Minimum Retention Ration (MRR) as on date of
batance sheet
i} Off-balance sheet exposures
- First Loss - -
- Others - -
ii) On-batance sheet exposures
- Firsl Loss 11.56 4.18
- Others 5.70 1.41

4) Amount of expi to securitizati i other than MRR
i) Off-balance sheet exposures
a) Exposure to own securitisations - -
- Firsl Loss
- Others
b} Exposure to third parly securitisations - -
- First Loss
- Others
ii} On-balance sheet exposures
a) Exposure to own securitisations - -
- First Loss
- Others
b) Exposure to third party securitisations - -
- First Loss
- Others

5(a) Sale consideration received for the secunitised assets 57.80 19.24
§(b) Gain/ioss on sale on account of securitisation - -
6) Form and quantum of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc - -

7) Performance of facility provided
« Cash Colfaleral
a) Amount Paid . -
b} Repayment Received - -
b) Outstanding Amoun! 5.70 141

- Other Coliaterat
a) Amount Paid - .
b) Repayment Received - -

b) Outstanding Amount 7.38 3.08
8) Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past
- Housing Loans 0.29% 0.54%
- Non-Housing Loans 1.24% 2.18%

9) Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset - -

10} Investor complaints /.

(a) Directlyfindirectiy received / - .

(b) Complaints outstanding / . -
/

For AGIWAL & ASSOCIATES
ICAl Firm fegistration number : 000181N
Charf sguntants

1
o}’ a ‘d on behalf of the Board of Directors of
d meed Housing Finance Private Lirgited r

g

Mhutosh:’h}"‘/ Sachin Grovﬂw
Managing Difector Director

DIN: 02582205 DIN: 07384359

Bikash Kumar Mishra  Nitin Kumar Agrahari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M No.: A36376

pe P. C. Agiwal
Pariner
Membership number: 080475

Date: May 18, 2023 Date: May 18, 2023
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram
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UMMEED

HOUSING FINANCE

We bring your dreams to life

Ummeed Housing Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65922HR2016PTC057984

Registered & Corporate Office: Unit 809-815, 8th Floor, Tower A,
Emaar Digital Greens, Golf Course Extension Road
Sector-61, Gurugram-122102

Contact: +91-1244836480
Email Id: enquiry@ummeedhfc.com

Website: www.ummeedhfc.com
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